
 
 

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON  
HYBRID COUNCIL MEETING 

THURSDAY, JUNE 20TH, 2024 - 5:00 P.M. 
Council meetings are recorded and will be available on the Township 

website under Quick Links – Council Agendas and Minutes within 5 

business days of the Council meeting. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85347296755?pwd=pJwLBiQIoQk1jnHmbYSo5vsvsJBE4L.1  

 

Meeting ID: 853 4729 6755 
Passcode: 546606 

 

One tap mobile 
+12042727920,,85347296755#,,,,*546606# Canada 
+14388097799,,85347296755#,,,,*546606# Canada 

 

Dial by your location 
• +1 204 272 7920 Canada 
• +1 438 809 7799 Canada 
• +1 587 328 1099 Canada 
• +1 647 374 4685 Canada 
• +1 647 558 0588 Canada 
• +1 778 907 2071 Canada 
• +1 780 666 0144 Canada 

 

Meeting ID: 853 4729 6755 
Passcode: 546606 

 

AGENDA  
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Land Acknowledgement Statement 
 
 We will begin the meeting by sharing the Land Acknowledgement Statement: 

We would like to begin by acknowledging that Melancthon Township recognizes 

the ancestral lands and treaty territories of the Tionontati (Petun/Wyandot(te)), 

Haudenosaunee (Six Nations), and Anishinaabe Peoples.  The Township of 

Melancthon resides within the lands named under the Haldimand Deed of 1784 

and the Lake Simcoe-Nottawasaga Treaty (Treaty 18). 

These territories upon which we live and learn, are steeped in rich Indigenous 

history and traditions.  It is with this statement that we declare to honour and 

respect the past and present connection of Indigenous peoples with this land, its 

waterways and resources. 

3. Announcements 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85347296755?pwd=pJwLBiQIoQk1jnHmbYSo5vsvsJBE4L.1


4. Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda 
 
5. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof 
       
6. Approval of Draft Minutes – June 6th, 2024 
 
7. Business Arising from Minutes 
  
8. Point of Privilege or Personal Privilege 
 
9. Public Question Period (Please visit our website under Agendas and Minutes 

for information on Public Question Period) 
 

10. Public Works 
1. Other 

 
11. Planning 

1. Applications to Permit 
2. Other 

 
12. Climate Change Initiatives 
  
13. Police Services Board 
 
14. County Council Update 
 
15. Correspondence 
 
 Board, Committee & Working Group Minutes 

1.  Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board – January 16, 2024 
2. Roads Sub-Committee – May 6, 2024 
3. Heritage Advisory Committee – May 27th, 2024 
4. Horning’s Mills Community Hall – April 9, 2024 
5.  Horning’s Mills Community Hall – May 14, 2024 

  
 Items for Information Purposes 

1. Township of Southgate – Memorandum from Lindsey Green, Clerk 
regarding Zoning By-law Amendment Application C5-24 

2. Township of Clearview – Zoning By-law Amendment Notice of Public 
Meeting June 26th, 2024 

3. Township of Clearview – Official Plan Amendment & Zoning By-law 
Amendment Notice of Complete Application & Public Meeting – June 26th, 
2024  

4. Township of Clearview – Notice of Adoption of New Official Plan  
5. Mulmur-Melancthon Volunteer Fire Department Financial Statements Year 

Ended December 31, 2023 
6. Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority – May 2024 Board Meeting 

Highlights  
    
 Items for Council Action 
 1. Dundalk Fall Fair Request for 2024 Sponsorship 
  
16. General Business 

1. Notice of Intent to Pass By-law 
2. New/Other Business/Additions 

1. Report from Kaitlin Dinnick, Administration and Finance Assistant 
regarding 2024 Fall/Winter Newsletter & 2024 Draft Fall/Winter 
Newsletter  



2. Report from Denise B. Holmes, CAO/Clerk regarding Conservation 
and Demand Management Plan 2024-2029 

3. Memo from Denise B. Holmes, CAO/Clerk regarding the Strategic 
Planning Progress Report 2024 prepared by Town Hall Consulting 

4. Community Risk Assessment prepared by Emergency Management 
5. Township of Melancthon Heritage Committee – there were no 

applications received for the vacancy on the Board – Direction to 
Staff  

3. Unfinished Business 
1. Development Charges Background Study and By-law 
2. GRCA Levy – 1st Installment - Direction to Staff for payment 
3. Tabled Motion from April 18, 2024 Council Meeting – Dissolving the 

Horning’s Mills Park Board and the Corbetton Park Board to 
Establish a Melancthon Park Board 

4. NDCC Funding Request 
5. NDACT/Strada Well Registration on Township Landfill Site 

 
17. Delegations  
 1. 5:20 p.m. – Notice of Statutory Public Meeting Zoning By-law Amendment, 

East Part of Lot 22, Concession 3 OS – 478088 3rd Line 
  1. Planning Report from Liam Morgan, Development Planner – Zoning 

By-law Amendment – MPC230702 – 478088 3rd Line 
  2. By-law to Amend By-law No. 12-79, as amended, the Zoning By-

law for the Township of Melancthon as it affects property known 
Municipally as 478088 3rd Line, Melancthon Township and legally 
described as part of Concession 3 OS E Part Lot 22 

 2. 5:30 p.m. – Notice of Statutory Public Meeting Official Plan Amendment, 
Part of Lot 241, Concession 1 NE 

  1. Planning Report from Silva Yousif, Senior Planner – Official Plan 
Amendment – Part Lot 241, Concession 1 NE 

  2. By-law to adopt Amendment to the Township of Melancthon Official 
Plan with respect to the lands legally known as Concession 1 NE, 
Part Lot 241     

    
18. Closed Session 
 1. Items for Discussion: Section 239(2)(b) Personal matters about an 

identifiable individual – Election for Municipal Member Replacement on the 
NVCA Source Protection Committee & Section 239(2)(f) – Advice that is 
subject to Solicitor/Client privilege, including communications necessary 
for that purpose (Chipwoods Park) – Mayor White 

 2. Approval of Draft Minutes – June 6, 2024 
 3. Business Arising from Minutes 
 4. Rise With or Without Report from Closed Session  
 
19. Third Reading of By-laws  
 
20. Notice of Motion 
 
21. Confirmation By-law 
 
22. Adjournment and Date of Next Meeting – Thursday, July 18th, 2024 at 5:00 

p.m. 
 



PROPERTY OWNER PROPERTY DESCRIPTION SIZE OF BUILDING TYPE OF STRUCTURE USE OF BUILDING DOLLAR VALUE D.C.'s COMMENTS

Ronald & Krystal Horst Lots 286 & 287, Con 4 SW 185.8m2 (2000sqft) Garage Storage $100,000 No Approved
Agent: Mahlon Bauman - Mayway Carpentry Inc 097083 4th Line SW

David DaSilva Lot 27, Con 5 NE 668.90m2 (7200sqft) Cattle Barn Agricultural $300,000 No With planner for review
Agent: Enoch Bauman 763265 240 Sideroad

APPLICATIONS TO PERMIT FOR APPROVAL
June 20, 2024  COUNCIL MEETING

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
PLAN 11.1JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



 

 

MULMUR-MELANCTHON FIRE BOARD MINUTES 

January 16, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Present: Earl Hawkins, Chair – Mulmur Township 

Ralph Moore, Vice Chair – Melancthon Township 

Darren White – Melancthon Township  

Kim Lyon – Mulmur Township 

Mathew Waterfield – Fire Chief 

Everhard Olivieri-Munroe – Deputy Fire Chief  

Heather Boston – Treasurer 

Roseann Knechtel – Secretary 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

The Secretary called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 

 

2. APPOINTMENT OF THE CHAIR, VICE-CHAIR AND SECRETARY 

 

Moved by Lyon and Seconded by White 

 

THAT Earl Hawkins be appointed to the position of Chair and Ralph Moore be appointed to 

the position of Vice Chair and that Roseann Knechtel be appointed as the Recording 

Secretary. 

CARRIED. 

3. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

We begin this meeting by acknowledging that we are meeting upon the traditional 

Indigenous lands of the Tionontati (Petun) and Treaty 18 territory of the Anishinaabe 

peoples. We recognize and deeply appreciate their historic connection to this place and 

we also recognize the contributions Indigenous peoples have made, both in shaping and 

strengthening our community, province and country as a whole. 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

Moved by Moore and Seconded by Lyon 

 

THAT the January 16, 2024 agenda for the Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board be approved as 

circulated. 

CARRIED. 

5. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
BD COMM 1JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



 

 

Moved by Lyon and Seconded by White 

 

THAT the minutes of the Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board dated November 21, 2023, be 

adopted. 

CARRIED. 

6. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST - NONE 

 

7. TREASURY 

7.1 Communication Equipment Capital Purchase 

 

Chief Waterfield provided a background to the Simucast Radio project identifying issues with 

communications throughout the County. 

 

Discussion ensued on whether this project will fix the issues with communication, costs for 

each Fire Board, and the need for greater information. 

 

Moved by White and Seconded by Lyon 

 

THAT the Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board support the concept of the Simucast Radio 
System Capital Project; 
 
AND THAT Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board request that the project be deferred to 2025 
to allow for the submission of a business case, procurement and information gathering; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board request financial assistance 
from the County of Dufferin in support of the Simucast Radio System Project and the 
emergency readiness initiatives of Dufferin County Fire Departments. 

CARRIED. 
 

7.2 2024 Draft Budget 

 

Members reviewed the 2024 budget as amended  to reflect the adjustment to dispatch fees.  

 

Moved by Lyon and Seconded by Moore 

 

THAT the Board approve the 2024 budget as amended. 

CARRIED. 

8. ADMINISTRATION 

8.1 OFM Recommendations 



 

 

Members discussed the current policies and questioned if the Personal Use of Hall / 

Equipment Policy is still required.  

Moved by White and Seconded by Moore 

THAT the Board conducted their annual review of the Establishing and Regulating By-
law, Fire Board Agreement, Fire Related By-laws, Policies and Operating Guidelines 
as outlined in the 30 OFM Recommendations; 
 
AND THAT Board direct staff to obtain feedback from the insurance company with 

respect to the Personal Use of Hall / Equipment Policy. 

CARRIED. 

8.2 General Fire Chief Update 

• 89 fire calls in 2023 (up 9 calls from 2022). 

• 3 recruits in training to be completed by the end of summer 2024. 

• Delivery of the pumper has been pushed back to October 2024 due to supply issues. 

• Training materials from the grant has been received. 

 

9. INFORMATION ITEMS 

 

9.1 Accounts 

Moved by Lyon and Seconded by White 

THAT the Board receive the accounts payable as presented and approved in the 2023 

budget. 

CARRIED. 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Moved by White and Seconded by Lyon 

THAT we do now adjourn at 7:47 pm to meet again on March 19, 2024, at 7:00 pm or at 

the call of the Chair. 

CARRIED. 

 
 
 
 

_________________________________   ________________________________ 

Chair             Secretary 



1 
 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 
 
The Township of Melancthon Roads Sub-Committee held a meeting on May 6th, 2024, at 
9:30 a.m.  The following members were present: James McLean, Chair, Bill Neilson, 
Vice-Chair and Member Darren White. Also present were: Craig Micks, Public Works 
Superintendent, Denise Holmes, CAO/Clerk, and Kaitlin Dinnick, Roads Sub-Committee 
Secretary. 
 
Call to Order 

Chair McLean called the meeting to order at 9:32 a.m. 

Land Acknowledgement 
 
Chair McLean shared the Land Acknowledgement Statement. 
 
Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda 
 
Additions 
 
1) Reduction of Speed Limit on 15 Sideroad from County Road 124 to Mulmur-

Melancthon Townline (Denise Holmes) 
2) Shelburne By-Pass (Vice-Chair Neilson) 
 
Moved by Neilson, Seconded by White that the agenda be approved as amended.  
Carried.  
 
Declaration of Pecuniary Interest or Conflict of Interest 
        
None.  
 
Approval of Draft Minutes 
 
Moved by Neilson, Seconded by White that the minutes of Roads Sub-Committee 
Meeting held on April 8th, 2024, be approved as circulated. Carried. 
 
Business Arising from Minutes 
 
None. 
 
Correspondence Items 
 
Chair McLean asked Public Works Superintendent Craig Micks if he was able to pick up 
the garbage that they were emailed about this morning and Craig advised it had 
already been dealt with. 

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
BD COMM 2JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



2 
 

General Business 
  
1. Update from Public Works Superintendent 
 
Craig advised the Committee that they have been working on grading as much as they 
can to get the roads ready for spring gravel and calcium. He advised that the 
maintenance to the Horning’s Mills Ball Diamond, would be completed by the end of day 
today. He also let the Committee know that the street sweeper will be going through 
Horning’s Mills tomorrow and that the ped zones will be put up soon after.   
 

2. Debrief on Town Hall and Next Steps 

 
Chair McLean spoke about the Town Hall Meeting and advised that the big take away 
from the meeting was the importance of being more transparent and communicating 
better with the community. The Committee talked about ways that this can be 
improved, and it was discussed that the OPP are good about posting on social media. 
However, as discussed at the meeting a lot of information is confidential. Staff was 
directed to post the OPP quarterly statistics to a separate spot on the Township Website 
and share this link to the Township Facebook page.  
 

3. Update on Meeting with Mennonite Community  
 
15 Members of the Mennonite Community attended the meeting last week to discuss 
road safety. It was left that we would reconvene with them and invite representatives 
from the County of Dufferin, Dufferin OPP and the MTO.  
  

4. Social Media Posts for Canada Road Safety Week 
 
Chair McLean spoke to the draft posts that were in the agenda package for road safety 
week. The Committee agreed that they are okay with the posts and staff was directed 
to post them throughout road safety week.  
 
5. Other/Additions 
 

1. Reduction of Speed Limit on 15 Sideroad from County Road 124 to 
Mulmur-Melancthon Townline (Denise Holmes) 
 
Staff brought forward that while we are changing the speed limits in the Village 
& Hamlets in the Township that we should maybe consider lowering the speed 
limit on 15 Sideroad from County Road 124 to the Mulmur-Melancthon Townline 
as the speed limit is currently 80km/hr. The Committee discussed lowering the 
speed limit to 40km/hr for the entire stretch of 15 Sideroad or just the paved 
portion of 15 Sideroad, as it is being rehabilitated this year.  



3 
 

 
Recommendation:  

 
The Roads Sub-Committee recommends to Council that we lower the speed limit 
on 15 Sideroad from County Road 124 to after the first bend where the 
pavement ends to 40km/hr. 
 
2. Shelburne By-pass (Vice-Chair Neilson) 
 
Vice-Chair Neilson brought this forward as it is on the County Council agenda for 
next week to discuss. Vice-Chair Neilson advised that he is not supportive of 
what they are currently proposing and wanted the Committee to discuss options 
that we could suggest. The Committee would prefer that the 5th Line OS 
between Highway 89 and Highway 10 be used as the by-pass as they feel that 
makes the most sense.  

 
6. Unfinished Business   
 
 1. Discussion on Township Tree Program for 2025 
  

Denise advised that she spoke to Mulmur and Mono regarding their tree 
programs and marked it in her calendar to touch base with them both in 
September about possibly partnering with them for 2025.  
 
2. Entrance Request on the 7th Line SW from Ajeet Sran 
 
This item was deferred based on the direction from Council last Thursday.  

 

Delegations 

10:00 a.m. – Aaron Bauman – Proposal to open up 300 Sideroad Further to 
Accommodate better Building Site Options on Properties 

Aaron Bauman spoke to the Committee about opening up 300 Sideroad 
for him to build off of as the Shelburne Well is at the front of his property 
on 2nd Line SW making it difficult to build off of 2nd Line SW. It was 
discussed that the Wind Company built up this road when they were 
installing wind turbines. Craig advised that the road is in good shape and 
can be opened now and that he will schedule gravel to be put on this 
section of road in the 2025 budget. Staff was directed to check if they 
need to pass a by-law to open this road as it is just a no winter 
maintenance road currently.  

  
Acting Sergeant R. Button – Dufferin OPP 



4 
 

Acting Sergeant R. Button was unable to attend the meeting.  
 
Recommendation to Council 
           
Recommendation is outlined above. 
 
Public Question Period 
 
None. 
 
Confirmation Motion 
 
Moved by Neilson, Seconded by White that all actions of the Members and Officers of 
the Roads Sub-Committee with respect to every matter addressed and/or adopted by 
the Sub-Committee on the above date are hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed; and 
each motion, resolution and other actions taken by the Sub-Committee Members at the 
meeting held on the above date are hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed. Carried.
 
Adjournment  
 
10:25 a.m. - Moved by White, Seconded by Neilson that we adjourn this Roads Sub-
Committee meeting to meet again on Monday, June 3rd, 2024 at 9:30 a.m. or at the Call 
of the Chair. Carried. 
 
 
 
____________________________    ____________________________ 
CHAIR      SECRETARY 



 
1 

 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 
  

The Township of Melancthon Heritage Advisory Committee held an electronic meeting 
on May 27, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. The following members were present:  Chair Kristine 
Pedicone, Vice-Chair Todd McIntosh, Members James McLean, Tracy Webber, Dennis 
Scace and David Thwaites, also present was Becky Cunnington, Heritage Advisory 
Committee Secretary. Committee Secretary Becky Cunnington called the meeting to 
order at 6:31 p.m. Chair Pedicone advised that the meeting was being recorded and 
would be posted to the Township website.  
 
Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair (Conducted by Secretary) 

Moved by McIntosh, Seconded by McLean that Kristine Pedicone be appointed as the 
Chair of the Heritage Advisory Committee of the Township of Melancthon. Carried. 
 
Moved by Webber, Seconded by Pedicone that Todd McIntosh be appointed as the 
Vice-Chair of the Heritage Advisory Committee of the Township of Melancthon. Carried. 
 

Land Acknowledgement 

Chair Pedicone shared the Land Acknowledgement Statement.  

Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda 
 
Moved by McLean, Seconded by McIntosh that the agenda be approved as presented. 
Carried. 
 

Approval of Draft Minutes 
 

Moved by McLean, Seconded by Scace that the minutes of the Heritage Advisory 
Committee Meeting held on April 10th, 2024 be approved as presented. Carried. 
 

Business Arising from Minutes 
 

None 
 

Declaration of Pecuniary Interest or Conflict of Interest 
        
No declaration declared at this time. 
 

General Business 
 
1. Other/Addition 
 

1) Welcome New Board Member - Chair Pedicone welcomed David Thwaites to 
the Heritage Advisory Committee. 
 



 
2 

 

2) Bursary for the History Department at CDDHS – This item was discussed in 
closed session. 
 

Moved by Pedicone Seconded by Webber that the Committee Move into Closed Session 
at 6:40 p.m. to discuss the Bursary. Carried 
 
Moved by McLean Seconded by Scace that the Committee rise from Closed Session at 
6:52 p.m. Carried.  
 
As a result of the discussion in closed session a winner of the Bursary was selected. 
Member McLean will notify the school and will give direction if any additional 
arrangements need to be made.  
 
2. Unfinished Business 
 

1) CDDHS Student Involvement in Committee Research & Melancthon 
Day – Postponed  

 
2) One Room Schoolhouse Project – Melancthon Day 

Promotion/Display 
The Committee discussed selecting one Schoolhouse to highlight on 
Melancthon Day to promote the project. They will set up a table and have the 
interview questions on display and will provide blank forms for people to 
share information and memories. They will also have Heritage Plaque 
Applications available as well as a photo of the Heritage Plaque.  

  
3) Fall Newsletter Submission 

The Committee requested that Township Staff recirculate the revised 
Newsletter submission.    
 

4) Heritage Plaque Inquiry – Cost for 1 Plaque and Timeline Needed 
Township Staff reached out to Shelburne Memorials for pricing and timelines. 
After a brief discussion the Committee decided they would hold off on 
ordering a plaque at this time.  
 

5) Dundalk Historical Society Proposed Dates for Presentation 
Direction was given to Township Staff to reach out to Councilor Moore to see 
if any dates had been suggested and if not, the Committee would like to have 
the contact information to reach out to arrange a date.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
3 

 

 
3. Brainstorming Roundtable 
 
None 
 
Recommendations to Council        
 
None 
 
Public Question Period 
   
None. 
  
Confirmation Motion 
 
Moved by Thwaites, Seconded by McIntosh, that all actions of the Members and 
Officers of the Heritage Advisory Committee with respect to every matter addressed 
and/or adopted by the Board on the above date are hereby adopted, ratified and 
confirmed; and each motion, resolution and other actions taken by the Board Members 
at the meeting held on the above date are hereby adopted, ratified and confirmed.  
Carried. 
 
Adjournment  
 
7:17 p.m. - Moved by McLean, Seconded by McIntosh that we adjourn this Heritage 
Advisory Committee meeting to meet again on Wednesday, June 12, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. 
or at the call of the Chair.  Carried. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________    ____________________________ 
CHAIR     SECRETARY 



Horning’s Mills Community Hall Board Meeting Minutes

Tuesday April. 9 2024 | 7:00 pm | Horning’s Mills Hall (in person meeting)

Attendees: Ruth Plowright, James McLean, Shayna Pacheco, Sheila Hardy, Jeannette
Parkinson, Shaen Armstrong

Call to order at 7:00pm by Ruth

We would like to begin by acknowledging that Melancthon Township recognizes the ancestral
lands and treaty territories of the Tionontati (Petun/Wyandot(te)), Haudenosaunee (Six
Nations), and Anishinaabe Peoples. The Township of Melancthon resides within the lands
named under the Haldimand Deed of 1784 and the Lake Simcoe-Nottawasaga Treaty (Treaty
18).

These territories upon which we live and learn, are steeped in rich Indigenous history and
traditions. It is with this statement that we declare to honor and respect the past and present
connection of Indigenous peoples with this land, its waterways and resources.

Announcements
Town Hall - Thursday April 25th - On town road safety.

Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda

Additions - Paint colors for the exterior hall building.

Deletions
None

Approval of Agenda
Approved by James, Seconded by Shaen.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
None.

Approval of Draft Minutes
Approved by James, Seconded by Shayna

Business Arising from the Minutes
None.

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
BD COMM 4 JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



Public Question Period
None.

Financials

We are now taking inventory on stock/supplies used during each event.

Unfinished Business
None.

General Business

● Memorandum of Understanding - We sent this to the township and they came back with
some comments. Hall should be covering the internet, toiletries, garbage bags, mop and
bucket, these costs coming out of our rentals. Internet utility will be brought back to
council to discuss if the township will be covering this utility. Hall will be paying for all
cleaning supplies, toiletries.

Motion brought by Jeannette Parkinson

Motion brought to the floor by the board, who is requesting the Township of Melancthon to
cover the cost of the all incidental hall supplies i.e. garbage bags, cleaning supplies, toilet paper
etc, as it's a township building. Moved by Jeannette Parkinson, seconded by Shayna Pacheco

Vote: Taking it to council

Motion brought to the floor by the board, who is requesting that the Township of Melancthon is
to cover the cost of the hall internet, that is to be used for public access, emergencies etc, as it's
a part of the overall utilities for the community hall. Moved by Ruth Plowright, Seconded by
Shean

Vote: Taking it to council

● Pop up events: 5:30pm

Cards and Darts Social - May 9th, 5

Sourdough Starter - 2 hour course, $45, you take home a starter, May 2, 2024, 5:30pm

Father’s Day “Guys night” - Baseball/Hockey, darts, pub night, June 13th, 5:30pm

Live music social - Bring your talent and join in on the fun

Paint Night -

Day time card game social - During the day



● Earth Day - April 20th, 9:00am - 1:00pm

Closed Session (if required)
None.

Confirmation Motion
Approved by James, seconded by Shayna

Adjournment
Adjourned at 8:06pm



Horning’s Mills Community Hall Board Meeting Minutes

Tuesday May. 14 2024 | 7:00 pm | Horning’s Mills Hall (in person meeting)

Attendees: Ruth Plowright, James McLean, Shayna Pacheco, Sheila Hardy

Call to order at 7:00pm by Ruth

We would like to begin by acknowledging that Melancthon Township recognizes the ancestral
lands and treaty territories of the Tionontati (Petun/Wyandot(te)), Haudenosaunee (Six
Nations), and Anishinaabe Peoples. The Township of Melancthon resides within the lands
named under the Haldimand Deed of 1784 and the Lake Simcoe-Nottawasaga Treaty (Treaty
18).

These territories upon which we live and learn, are steeped in rich Indigenous history and
traditions. It is with this statement that we declare to honor and respect the past and present
connection of Indigenous peoples with this land, its waterways and resources.

Announcements

None.

Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda

- Horning’s Mills outside summer planter boxes

Deletions
None.

Approval of Agenda
Approved by Ruth, Seconded by James.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
None.

Approval of Draft Minutes
Approved by James, Seconded by Shayna

Business Arising from the Minutes
None.

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
BD COMM 5JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



Public Question Period
None.

Financials
None.

Unfinished Business
None.

General Business

Upcoming Projects:
- Planters. We’re needing to buy potting soil. Budget for flowers $300-$500.
- Stucco starting next week. Need the gas line moved 3’. Contractor is in charge of this.

Deciding color of brick and paint color.

Melancthon Day:
- BBQ in Corbetton June 21st. Set up at 4pm. 5pm Start time.
- Kids tent: Games, face paint, prizes. Set up at 3pm.

Tour of the hall for the board members:
- Doing a mock rental tour, where the paperwork is, how to fill out the paperwork etc.

that way all board members can step in to do hall tours.

Closed Session (if required)
None.

Confirmation Motion
Approved by James, seconded by Ruth

Adjournment
Adjourned at 7:34pm



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
DATE: June 7, 2024 

TO:  Agencies  

FROM: Lindsey Green, Clerk 

RE:  Zoning By-law Amendment Application C5-24 

 

Please be advised that By-law number 2024-051, being a By-law to amend Zoning By-
law Number 19-2002, which was passed on May 15th, 2024, was declared to be in Full 
Force and Effect having received no appeals at the end of the appeal period on June 6, 
2024.  

If you require anything further, please contact this office.  

 
Original Signed By 

Lindsey Green, Clerk 

 

 

185667 Grey County Road 9 
RR 1 
Dundalk, Ontario 
N0C 1B0 
Phone: 519-923-2110 ext. 230 
Email: lgreen@southgate.ca 
www.southgate.ca 

Township of Southgate 
Clerk’s Department 

 

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
INFO 1JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



CS-24 - Source Water Protection 

The Corporation of the Township of Southgate 
By-law Number 2024-051 

Being a By-law to amend Zoning By-law No. 19-2002, of the Township of 
Southgate 

Whereas the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Southgate deems it 
necessary to pass a by-law to amend Zoning By-law No. 19-2002; and 

Whereas pursuant to the provisions of Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, 
as amended, by-laws may be amended by Councils of municipalities. 

Now therefore be it resolved that the Council of the Corporation of the Township 
of Southgate enacts as follows: 

1. Schedule "49" is added to Zoning By-law No. 19-2002 as amended in the form as
shown on Schedule "A", affixed hereto to Establish Source Water Protection Zones

and Wellhead Protection Areas.

2. That By-law No. 19-2002 is hereby further amended by adding the following to
the end of Section 33:

a) That the following definitions be added to Section 3 of the Zoning Bylaw:

"Dense Non-Aqueous Phase Liquid" shall mean chemicals that are both

denser than water and do not dissolve readily in water. Because of these

traits, DNAPLs tend to sink below the water table and only stop when they

reach impenetrable bedrock. This makes them difficult to locate and cleanup.

Commonly used DNAPLS include, but are not limited to paint strippers,

varnishes, aerosols, and pharmaceuticals.

"Significant Drinking Water Threat" means an activity that poses or has the

potential to pose a significant risk to any source of a municipal drinking water

system.

"Source Protection Plan" means a drinking water source protection plan

prepared under the Clean Water Act (Clean Water Act).

"Vulnerable Area" shall mean Wellhead Protection Areas and Intake Protection

Zones around municipal drinking water sources where activities may be a

significant drinking water threat now or in the future.

"Wellhead Protection Areas" means a vulnerable area delineated around

groundwater wells which helps to identify the length of time it would take for

most contaminants to travel from the location of a spill or leak to the associated

well. The WHPA identified on Schedule 49 to the zoning bylaw are identified as

follows:

a) WHPA-A: The area within a 100m radius from a wellhead, considered the

most vulnerable area for groundwater intakes.

b) WHPA-B: The area within which the time to travel to the well (within the

aquifer) is up to and including 2 years.

c) WHPA-C: The area within which the time to travel to the well (within the

aquifer) is up to and including 5 years.

d) WHPA-D: The area within which the time to travel to the well (within the

aquifer) is up to and including 25 years.

e) WHPA-E: A well that is influenced by surface water and is referred to as

groundwater under direct influence of surface water.



CS-24 - Source Water Protection 

b) That the following general provIsIons be added to the end of Section 5 to

restrict certain land uses in wellhead protection areas A, B, C, and Das follows:

5.28 Grand River Wellhead Protection Area Overlay

(a) No development within the Grand River Protection Area Overlay

shown on Schedule 49 shall be permitted that is, or would be, a

significant drinking water threat unless the use conforms with all

applicable Grand River Source Protection Plan policies.

(b) Without limiting the generality of Part a) the following land use

activities shall be prohibited in the vulnerable areas identified on

Schedule 49 where they would constitute a future significant drinking

water threat under the Clean Water Act:

(i) Waste disposal sites, transfer station or separation station

(ii) On-site sewage systems in excess of 10,000 Litres

(iii) The application, handling or storage of non-agricultural source

material, commercial fertilizer, or pesticides

(iv) The handling or storage of road salt, fuel, dense non aqueous

phase liquid or an organic solvent

(v) Land disposal of Petroleum refining waste, Hazardous waste,

liquid industrial waste or processed liquid industrial waste, Liquid

industrial waste, Industrial waste or commercial waste or

Municipal waste.

(c) Notwithstanding prohibited uses listed in 5.28 (a) and (b) a Risk

Management Official may issue a written decision enabling the

Township to determine a site-specific land use activity is permitted in

accordance with Section 59 of the Clean Water Act.

3. Schedule "A" and all other notations thereon are hereby declared to form part of
this by-law; and

4. This by-law shall come into force and take effect upon being passed by Council
subject to any approval necessary pursuant to the Planning Act R.S.O. 1990, as
amended.

Read a first, second, and third time and finally passed this 15th day of May 2024. 

Brian Milne - Mayor 



CS-24 - Source Water Protection 

Explanatory Note 

To add a new Schedule to the zoning bylaw mapping wellhead protection areas 

around water sources for the Dundalk Water System and define terms such as 

Significant Drinking Water Threat, Source Protection Plan, Vulnerable Area, and 

Wellhead Protection Areas. The proposed amendment would also regulate land use 

within wellhead protection areas for the Dundalk water system with the highest 

vulnerability score (A) to the lowest vulnerability score (E). Some of the wellhead 

protection area associated with well D4 is across Highway 10 in Melancthon Township. 

The effect of the rezoning is to restrict certain land use activities to minimize threats 

to the water system. 



Schedule A 

OUFFERIN COUNTY 

... 

.. 

Township of Southgate 
Zoning By-law 

SCHEDULE 49 

to By-law number Jo;}-\-OS\ 

Passed this .6. of ffiO..\l , 2024 
\ 

Brian Milne, Mayor 

LEGEND 

4l1 Wellhead Protection Area 

Wellhead Protection Area 

Zone A 

Zone B 

Zone C 

Zone D 

1:15,000 

SG_ZoningSch49_2024.mxd 11X17 



 

Page 1 of 3 

Clearview Township Community Services Department  :::  www.clearview.ca  
Box 200, 217 Gideon St., Stayner ON  L0M 1S0 

ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

Township of Clearview Council has received an application to amend Comprehensive 
Zoning By-law 06-54. The amendment is being considered under the requirements of the 
Planning Act RSO 1990 c.P.13 and applicable regulations. The purpose of this notice is to 
invite you to engage in the public process if you wish. 

Public Meeting Information: 
When: Wednesday June 26, 2024 at 5:30 pm  

Where:  Council Chambers, Township of Clearview Administration Centre, 217 Gideon 
Street, Stayner, Ontario 

The Proposal: 

Project No.: 2019-003-ZB 

The purpose of the Zoning By-law Amendment is to rezone the subject lands to permit a 
residential development. The proposed Zoning By-law Amendment would rezone to 
permit single detached units, townhouse units and an apartment. Exceptions will be used 
to established site-specific zoning provisions and to place a Hold (HX) symbol on the 
lands.   

The effect of the Zoning By-law Amendment will reflect a proposed plan of condominium 
with 61 townhouse units, 31 single detached units, and a 3-storey apartment containing 
36 units. The total number of units proposed on the site is 128 units. 

The subject application concerns lands municipally known as 1191 Country Road 42, 
formerly Nottawasaga and legally described as West Part of Lot 23 on Concession 2; 
being Parts 8 to 10 on Registered Plan 51R-40846 (Roll No: 432901000209500). 

The subject lands are also subject to a Plan of Condominium application (No. 2019-003-
CD). 

A key map has been provided showing the subject lands. 

Your Rights to Appeal: 
If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting or make 
written submissions to the Corporation of the Township of Clearview before the by-law is 
passed, the person or public body:  

i) is not entitled to appeal the decision of the Township of Clearview Council to the Ontario 
Land Tribunal; and 

ii) may not be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario Land Tribunal 
unless, in the opinion of the Tribunal, there are reasonable grounds to do so. 

http://www.clearview.ca/
kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
INFO 2JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



 

Page 2 of 3 

Clearview Township Community Services Department  :::  www.clearview.ca  
Box 200, 217 Gideon St., Stayner ON  L0M 1S0 

ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

For More Information: 

There are several ways to find more information about this application. 

Visit our website: www.clearview.ca 

Contact the Planner assigned to this file: Rossalyn Workman, Community Planner  
 rworkman@clearview.ca 
 705-428-6230 ext. 242 

Visit or write to the Community Services Department at the Township of Clearview 
Administration Centre: 

Box 200, 217 Gideon St., Stayner ON  L0M 1S0 
Monday to Friday 8:30 AM to 4:30 PM 

We invite you to comment on this application and to engage in the process with us. If you 
wish to receive future notices concerning this file, please submit your request in writing to 
the Planner assigned to this file using the information above. Please be advised that your 
comment or request to be notified will form part of the public record; your communication 
and any personal information therein will be made available to the public (i.e. e-mail 
address), unless you expressly request its removal. 

If you have specific accessibility needs and would like another format or other 
accommodations the Township of Clearview will work to meet your needs. Please contact 
Human Resources at 705-428-6230 ext. 255. 

Notice dated: 6 June 2024 

  

http://www.clearview.ca/


 

Page 3 of 3 

Clearview Township Community Services Department  :::  www.clearview.ca  
Box 200, 217 Gideon St., Stayner ON  L0M 1S0 

ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

Key Map 

 
  

http://www.clearview.ca/


2M WIDE LANDSCAPE
BUFFER

53

15

14

1.8M WIDE
LANDSCAPE
BUFFER

8

29

1

39

SNOW STORAGE

28

271'-9 1
8 "

 [82.83]

46

PROPERTY LINE

141'-4 1
4 "

[43.08]

1181'-01
4"

[359.97]

65'-67
8"

[19.99]

3.5M X 9M
LOADING BAY AREA

492'-21
4"

[150.02]

153'-35
8"

[46.73]

98'-4 1
8 "

[29.98]

546'-1 1
2 "

[166.46]

98'-4"
[29.97]

33'-1 1
4 "

[10.09]

23
'-0

"
[7

.0
1]

31

3M TOWER FOOTING
UNPAVED SETBACK

COUNTY RD 42
21

'-0
3

8"
[6

.4
1]

19
'-1

13
8"

[6
.0

8]

M
AR

G
AR

ET
 S

TR
EE

T

1

1 16

26'-4 5
8 "

[8.04]

30

20
'-8

1 8"
[6

.3
0]

187'-01
8"

[57.00]

19'-1018"

[6.05]

62
'-2

1 4"
[1

8.
95

]

28'-8"
[8.74]

26'-111
4"

[8.21]

27
'-7

"
[8

.4
1]

4'-0"
[1.22]

4'-0"
[1.22]

10
2'

-9
5

8"
[3

1.
33

]

53
'-1

07
8"

[1
6.

43
]

21
'-3

3
4"

[6
.5

0]

47

s.s

27'-0"
[8.23]

4'-0"
 [1.22]

4'-0"
 [1.22]

17

53
'-1

07
8"

[1
6.

43
]

53
'-1

07
8"

[1
6.

43
]

27
'-7

5
8"

[8
.4

2]

1M
 LA

NDSCAPE B
UFF

ER

3M
 L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

3M LANDSCAPE BUFFER
1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK 1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK 1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK 1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK

1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK 1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK

1.
5M

 W
ID

E 
SI

DE
W

AL
K

R36'-6"

 [R11.13]

1.
5M

 W
ID

E 
SI

DE
W

AL
K

1.
5M

 W
ID

E 
SI

D
EW

A
LK

19'-8 1
8 "[6.00]

58

AMENITY AREA

SECOND EMERGENCY
VEHICLE ACCESS

54

9

40

HYDRO O
NE E

ASEMENT

10M R.O.W.

33'-9 5
8 "

[10.30]

SNOW STORAGE35'-0"
[10.67]

15M ACCESS
SETBACK

1.
5M

 W
ID

E 
SI

D
EW

A
LK

1.5M
 W

IDE SIDEW
ALK

6'-63 4"

 [2.00]

1.5M WIDE CROSSWALK

1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK 1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK

29
'-6

3
8"

[9
.0

0]

1.5M WIDE SIDEWALK

6'-63 4"

[2.00]

S.S

7'-37 8"

[2.23]

S.S

AMENITY AREA

4'-0"
 [1.22]

11'-53
4"

[3.50]

7M WIDE ROAD

6'-63 4"
 [2.00]

22'-1 7
8 "

[6.75]

S.S

6'-65 8"
 [2.00]

20'-8 3
4 "

[6.32]

19'-111 4"

[6.08]

FIRE ACCESS ROUTE

FIR
E A

CCESS R
OUTE

7M
 W

ID
E 

RO
AD

7M
 W

ID
E R

OAD

1.5M WIDE CROSSWALK

FI
RE

 A
CC

ES
S 

RO
UT

E

FIRE ACCESS ROUTE

7M WIDE ROAD

7M WIDE ROAD

FIRE ACCESS ROUTE

FIRE ACCESS ROUTEFIRE ACCESS ROUTE

7M WIDE ROAD

ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPE DETAILS WILL BE FINALIZED AND UPDATED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ARCHITECTURAL ELEVATIONS.

7M WIDE ROAD

APARTMENT PARKING

7M
 W

ID
E 

R
O

A
D

7M WIDE ROAD

7M WIDE ROAD

7M WIDE ROAD

6M
 W

ID
E R

OAD

6M
 W

ID
E R

OAD

26'-41
8"

[8.03]

23'-0"
[7.01]

84'-21
2"

[25.67]

33
'-9

5
8"

[1
0.

30
]

16
'-1

17
8"

[5
.1

8]

FIR
E A

CCESS R
OUTE

10
1'

-7
7

8"
[3

0.
98

]

6

53
'-5

3
4"

[1
6.

30
]BUILDING-A

TOWNHOUSE (8 UNITS)

5M LANDSCAPE BUFFER FOR
SMOOTH GRADE TRANSITION IF REQUIRED

7 3

14'-63
8"

[4.43]

1

ADDITIONAL
AMENITY AREA &
SNOW STORAGE

42 1

2 3

4'-21
2 " [1.28]

25

7

8

1

5 3

5

26
'-9

3
8"

[8
.1

6]

6 1

643 46

BUILDING-H
TOWNHOUSE (8 UNITS)

6 2

1

5

2 3

7

5

5M LANDSCAPE BUFFER WITH
1.5M SIDEWALK

5'-0"
[1.52]

4 4283

SIDEWALK CONNECTION TO FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

4 5 10'-0"
[3.05]

27
'-1

1 8"
[8

.2
6]

19'-61
2"

[5.96]

ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPE DETAILS WILL BE FINALIZED AND UPDATED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ARCHITECTURAL ELEVATIONS.

AMENITY AREA &
SNOW STORAGE

1.
5M

 W
ID

E 
C

R
O

SS
W

A
LK

24'-53
4"

[7.46]

10'-0"
[3.05]

6'-73
8"

 [2.02]

s.
s

SIDEWALK CONNECTION TO FUTURE
MUNICIPAL SIDEWALK ALONG COUNTY ROAD 42

1.
5M

 W
ID

E 
SI

D
EW

A
LK

AMENITY AREA
FOR TOWNHOUSE

s.s

26
'-3

"
[8

.0
0] APARTMENT

BUILDING
(36 UNITS)

PRIVACY FENCE PRIVACY FENCE PRIVACY FENCEPRIVACY FENCE

CORNER ELEVATION TREATMENT

s.s s.s

PRIVACY FENCE

s.s

7

CORNER ELEVATION TREATMENT

26'-4 5
8 "

[8.04]s.s s.ss.s

R32'-9 3
4 "

[R10.00]

3

5

R32'-9
3 4"

 [R
10.00]

R32
'-9

3 4"
 [R

10
.00

]

R3
2'

-9
3 4"

[R
10

.0
0]

6

R32'-9 3
4 "

[R10.00]

R32'-9 3
4 "

[R10.00]

R32'-93 4"

 [R10.00]

5

R
32'-9 3

4 "

 [R
10.00]

R32'-9 3
4 "

[R10.00]

R32
'-9

3 4"

[R
10

.00
]

871 82 74

4

8

2 3 618

BUILDING-C
TOWNHOUSE (8 UNITS)

7

BUILDING-E
TOWNHOUSE (6 UNITS)

BUILDING-D
TOWNHOUSE (8 UNITS)

BUILDING-G
TOWNHOUSE (8 UNITS)

BUILDING-F
TOWNHOUSE (7 UNITS)

BUILDING-B
TOWNHOUSE (8 UNITS)

6
1

7

8

9

s.ss.s

GAZEBO

GAZEBO

s.s

s.s

s.s

s.s

CORNER ELEVATION TREATMENT

ADDITIONAL SNOW STORAGE AREA

PARKING FOR
APARTMENT
BUILDING

R32'-9 3
4 "

[R10.00]

R32'-9
3 4"

[R10.00]

1.
5M

 W
ID

E 
C

R
O

SS
W

A
LK

1.5M WIDE CROSSWALK

28'-117 8"

[8.84]

21'-75 8"

[6.59]

52
'-1

03
8"

[1
6.

11
]

20
'-1

"
[6

.1
2]

26
'-3

"
[8

.0
0]

53
'-5

3
4"

[1
6.

30
]

52
'-1

17
8"

[1
6.

15
]

26
'-3

"
[8

.0
0]

20
'-1

"
[6

.1
2]

14'-101 8"

[4.52]

19'-1018"

[6.05]

33'-117 8"

[10.36]

26'-61 2"

[8.09]

27'-2"
[8.28]

22'-2"
[6.76] 10'-0"

[3.05]

7'-6"
[2.29]

26
'-3

"
[8

.0
0]

53
'-5

3
4"

[1
6.

30
]

20
'-1

"
[6

.1
2]

10'-0"
[3.05]

20'-0"
[6.10]

20'-0"
[6.10]

26
'-3

"
[8

.0
0]

20'-0"
[6.10]

5'-0"
 [1.52]

20
'-1

"
[6

.1
2]

26
'-3

"
[8

.0
0]

26
'-3

"
[8

.0
0]

53
'-5

3
4"

[1
6.

30
]

20
'-1

"
[6

.1
2]

20'-0"
[6.10]

5'-0"
[1.52]

7'-6"
[2.29]

20'-0"
[6.10]

20
'-1

"
[6

.1
2]

53
'-5

3
4"

[1
6.

30
]

26
'-3

"
[8

.0
0]

26
'-3

1 8"
[8

.0
0]

52
'-8

3
8"

[1
6.

06
]

20
'-1

"
[6

.1
2]

20'-0"
[6.10]

5'-0"
 [1.52]

26
'-3

"
[8

.0
0]

43
'-7

"
[1

3.
29

]

19'-8 1
4 "[6.00]

14'-8 1
4 "[4.48]

5'-0"
 [1.52]

20'-0"
[6.10]

1.5
M W

ID
E S

ID
EW

ALK

1.5
M W

ID
E S

ID
EW

ALK

29'-9 3
4 "[9.09]

43'-61
8"

[13.26]

31
'-1

1 8"
[9

.4
8]

DETACHED UNIT WILL PROVIDE TRANSITION TO
ADJOINING DRAFT PLAN APPROVED DETACHED &
SEMI-DETACHED SUBDIVISION

CORNER ELEVATION
TREATMENT

15'-53
4 "[4.72]

20'-53
4 "[6.24]

18'-8"
[5.69]

NO. DATE REVISION

1191 COUNTY ROAD 42
PROJECT & CLIENT

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NO.

SCALE :-

STAYNER, ON

1 2024-03-23 FOR DISCUSSION

NOT FOR SITE PLAN
APPROVAL

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

ONLY FOR PRELIMINARY
DISCUSSION

*

*

*

KEY PLAN

The designs, comprising the master plan, site plan, floor plans, and renderings, are the proprietary and copyrighted materials of RPD Studio, CA. Any unauthorized reproduction, whether involving drafting plans or seeking permits, approvals,
and amendments, including but not limited to vacant land condominium plans, zoning by-law amendments, minor variances, or building permit sets, is strictly prohibited without the explicit written consent of RPD Studio, CA. (E. & O. E.)

2 2024-03-26
UPDATED AS PER
MUNICIPAL COMMENTS

SITE PLAN

OP-7
1"=50'-0"

N

STATISTICS

ZONING:

PROPOSED ZONE T.B.D.

PROGRAMS:
AREA ~5.02 Ha (50200Sq.Mt.)

1. NO. OF  DETACHED HOUSES 31 UNITS
2. NO. OF  TOWNHOUSES 61 UNITS

SUB-TOTAL 92 UNITS

3. NO. OF  CONDO  APARTMENTS 36 UNITS

TOTAL  NO. OF UNITS 128  UNITS

PARKING
RATIO

ZONING

DETACHED HOUSE
35' WIDE LOT

31 UNITS 62 STALLS
(1 GARAGE+1 TANDEM)

TOWNHOUSE
20' WIDE 61 UNITS

CONDO
APARTMENTS

36 UNITS

122 STALLS
(1 GARAGE+1 TANDEM)

9 STALLS
(VISITOR PARKING)

58 STALLS

TYPES UNITS STALLS

2.0

2.15

1.61

S.S.

LEGEND

ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACE

SNOW STORAGE

PROPERTY LINE

PAINTED LINES

1.8M PRIVACY FENCE

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

SOD

DECIDUOUS TREE

SMALL TREE

SHRUBS

SHRUBSBENCH

NOTES:
1) PROPOSED MINIMUM 8M DRIVEWAY TO ACCOMMODATE ADDITIONAL SNOW STORAGE
2) 5M LANDSCAPE BUFFER TOWARD COUNTY ROAD 42 FOR SMOOTH GRADE
TRANSITION WITHOUT PROPOSING RETAINING WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d18'20"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72%%d17'50"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
N10'15'10"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
128.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
111.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
211.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
N60%%d15'05"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d36'50"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N10%%d15'10"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72%%d17'50"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d36'50"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d36'50"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72%%d17'50"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N71%%d51'15"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d42'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
136.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
201.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
199.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
43.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
N10%%d15'10"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N71%%d51'15"E    46.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
360.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d36'50"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72%%d17'50"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72%%d17'50"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d18'20"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72%%d17'50"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
72.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
145.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d42'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d42'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72%%d17'50"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
N60%%d15'05"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
198.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72%%d12'40"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
178.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d42'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
211.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d36'50"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
106.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
61.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
N09%%d36'50"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
Anchors

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.4 E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Overhead Wires

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Lawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge  of  Maintained

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.8 E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT   22

AutoCAD SHX Text
22,

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCESSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPROPRIATION PLAN RO-1252827

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT TO EASEMENT AS IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT TO EASEMENT AS DESCRIBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND RO1252827

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPROPRIATION PLAN RO-1252827

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT TO EASEMENT - PART 4,

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT21480 AND NOT21518

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS IN INSTRUMENTS NOT21476

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN INSTRUMENTS NOT21480, NOT21518

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN 58237-0100(LT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT TO RO1252827,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN  58237-0100(LT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT TO EASEMENT - PART 3,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART  2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART  11

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART  9

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART  8

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIMCOE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N%%d 42

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARGARET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART 1, 51R-5081

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART  1,  PLAN  51R-24358

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART   3

AutoCAD SHX Text
36579

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN     51R -   12035

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART 1, 51R-36579

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART   2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART 8, 51R-857

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART 4, 51R-857

AutoCAD SHX Text
51R      -

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
N72%%d12'40"E



 

OFFICIAL PLAN AMENDMENT &  
ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT 

NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & 
PUBLIC MEETING 

The Township of Clearview Council has received applications to amend the Official Plan 
(2001) and the Zoning By-law (06-54). The amendments are being considered under the 
requirements of the Planning Act RSO 1990 c.P.13 and applicable regulations. The purpose 
of this notice is to invite you to engage in the public process if you wish. 

Public Meeting Information: 
When: Wednesday June 26, 2024 at 5:30 pm  

Where:  Council Chambers, Township of Clearview Administration Centre, 217 Gideon 
Street, Stayner, Ontario 

The Proposal: 

Project No.: 2024-035 

The purpose of the Official Plan Amendment 
application is to redesignate a portion of the 
subject lands to ‘Agriculture Exception’, and 
further revise the limits of the ‘Greenland – 
Natural Heritage Area’ designation on the 
lands to ‘Agricultural’ to reflect results of a 
Natural Hazard Study.  

The purpose of the Zoning By-law 
Amendment is to rezone the subject lands to 
reflect the proposed Official Plan Amendment 
and permit the expansion of an existing 
sewage treatment facility. Exceptions will be 
used to established site-specific zoning 
provisions. 

The effect of the applications are to facilitate 
the expansion of an existing sewage 
treatment facility (lagoons).   

The subject application concerns lands 
municipally known as 10367 County Road 
10, and legally described as CON 4 S 1/2 
LOT 21 ESR (Roll No: 432904000217600). 

A key map has been provided showing the 
subject lands. 

 
The subject lands will also be subject to a 
site plan approval application in the future. 

 
  

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
INFO 3JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



 

OFFICIAL PLAN AMENDMENT &  
ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT 

NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION & 
PUBLIC MEETING 

 

Your Rights to Appeal: 
Note that the County of Simcoe is the ultimate approval authority for Township Official Plan 
Amendments.  

If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting or make 
written submissions to the Corporation of the Township of Clearview before the by-law is 
passed or the Township of Clearview/County of Simcoe before the proposed Official Plan 
Amendment is adopted, the person or public body:  

i) is not entitled to appeal the decision of the approval authority to the Local Planning 
Appeal Tribunal; and 

ii) may not be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Local Planning 
Appeal Tribunal unless, in the opinion of the Tribunal, there are reasonable grounds to 
do so. 

For More Information: 

There are several ways to find more information about this application. 

Visit our website: www.clearview.ca 

Contact the Planner assigned to this file: Rossalyn Workman, Community Planner  
 rworkman@clearview.ca 
 705-428-6230 ext. 248 

Visit or write to the Community Services Department at the Township of Clearview 
Administration Centre: 

Box 200, 217 Gideon St., Stayner ON  L0M 1S0 
Monday to Friday 8:30 AM to 4:30 PM 

We invite you to comment on these applications and to engage in the process with us. If you wish to 
be notified of the adoption of the proposed Official Plan amendment or the refusal of a request to 
amend the Official Plan, or of the decision regarding the proposed Zoning By-law amendment please 
submit your request in writing to the Planner assigned to this file using the information above. Please 
be advised that your comment or request to be notified will form part of the public record; your 
communication and any personal information therein will be made available to the public (i.e. e-mail 
address), unless you expressly request its removal. 

If you have specific accessibility needs and would like another format or other accommodations the 
Township of Clearview will work to meet your needs. Please contact Human Resources at 705-428-
6230 ext. 255. 

Notice dated: 6 June 2024 



CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN
10367 COUNTY RD. 10, CLEARVIEW

KEY MAP

File: 22.1194

Date: February 29, 2024 Drawn By: A.G.

Checked By: J.H.

SCHEDULE OF REVISIONS
No. Date Description By

CONCEPTUAL
SITE PLAN

1:2000

10367 County Road 10
Springwater, Ontario

Scale 1:2000

0 40 200m80 120 160

INNOVATIVE PLANNING SOLUTIONS
P L A N N E R S  •  P R O J E C T  M A N A G E R S  •  L A N D  D E V E L O P E R S

647 WELHAM ROAD, UNIT 9, BARRIE, ON, L4N 0B7

tel: 705 • 812 • 3281 fax: 705 • 812 • 3438 e: info@ipsconsultinginc.com www.ipsconsultinginc.com

Concession 5 Sunnidale

C
ounty R

d 10

SUBJECT
 SITE

Existing Fence

Proposed Fence (1.8 m Chain Link)

Access Road (9m)

Subject Site
(Area: ±41.364 ha. / 102.21 ac.)

Existing Sewage Cells - Average 61.08m x 61.73m
(200.4 ft x 202.5ft)

Proposed Hauled Sewage Receiving Area - 20 x 45m
(65.62ft x 147.6ft) -  900.00m²

Proposed Operations Shop

Existing Buildings

New Sewage Cells - 45.00m x 45.00m (147.6ft x 147.6ft)

New Sewage Cells - 50.00m x 55.00m (164.0ft x 180.4ft)

Site - 124.659,21m² (12.47ha or 30.8 acre)

New Sewage Cells - 50.00m x 60.00m (164.0ft x 196.9ft)

Landscape Buffer (15m)

Legend

1th Submission A.G.March 13, 202401

AutoCAD SHX Text
IB

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
55.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
45.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.05m

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.69m

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.36m

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.67m

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.17m

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.39m

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.58m

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.32m

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00m

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.06m

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIB

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.75m

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.08m

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.67m

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.61m

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.59m

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.68m

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD HAZARD LIMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER LINE OF WATERCOURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EROSION HAZARD LIMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.0 m ACCESS ALLOWANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEANDER BELT AXIS



 

Planning & Building Department 

Township of Clearview 

Box 200, 217 Gideon Street 

Stayner, Ontario L0M 1S0  

plan@clearview.ca 

www.clearview.ca 

Phone: 705-428-6230 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

NOTICE OF ADOPTION 

New Official Plan 

TAKE NOTICE that the Council of The Corporation of the Township of Clearview passed By-

law 2024-38 to adopt a new Official Plan for the Township of Clearview on the 27th day of 

May 2024, pursuant to Section 17(22) of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended. This 

Notice of Adoption is issued pursuant to Section 17(23) of the Planning Act. 

Prior to the adoption of the Official Plan, statutory Public Meetings were held on November 4, 

2019, August 30, 2023, and January 17, 2024, and a statutory Public Open House was held 

on August 16, 2023, in accordance with the Planning Act. 

The new Township of Official Plan is subject to approval from the County of Simcoe. 

Purpose and Effect  

The new Official Plan is intended to manage and direct long-term growth and development 

throughout the Township of Clearview. The Official Plan achieves this by providing goals, 

objectives and policies related to managing growth, improving transportation systems, 

facilitating economic development, protecting and enhancing natural heritage features and 

resources, and supporting and building on the strengths of the community. Further, the 

Official Plan contains policies that implement legislation, regulation and policies from the 

Provincial and County levels while reflecting the priorities of the Community. 

The new Official Plan has been developed through the consideration of community and 

stakeholder input as well as the completion of background planning studies and reports.  

Available for Review   

A complete copy of the newly adopted Official Plan (By-law 2024-38) is available for 

inspection on the Township of Clearview website and in person at the Township 

Administration Centre (217 Gideon Street, Stayner). 

  

mailto:plan@clearview.ca
http://www.clearview.ca/
https://www.clearview.ca/news-events-meetings/special-projects/official-plan-review
kdinnick
Typewritten Text
INFO 4JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



Planning and Building Department   May 31, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 

Written and Oral Submissions  

All written and oral submissions made regarding the new Official Plan have been reviewed 

and dually considered. Public and agency comments have need incorporated, where 

appropriate. 

Appeal Rights & Contact Information 

Under the provisions of Section 17(2) of the Planning Act, the County of Simcoe being the 

upper-tier municipality is the approval authority for a new lower-tier Official Plan adopted 

under Section 17(22) of the Planning Act. As such, the Adopted Official Plan has been 

forwarded to the County of Simcoe for review, as required by Section 17(31) of the Planning 

Act.   

Any person or public body will be entitled to receive notice of the decision of the approval 

authority with respect to the new Official Plan, if a written request (including the person’s or 

public body’s address, fax number or email address) to be notified of the decision is made to 

the approval authority is made to:   

County of Simcoe 
Planning Department 

1110 Highway 26 
Midhurst, Ontario  L9X 1N6 

Only individuals, corporations or public bodies may appeal a decision of the County regarding 

the new Official Plan to the Ontario Land Tribunal.  A notice of appeal may not be filed by an 

unincorporated association or group.  However, a notice of appeal may be filed in the name 

of an individual who is a member of the association or the group on its behalf.   

Building & Planning Department 
Clearview Administration Centre 

217 Gideon Street 
Stayner, Ontario   L9X 1A8 

Telephone: (705) 428-6230 x 238 
e-mail: plan@clearview.ca 

website: www.clearview.ca/opreview 

 

Notice dated at the Township of Clearview on May 31, 2024.  

mailto:plan@clearview.ca
http://www.clearview.ca/opreview


Financial Statements of 

MULMUR-MELANCTHON
VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT

Year ended December 31, 2023

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
INFO 5JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Table of Contents

Page

Independent Practitioner's Review Engagement Report 

Financial Statements of Mulmur-Melancthon Volunteer Fire Department

Statement of Financial Position 1

Statement of Operations and Changes in Accumulated Surplus 2

Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 3

Statement of Cash Flows 4

Notes to Financial Statements 5 - 8

Schedule 1 - Accumulated Surplus 9



KPMG LLP
120 Victoria Street South
Suite 600
Kitchener, ON N2G 0E1
Canada
Telephone 519 747 8800
Fax 519 747 8811

INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER'S REVIEW ENGAGEMENT REPORT

To the Township of Mulmur-Melancthon Volunteer Fire Department

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Mulmur-Melancthon Volunteer Fire
Department, which comprise the  statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, the
statement of operations and changes in accumulated surplus, statement of changes in net financial
assets and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Practitioner's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements based on
our review.  We conducted our review in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards
for review engagements, which require us to comply with relevant ethical requirements.

A review of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for
review engagements is a limited assurance engagement.  The practitioner performs procedures,
primarily consisting of making inquiries of management and others within the entity, as appropriate,
and applying analytical procedures, and evaluates the evidence obtained.

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less in extent than, and vary in nature
from, those performed in an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards.  Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on these financial statements.

KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.



Page 2

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the financial
statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Mulmur-
Melancthon Volunteer Fire Department as at December 31, 2023, and its results of operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Kitchener, Canada

May 29, 2024



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2023 2022

Financial assets:
Cash $ 472,674 $ 354,388
Accounts receivable 25,258 36,607  

497,932 390,995

Financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 22,516 32,124

Net financial assets 475,416 358,871

Non financial assets:
Tangible capital assets (note 5) 585,028 599,239
Prepaid expenses 8,535 8,545

593,563 607,784

 
Accumulated surplus $ 1,068,979 $ 966,655

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

  Director   Director

1



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Statement of Operations and Changes in Accumulated Surplus

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2023
Budget

2023
Actual

2022
Actual

  

Revenue:
Interest income $ 1,000 $ 20,891 $ 6,371
Fire calls, inspections and miscellaneous

income 12,000 38,521 36,096
Township if Mulmur 251,746 239,841 205,891
Township of Melancthon 127,440 123,746 106,755
Capital grant revenue - - 4,272

392,186 422,999 359,385

Expenses:
Accounting, legal and insurance 20,252 27,711 18,383
Amortization - 59,696 64,684
Breathing apparatus 4,000 7,637 3,807
Communications 17,800 18,689 22,182
Training 12,000 17,862 16,943
Fire hall maintenance 6,000 10,794 7,855
Fire prevention 1,000 1,333 228
Firefighter salaries and benefits 118,810 114,555 105,924
Licence and membership fees 1,384 950 584
Materials, supplies and services 6,650 21,249 10,884
Radio maintenance 4,000 2,101 2,293
Treasury and secretarial services 12,000 12,000 12,000
Utilities 12,000 10,954 11,062
Vehicle repairs 28,857 15,144 21,614

244,753 320,675 298,443

Annual surplus 147,433 102,324 60,942

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 966,655 966,655 905,713
  
Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 1,114,088 $ 1,068,979 $ 966,655

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

Budget
2023

Actual
2023

Actual
2022

 
Annual surplus $ 147,433 $ 102,324 $ 60,942
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (18,000) (45,485) (20,473)
Amortization of tangible capital assets - 59,696 64,684
Change in prepaid expenses - 10 (565) 

Change in net financial assets 129,433 116,545 104,588

Net financial assets, beginning of year 358,871 358,871 254,283

Net financial assets, end of year $ 488,304 $ 475,416 $ 358,871

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

3



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2023 2022

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities:
Annual surplus $ 102,324 $ 60,942
Item not involving cash:

Amortization 59,696 64,684
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Accounts receivable 11,349 3,006
Prepaid expenses 10 (565)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (9,608) 20,624

163,771 148,691

Capital activities:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (45,485) (20,473)

Increase in cash 118,286 128,218

Cash, beginning of year 354,388 226,170

Cash, end of year $ 472,674 $ 354,388

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

4



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2023

The financial statements of the Mulmur-Melancthon Volunteer Fire Department (the "Organization")
are the representation of management prepared in accordance with accounting principles
established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada. Summarized below are the significant accounting policies:

1. Significant accounting policies:

(a) Acknowledgement of responsibility:
 
The management of the Organization acknowledges its responsibility for the creation and
completion of the financial statements and the following significant accounting policy
decisions and related policy notes.

(b) Basis of consolidation:

The operations of this joint board are to be in the financial statements of the participating
municipalities on a proportionate consolidation basis.

(c) Basis of accounting:

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and
measurable; expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result
of receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

(d) Credit risk management:

The Organization is exposed to credit risk on the accounts receivable from insurance
companies. They do not have significant exposure to any individual customer or
counterpart.

(e) Non-financial assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use
in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and
are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial
assets during the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the
change in net financial assets for the year.

5



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e) Non-financial assets (continued):

Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.
Amortization is provided over the estimated useful life of the assets, using the straight-line
method. The useful life of the assets is based on estimates made by Council. The following
rates are being used:

Asset Rate

Land improvements 20 years
Vehicles 10 to 20 years
Firefighting equipment 5 to 20 years

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of
disposal. Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at fair value at the
date of receipt and also are recorded revenue.

(f) Revenue recognition:

Fire calls and services are recorded as revenue when the emergency services are
provided.

Municipal contributions are recognized as the budgeted amounts are approved by the
Council of the participating municipalities.

(g) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the year. Significant estimates made by management include the
useful lives of tangible capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

6



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

2. Reserves:

The balance of the accumulated surplus included in the statement of financial position includes
assets that have been specifically restricted (internally) by the Joint Board of Management as
outlined in the schedule of accumulated surplus.

 
3. Operations:

On October 6, 1992, the Townships of Mulmur and Melancthon signed an agreement to
officially form a joint firefighting department. This agreement was updated on April 21, 2005. A
new agreement was formally reached by the participating municipalities dictating the operations
of the joint board on August 11, 2010. Operations of the Mulmur-Melancthon Volunteer Fire
Department commenced on January 1, 1993. The department is managed by a four member
board known as the Mulmur-Melancthon Volunteer Fire Department Joint Board of
Management. Two members have been appointed from each participating municipality to the
Fire Department Joint Board of Management.

Annual capital costs of the Department are shared on an equal basis by the two municipalities.
Annual operating and administration costs of the Department are shared on a combined
average fire calls for the previous three years, the total assessment for the current year, and the
total households as at January 1 of the current year less fire call recoveries of each
participating municipality as follows:

2023 2022
 
Township of Melancthon %23.46 %23.68
Township of Mulmur %76.54 %76.32

4. Budget figures:

The budgeted figures are presented for comparison purposes as prepared and approved by the
Joint Board of Management, and have been prepared on a cash basis of accounting.

7



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2023

5. Tangible capital assets:

Cost
December 31,

2022 Additions Disposals
December 31,

2023
 
Land improvements $ 13,057 $ - $ - $ 13,057
Vehicles 829,252 - - 829,252
Firefighting equipment 472,872 31,373 - 504,245
Work in Progress - 14,112 - 14,112

 
$ 1,315,181 $ 45,485 $ - $ 1,360,666

Accumulated amortization
December 31,

2022
Amortization

expense Disposals
December 31,

2023
 
Land improvements $ 9,467 $ 653 $ - $ 10,120
Vehicles 390,415 34,826 - 425,241
Firefighting equipment 316,060 24,217 - 340,277

 
$ 715,942 $ 59,696 $ - $ 775,638

Net book value
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2023
 
Land improvements $ 438,837 $ 2,937
Vehicles 3,590 404,011
Firefighting equipment 156,812 163,968
Work in Progress - 14,112

 
$ 599,239 $ 585,028

8



MULMUR-MELANCTHON VOLUNTEER FIRE
DEPARTMENT
Schedule 1 - Accumulated Surplus

Year ended December 31, 2023, with comparative information for 2022

2023 2022
 
Surpluses:

Surplus from general fund operations $ 49,274 $ 56,646
Invested in capital assets 585,028 599,238  

        634,302 655,884

Reserves:
Capital reserve 434,676 310,771

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 1,068,978 $ 966,655

9



 

 

8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON, L0M 1T0 ⚫ 705-424-1479 ⚫ admin@nvca.on.ca 
www.nvca.on.ca 

 

NVCA May 2024 Board Meeting Highlights 

Next Meeting: June 28, 2024, held virtually 

For the full meeting agenda including documents and reports, visit NVCA’s website. 

Provincial Planning Statement 

On April 10, 2024, the Province proposed a new 

planning policy instrument titled the “Provincial 
Planning Statement” for comment on the 
Environmental Registry of Ontario. The 

comment period was open for 30 days and 
closed on May 12, 2024. 

The new instrument blends the Provincial Policy 

Statement (PPS 2020) and the A Place to Grow: 
Growth Plan for the Greater Golden Horseshoe 
(Growth Plan, 2020) into a new provincial 

planning policy instrument.  

Should the new Provincial Planning Statement 
be adopted, the PPS 2020 and the Growth Plan, 

2020 will be revoked. 

NVCA submitted comments through 

Conservation Ontario, highlighting matters such 
as: 

• Vision of the Provincial Policy Statement 

• New Settlement Areas and Settlement Area 
Boundary Expansions 

• Stormwater Management 

• Natural Heritage 

• Natural Hazards and Human-made Hazards 

• Other General Recommendations 

Minister’s permit and review powers 

On April 5, 2024, the Province posted a 
proposal for a regulation on the Environmental 

Registry of Ontario to specify when the Minister 
of Natural Resources and Forestry can: 

• Issue an order to prevent a Conservation 

Authority (CA) from issuing a permit and to 
take over the permitting process  

• Review (and potentially alter) a CA permit 
decision at the request of the applicant 

NVCA submitted comments to the 
Environmental Registry emphasizing details 
regarding the new Minister’s powers must be 

carefully developed. This is to ensure decision 
making on permits remains technical, apolitical 
and integrates a watershed perspective so lives 

and properties will continue to be protected 
from natural disasters such as flooding and 
erosion.  

The comments also addressed the liability of 
the permits issued by the Minister. 

Cutting Red Tape to Build More 

Homes Act, 2024 (Bill 185) 

The Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 

2024 (Bill 185) was presented to the Legislative 
Assembly of Ontario for first reading on April 
10, 2024. Subsequently, it was posted on the 

Environmental Registry of Ontario for 
commenting under ERO Numbers 019-8365, 
019- 8366, 019-8369 and 019-8370. 

NVCA submitted comments through 
Conservation Ontario addressing matters such 
as: 

• Changes to Appeal Rights 

• Settlement Area Boundary Expansions 

• “Use It or Lose It” 

• Pre-Consultation requirements for 
municipalities 

• Additional Residential Units 

• Facilitating Standardized Housing Designs 

• Minister Zoning Orders 

file://///nvca-data01/data/Communications/Board%20of%20Directors/Agendas,%20Minutes,%20Highlights/2021/nvca.on.ca/about/boardofdirectors
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-8462
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-8462
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-8320
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-8320
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-8365
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-8366
https://ero.ontario.ca/search?search=019-8369&date%5Bmin%5D=&date%5Bmax%5D
https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-8370
kdinnick
Typewritten Text
INFO 6JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



 

 

8195 8th Line, Utopia, ON, L0M 1T0 ⚫ 705-424-1479 ⚫ admin@nvca.on.ca 
www.nvca.on.ca 

• Expediting Approval process for Community 
Service Facilities and Exempting Universities 

from Planning Act Requirements 

• Upper-Tier Planning Responsibilities 

Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 

Update 

The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival has been 

operating at the Tiffin Centre for over three 
decades.  

Many of the offerings at the event have 

remained consistent over the decades with a 
focus on maple syrup production and family 
friendly events. Partnerships have also been 

established with local service providers, 
including the Simcoe County Paramedics, the 

Essa Fire Department and the Cadets. 

Every year, over 3,000 community members 
and visitors come out to enjoy this festival. 

Support provided by the Rotary Club of Barrie 
results in over 300 volunteer hours required to 
successfully run the event every year.  

The revenues generated by the Spring Tonic 
Maple Syrup festival are split between the 
Rotary Club of Barrie and NVCA. 

Upcoming Events 

PA/PD Day 

Camp Tiffin encourages outdoor exploration, 

guided excursions in the forest fueled by 
student interest. Every day will be guided by 
student inquiry, seasonal changes, and weather 

and program availability.  

Date: June 7 and 28, 2024 from 9:00 a.m. – 

4:00 p.m.  

Location: Tiffin Centre for Conservation 



 

PO Box 497, Dundalk, ON N0C 1B0   dundalkfair.com   facebook.com/Dundalkfairsociety Instagram @dundalkagsociety 

February 10, 2024 

Dear Sponsor, 

Our annual fall fair will take place on September 6-8, 2024 at the Dundalk Fairgrounds. Last year, we had an amazing turn 

out and are hoping to build on this momentum.  

The Dundalk Agricultural Society has been supporting the community since 1855. We host several other events throughout 

the year, but our fall fair is the highlight and by far the largest event of them all. The fair is a community -minded, not-for-

profit event run by a group of dedicated volunteers who strive to host an entertaining and educational weekend for all ages. 

The Dundalk Fall Fair is the longest running annual event in our community. With over 20 classes of exhibitor categories, 

including special sections for kids, youth and seniors, everyone has the opportunity to display and exhibit a multitude of 

items from horticulture, field crops, arts and crafts, baking, sewing, and quilting. Other popular features of our fair include 
the 4-H club shows, the truck and tractor pull, the demolition derby, and the Fair Ambassador Program.  

Please help us to maintain these traditions and enhance our fall fair experience. We welcome businesses and individuals to 

support our efforts through our sponsorship program. The cost of organizing and promoting successful events is forever 

increasing, thus, our reliance upon generous donations grows each year. We recognize that sponsors are the major 

contributors to the success and future of our fair. Your support and assistance is greatly appreciated. In return for your 

financial support, we provide as much promotion and reward as we possibly can. See the sponsorship levels below:   

 
 

With sincerest thanks, 

The Dundalk Agricultural Society 

Andrea Riddell, President & Jessica Cook, DDAS Director/Sponsorship  

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
ACT 1JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



2024 SPONSORSHIP FORM 

Company Name: ______________________________________________ 

Name of Contact: ______________________________________________ 

Address: _____________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Telephone Number: ____________________________________________ 

Email address: ________________________________________________ 

We/I wish to be considered a (please check off): 

* Diamond ($750.00 +) _______     

* Gold ($300.00 - $749.00) _____ 

* Silver ($100.00 - $299.00) _____ 

* Bronze ($99.00 and under) _____ 

Form of donation: Cheque or E-transfer to dundalkagsoc@gmail.com  

(For e-transfer please put in the comments name of business to allocate the sponsorship to for recognition)  

 

Please complete this registration form and email or mail your donation payable to:   

‘Dundalk Agricultural Society’ 

PO Box 497, Dundalk, ON.  N0C 1B0 

If we could please receive your donation by May 1st to ensure that it gets put into our fair book.  Any questions please 

call/text or email Jessica Cook at 226-923-0247 

 

PLEASE SPECIFY HOW YOU WOULD LIKE YOUR DONATION ALLOCATED. 

General Fair $______  4-H Invitational $______  Ambassador Program $______ 

Other (please specify) $________________________________ 

_____ Yes, I will provide a sign/banner (3’x3’ or under) for the fair committee to erect on fair weekend (only applies to Gold and 

Diamond Sponsors).  

______ I would like to receive a Charitable Receipt for my donation.   

Thank you very much for your support!  



 

The Corporation of 

THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 

157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

 
REPORT TO COUNCIL 

 
TO:   MAYOR WHITE AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 
 
FROM:  DENISE B. HOLMES, AMCT, CAO/CLERK 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSERVATION AND DEMAND MANAGEMENT PLAN 
   2024-2029 
 
MEETING DATE: JUNE 20, 2024 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Township of Melancthon Conservation and Demand Management Plan 2024 - 
2029 be received and approved and that it be used as a basis for the required Province 
of Ontario reporting in response to the Electricity Act, Ontario Regulation 507/18.  And 
further that it be used for future energy conservation measures and sustainability 
initiatives as identified therein being undertaken subject to the annual approval of 
capital and operating budgets. 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to fulfil the Township’s reporting requirements under 
Electricity Act, Ontario Regulation 507/18. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
The Township’s Conservation and Demand Management Plan was prepared to respond 
to the Electricity Act, Ontario Regulation 507/18 which requires all public agencies to 
prepare a five-year Conservation and Demand Management Plan.  The Plan was last 
prepared in 2019 and expires July 1, 2024.  The Conservation and Demand 
Management Plan lists the annual energy consumption and greenhouse emissions, as 
well as, a description of previous, current and proposed measures for reducing the 
Township’s energy consumption and a forecast of expected results. 
 
FINANCIAL 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this Report. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Denise B. Holmes, CAO/Clerk 

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
GB 16.2.2JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



Page | 0 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Township of Melancthon: 

Energy Reporting and 
Conservation and Demand Management Plan Report 

2024-2029 
 



Page | 1 
 

 

 

 Page | 1 

 

 

The Municipal Corporation of the Township of Melancthon 

Conservation and Demand Management Plan Report 

 
 

 



Page | 2 
 

Introduction and Background 

This Report presents a comprehensive Conservation and Demand Management (CDM) 

Plan for the Township of Melancthon. The CDM Plan outlines strategies and measures to 

reduce energy consumption, optimize energy use, and improve overall energy efficiency. 

By implementing this CDM Plan, the Township of Melancthon aims to achieve significant 

cost savings, environmental benefits, and enhanced operational efficiency. 

The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon, over the last several years, 

investigated several initiatives that include environmental planning, sustainability and 

conservation management, with the intention to further improve the Municipalities 

environmental record and enhance accountability to residents.  The Township is 

committed to following the direction of the CDM Plan and will take the necessary steps 

to ensure the CDM Plan’s success through continual review. 

 

Council Commitment to Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan 

The Township of Melancthon is committed to reducing its energy consumption and 

managing its energy demand to achieve its sustainability goals. This Report outlines the 

progress in implementing its Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan and 

provides recommendations for further action. 

Vision and Goals 

The Township of Melancthon will continue to reduce our total energy consumption 

through efficient use of energy and resources while maintaining an efficient and 

effective level of service for the general public.   Energy consumables include electricity, 

oil, propane, gas and diesel.  This vision can be achieved through operational 

efficiencies and encouraging energy awareness and knowledge within the municipality. 

 

 

 

 



Page | 3 
 

Overall Target and Goals 

Facilities included in the base year reporting include the Municipal Office, the Public 

Works Building and the Horning’s Mills Community Hall. 

Based on the energy audits that have been completed on all the buildings, the 

Township of Melancthon is continuing to complete all retrofits that can be done.  We are 

committed to maintaining our energy efficiency and will strive to rectify deficiencies as 

they become apparent. Goals that we will continue to strive for are the following: 

 Improve the energy efficiency of our facilities by utilizing best practices to reduce 

our operating costs, energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions. 

 Implement an energy management program to reduce consumption, achieve 

cost savings, and meet greenhouse gas emission targets. 

 Create a culture of conservation. 

 Increase the comfort and safety of staff and patrons of the Township of 

Melancthon’s facilities. 

 Improve the reliability of the Township of Melancthon’s equipment and reduce 

maintenance. 

 Ensure energy efficiency throughout all municipal facilities. 

 Review energy commodity procurement options to take advantage of available 

resources and funding for energy projects. 

 Continue with Staff and Council awareness around energy efficiency to include 

communicating successes to both internal and external stakeholders. 

 Identify and seize renewable energy generation opportunities. 

 Energy Management to form part of the Township’s operational decision making. 

 

 

 

 

 



Page | 4 
 

Ontario Regulation 507/18: 

Ontario Regulation 507/18 was established to encourage municipalities to better 

understand their energy usage, develop conservation plans and to provide energy 

savings.  The intention of the plan is to create projects to address energy management 

initiatives.  The Township of Melancthon has been committed to energy awareness to 

be mindful of energy consumption, decrease operating costs and to set an example for 

the community.  It is our intention to enhance the Township’s commitments as projects 

develop through Council’s approval. 

 

The following are members that we have appointed to act as departmental energy 

efficiency team: 

 CAO/Clerk 

 Treasurer/Deputy-Clerk 

 Administrative Assistants 

 Public Works Superintendent  

Continuous meetings will allow for review of the Energy Management Plan.  An annual 

meeting will allow for the identification of new measures. 

 

Staff Training and Communication 

 Communication programs:  Communication strategy that creates and sustains 

awareness of energy efficiency as a priority among all employees and conveys 

our commitment and progress to our stakeholders. 

 Energy Awareness Training:  Develop and deliver training focused on the 

energy use and conservation opportunities associated with employee’ job 

functions wherever possible. 

 Energy Skills Training:  Develop and deliver skills training for operators, 

maintainers and other employees that have “hands on:” involvement with energy 



Page | 5 
 

consuming systems in order to improve the team’s ability to achieve energy 

efficiency improvements. 

 

Portfolio Description 

The Township has a small inventory of buildings.  The following portfolio description 

provides consistent with Ontario Regulation 507/18 reporting requirement. 

 

Municipal Building & Council Chambers 

157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario   

The Municipal Building is a 3870 square foot building owned by the Township of 

Melancthon.  The building was built in 1993 at 2700 square feet and an addition added 

in 2015 to provide the municipality with extra administration spaces making it 3870 

square feet. The single-story facility consists of a kitchen, staff offices, Council 

Chambers, meeting spaces, washrooms and storage vaults.  The Office is heated by 

propane. Numerous energy efficiency measures are present in the facility.  The facility is 

open to the public from 8:30 am – 12:00 pm and 1:00pm - 4:30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

 

Public Works Building 

157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario 

The Operations Yard is a year-round public works operations facility consisting of two 

main sections; office space, and six truck bays that house a portion of the fleet of 

maintenance. The operations yard has another building with three extra truck bays.  

Heating is provided to the Yard building with radiant overhead heating structures by 

propane.  Operational hours during the winter months can be affected by variations of 

weather conditions resulting in potentially 24-hour operation of the facility.  This facility 

is not open to the general public. 

 



Page | 6 
 

Horning’s Mills Community Hall 

11 Mill Street, Melancthon, ON 

The Horning’s Mills Community Hall is a two-storey building for the purpose of holding 

community events and is also available for the public to rent for private events.  It was 

built in 1938 and has had many upgrades including windows and insulation. It is 

approximately 4,500 square feet and is heated by natural gas.  

 

Energy Supply 

The types of energy used in the operation of the Township of Melancthon facilities and 

delivery of services include: 

 Electricity – provided by Hydo One. 

 Natural Gas – provided by Enbridge. 

 Propane – provided by Sparlings Propane. 

 

Summary of Current Energy Consumption 

Energy consumption baselines have been established in conformance with the 

Regulation using 2021 data. 

 

Previous and Current Environmental and Energy- Related Initiatives  

The Township of Melancthon is developing and implementing polices relating to the 

environment and energy. 

 A diverse and sustainable economy with the updating of the Official Plan. 

 A thriving natural environment that is a valued community asset to be protected, 

maintained and enjoyed through our naturalized zones in parks and open spaces. 

 A philosophy of energy conservation and demand management through the 

energy conservation measures for the facilities.  



Page | 7 
 

 

Our Evaluation 

The results of our Conservation and Demand Management Plan (CDM) are evaluated 

regularly by monitoring our progress towards our targeted performance, and by 

reporting the findings to our various stakeholders.  We will continue to review and 

update the CDM Plan as needed.  The CDM Plan will be in effect for a maximum of 5 

years.  The plan will be amended accordingly should a facility use change.  

 

Monitoring Progress 

Ongoing monitoring of consumption will be maintained as a component of our 

management information system. 

 

Energy Conservation Measures (ECMs) 

Assessments for all our facilities were completed.  A number of common and 

categorized Energy Conservation Measures were identified since the last Conservation 

and Demand Management Plan Report.  The below table indicates what measures have 

been identifies for each facility. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page | 8 
 

Year Location Measure Description 

2019 Municipal Office Electricity Replace furnace 
 Garage Electricity Replace energy 

efficient light bulbs 
    
    
2020 Garage Electricity Replace energy 

efficient light bulbs 
    
    
2021 Municipal Office Paper reduction iPads for Council 
 Garage Electricity Replace shop heater 
 Horning’s Mills 

Community Hall 
Electricity Replace roof vents 

    
    
2022 Garage Electricity Replace roof 
    
    
2023 Municipal Office Water reduction 

& Electricity 
New dishwasher 

 Municipal Office Water reduction Replace faucets pipes 
& sinks 

 Municipal Office Electricity Replace hot water 
heater 

 Horning’s Mills 
Community Hall 

Electricity Chimney removal 

 Horning’s Mills 
Community Hall 

Electricity Replace hot water 
heater 

 Horning’s Mills 
Community Hall 

Electricity Replace AC unit 

 Horning’s Mills 
Community Hall 

Electricity Light Smart 
Thermostat installation 

 Garage Electricity Replaced Lights on 
Shed 

    
    
2024 Municipal Office  New energy efficient 

fridge 
 Horning’s Mills 

Community Hall 
Electric Stucco exterior building 

    
    

 



 

The Corporation of 

THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 

157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 
 

TO:   MAYOR WHITE AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 
 
FROM:  DENISE B. HOLMES, AMCT, CAO/CLERK 
 
SUBJECT:  STRATEGIC PLANNING PROGRESS REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE: JUNE 20, 2024 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Attached to this Memorandum is the Melancthon Township Strategic Planning Progress 
Report 2024 prepared by Town Hall Consulting. 
 
The Planning Progress Report provides a brief update on the status of the Township’s 
Strategic Plan.  The Report outlines the key findings as a result of feedback received 
from the Community and provides for the next steps in the process.  
 
This Report is going to Council first for review, and then it will be posted on the 
Township’s Website, shared on social media (Facebook) and sent directly to 
participants of the Open House who signed the Sign-In Sheet with their contact 
information. 
 
The final Strategic Plan will be presented by Town Hall Consulting in the coming weeks. 

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
GB 16.2.3JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text



2024

Strategic
Planning
Progress
Report 

T O W N  H A L L  C O N S U L T I N G  |  T O W N S H I P  O F  M E L A N C T H O N



Dear valued community member, 

It is with great pleasure that we present to you
our progress report, a brief update on the status
of our strategic plan. Your active involvement in
our strategic planning process has been
instrumental in shaping this report. Through your
valuable contributions, including key findings
from the open house, we have been able to
gather crucial community feedback that has
significantly influenced our strategic planning
process.

This report not only outlines the progress made
thus far but also provides an overview of the
strategic planning process itself, highlighting the
various stages we have navigated and where we
currently stand in this journey. Your insights,
feedback, and ideas have played a pivotal role in
refining our goals and strategies, ensuring that
they align with the needs and aspirations of our
community.

We are excited to share the milestones we have
achieved and the direction we are heading, all of
which have been shaped by your invaluable input.
Thank you for your continued support and
collaboration as we work together to realize our
shared vision.

Warm regards,
Town Hall Consulting + Melancthon Staff &
CouncilTH
A

N
K

  Y
O

U

T O W N  H A L L  C O N S U L T I N G  |  M E L A N C T H O N  S T R A T E G I C  P L A N  P R O G R E S S  R E P O R T 0 2



Road and Public Safety

01 Road Safety: Concerns about road safety, particularly speeding
and the need for more enforcement.
Speed Cameras: Suggestions to install speed cameras to address
speeding issues.
Mennonite Safety: Ensuring the safety of the Mennonite
community.

Staff Development and Retention02 Staff Development: Highlighting the importance of staff training
to enhance customer service levels for the community.
Staff Retention: Reinforcing the need to retain skilled staff

Community Engagement & Communications03 Quarterly Newsletter: Suggestions for a quarterly newsletter to
improve community communication.
Community Engagement: Enhancing communication to boost
community involvement.

KEY FINDINGS

0 3

THE FEEDBACK RECEIVED FROM OUR COMMUNITY MEMBERS HAS
BEEN TRULY INVALUABLE. BELOW, WE HAVE OUTLINED SOME OF
THE MAIN TAKEAWAYS THAT WERE CONSISTENTLY HIGHLIGHTED AS
CRUCIAL BY COMMUNITY MEMBERS DURING OUR COMMUNITY
ENGAGEMENT EFFORTS. THESE KEY FINDINGS REPRESENT THE
COLLECTIVE VOICE OF OUR COMMUNITY AND HAVE BEEN
INSTRUMENTAL IN SHAPING THE PRIORITIES AND FOCUS AREAS OF
OUR MUNICIPALITY'S STRATEGIC PLAN.

T O W N  H A L L  C O N S U L T I N G  |  M E L A N C T H O N  S T R A T E G I C  P L A N  P R O G R E S S  R E P O R T



Planning and Development

04 Control Over Planning: Concerns about planning being controlled
at the county level and by the conservation authority.
Agricultural Infrastructure: Facilitating the construction of
buildings for agricultural purposes.
Good Placemaking & Complete Communities: Emphasis on well-
designed public spaces and integrated communities.
Access to Green Spaces: Improving access to parks and natural
areas.
Integration with Official and Master Plans: Ensuring strategic
consistency across different planning documents.
Preservation of Natural Heritage/Wetlands: Protecting natural
heritage and wetlands.

Operations and Governance

05 Customer Service: Improving customer service to better meet
community needs.
Governance: Focus on operational efficiency and good governance
practices.

Community Vitality06 Smart, Livable Communities: Planning for communities that are
less dependent on cars and more sustainable.
Diversity: Promoting diversity within the community.
Tourism: Developing tourism as a potential area of growth.
Health Care: Ensuring access to healthcare services.

KEY FINDINGS

0 4T O W N  H A L L  C O N S U L T I N G  |  M E L A N C T H O N  S T R A T E G I C  P L A N  P R O G R E S S  R E P O R T

Overall, the engagement responses underscore the diverse perspectives within the
community, highlighting the importance of improving road safety, enhancing
staff development and retention, and boosting community engagement and
communication.



0 5

YOUR VOICE MATTERS. 

NEXT STEPS

This document offers a glimpse into the remarkable feedback we've
received from you, our community members.  The previous page outlined
key takeaways, providing a summary of the most prominent suggestions.
However, we want to emphasize that every suggestion, idea, and
comment shared has been heard and is immensely valued.

Thank you once again for your active engagement and invaluable
contributions to shaping our collective future. This Strategic Planning
process is an ongoing journey—a tool for your organization to monitor its
progress and enhancements over time. This section outlines your strategy
for continuing the good work done so far.

T O W N  H A L L  C O N S U L T I N G  |  M E L A N C T H O N  S T R A T E G I C  P L A N  P R O G R E S S  R E P O R T

Workshop #1 Vision, Mission, & Values

Workshop #2: Strategic Priorities & BHAG

Understanding the Township of Melancthon01
02
03

In this phase, we use your valuable feedback to revise the
strategic plan, ensuring it meets the community's needs
and guides the future of Melancthon accurately.

Revision & Completion of Strategic Plan

05

Draft Strategic Plan & Community Engagement04

Implementation & Performance Tracking06
6-Month Health Check07



TO
W

N
SH

IP
 O

F 
M

E
LA

N
C

TH
O

N

We thank you for your continued support
in our efforts to contribute to the growth
of Melancthon through this strategic
planning process. 

QUEST IONS?

Township of Melancthon

157101 Highway 10
Melancthon, ON L9V 2E6

Phone: 519-925-5525

0 6

Town Hall Consulting Inc.

Web: 
www.townhallconsulting.ca 

Email:  
consultant@townhallconsulting.ca

T O W N  H A L L  C O N S U L T I N G  |  M E L A N C T H O N  S T R A T E G I C  P L A N  P R O G R E S S  R E P O R T



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. 
905-272-3600 

May 16, 2024 info@watsonecon.ca 

 

2024 Development Charge Background 

Study 

Township of Melancthon 

________________________ 

For Public Circulation and Comment 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table of Contents 

Page 

Executive Summary ....................................................................................................... i 

1. Introduction ...................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.1 Purpose of this Document ....................................................................... 1-1 
1.2 Summary of the Process ......................................................................... 1-2 
1.3 Changes to the Development Charges Act, 1997 ................................... 1-3 

1.3.1 Bill 108: More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 .......................... 1-4 
1.3.2 Bill 138: Plan to Build Ontario Together Act, 2019 ..................... 1-4 
1.3.3 Bill 197: COVID-19 Economic Recovery Act, 2020 .................... 1-4 
1.3.4 Bill 213: Better for People, Smarter for Business Act, 2020 ....... 1-6 
1.3.5 Bill 109: More Homes for Everyone Act, 2022 ........................... 1-7 
1.3.6 Bill 23: More Homes Built Fast Act, 2022 ................................... 1-7 
1.3.7 Bill 97: Helping Homebuyers, Protecting Tenants Act, 2023 .... 1-10 
1.3.8 Bill 134: Affordable Homes and Good Jobs Act, 2023 ............. 1-10 
1.3.9 Bill 185: Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 2024 ..... 1-13 

2. Township of Melancthon Current D.C. Policy ............................................... 2-1 
2.1 Schedule of Charges .............................................................................. 2-1 
2.2 Services Covered ................................................................................... 2-1 
2.3 Timing of D.C. Calculation and Payment ................................................ 2-2 
2.4 Approvals for Development ..................................................................... 2-2 
2.5 Indexing .................................................................................................. 2-2 
2.6 Redevelopment Allowance ..................................................................... 2-3 
2.7 Exemptions ............................................................................................. 2-3 
2.8 Current Development Charges ............................................................... 2-3 

3. Anticipated Development in the Township of Melancthon .......................... 3-1 
3.1 Requirement of the Act ........................................................................... 3-1 
3.2 Basis of Population, Household and Non-Residential Gross Floor 

Area Forecast ......................................................................................... 3-1 
3.3 Summary of Growth Forecast ................................................................. 3-2 



Table of Contents (Cont’d)  

Page 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

4. The Approach to the Calculation of the Charge ........................................... 4-1 
4.1 Introduction ............................................................................................. 4-1 
4.2 Services Potentially Involved .................................................................. 4-1 
4.3 Increase in the Need for Service ............................................................. 4-1 
4.4 Local Service Policy ................................................................................ 4-6 
4.5 Capital Forecast ...................................................................................... 4-6 
4.6 Treatment of Credits ............................................................................... 4-7 
4.7 Class of Services .................................................................................... 4-7 
4.8 Existing Reserve Funds .......................................................................... 4-8 
4.9 Deductions .............................................................................................. 4-9 

4.9.1 Reduction Require by Level of Service Ceiling .......................... 4-9 
4.9.2 Reduction for Uncommitted Excess Capacity .......................... 4-10 
4.9.3 Reduction for Benefit to Existing Development ........................ 4-10 
4.9.4 Reduction for Anticipated Grants, Subsidies, and Other 

Contributions ............................................................................ 4-12 
4.9.5 Municipal-wide vs. Area-Specific ............................................. 4-12 
4.9.6 Allocation of Development ....................................................... 4-12 
4.9.7 Asset Management .................................................................. 4-12 

5. D.C. Eligible Cost Analysis by Service .......................................................... 5-2 
5.1 Introduction ............................................................................................. 5-2 
5.2 Service Levels and 10-Year Capital Costs for Township-wide D.C. 

Services Calculation ............................................................................... 5-2 
5.2.1 Services Related to a Highway .................................................. 5-2 
5.2.2 Fire Protection Services ............................................................. 5-3 
5.2.3 Parks and Recreation Services .................................................. 5-4 
5.2.4 Library Services ......................................................................... 5-5 
5.2.5 Growth-Related Studies ............................................................. 5-6 

6. D.C. Calculation ............................................................................................... 6-1 

7. D.C. Policy Recommendations and D.C. By-law Rules ................................ 7-1 
7.1 Introduction ............................................................................................. 7-1 
7.2 D.C. By-law Structure ............................................................................. 7-2 
7.3 D.C. By-law Rules ................................................................................... 7-2 

7.3.1 Payment in any Particular Case ................................................. 7-2 
7.3.2 Determination of the Amount of the Charge ............................... 7-2 
7.3.3 Application to Redevelopment of Land (Demolition and 

Conversion) ................................................................................ 7-3 
7.3.4 Exemptions ................................................................................ 7-4 
7.3.5 Mandatory Phasing In ................................................................ 7-5 
7.3.6 Timing of Collection ................................................................... 7-5 



Table of Contents (Cont’d)  

Page 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

7.3.7 Indexing ..................................................................................... 7-6 
7.3.8 D.C. Spatial Applicability ............................................................ 7-6 

7.4 Other D.C. By-law Provisions ................................................................. 7-8 
7.4.1 Categories of Services for Reserve Fund and Credit 

Purposes .................................................................................... 7-8 
7.4.2 Categories for Class of Service for Reserve Fund and 

Credit Purposes ......................................................................... 7-8 
7.4.3 By-law In-force Date .................................................................. 7-8 
7.4.4 Minimum Interest Rate Paid on Refunds and Charged for 

Inter-Reserve Fund Borrowing ................................................... 7-8 
7.5 Other Recommendations ........................................................................ 7-9 

8. By-law Implementation ................................................................................... 8-1 
8.1 Public Consultation Process ................................................................... 8-1 

8.1.1 Introduction ................................................................................ 8-1 
8.1.2 Public Meeting of Council........................................................... 8-1 
8.1.3 Other Consultation Activity ......................................................... 8-1 
8.1.4 Anticipated Impact of the Charge on Development .................... 8-2 

8.2 Implementation Requirements ................................................................ 8-3 
8.2.1 Introduction ................................................................................ 8-3 
8.2.2 Notice of Passage ...................................................................... 8-3 
8.2.3 By-law Pamphlet ........................................................................ 8-3 
8.2.4 Appeals ...................................................................................... 8-4 
8.2.5 Complaints ................................................................................. 8-4 
8.2.6 Credits ....................................................................................... 8-5 
8.2.7 Front-Ending Agreements .......................................................... 8-5 
8.2.8 Severance and Subdivision Agreement Conditions ................... 8-5 

Appendix A  Background Information on Residential and Non-Residential 
Growth Forecast ............................................................................................. A-1 

Appendix B  Level of Service ................................................................................... B-1 

Appendix C  Long-Term Capital and Operating Cost Examination ...................... C-1 

Appendix D  D.C. Reserve Fund Policy ................................................................... D-1 

Appendix E  Local Service Policy .............................................................................E-1 

Appendix F  Asset Management Plan ....................................................................... F-1 

Appendix G Proposed D.C. By-law .......................................................................... G-1 
 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

List of Acronyms and Abbreviations  

Acronym Full Description of Acronym 

A.M.P. Asset management plan 

CANSIM Canadian Socio-Economic Information Management System 
(Statistics Canada) 

D.C. Development charge 

D.C.A. Development Charges Act, 1997, as amended 

F.I.R. Financial Information Return 

G.F.A. Gross floor area 

LPAT Local Planning Appeal Tribunal 

l.m Linear Meters 

N.F.P.O.W. No fixed place of work 

O.L.T. Ontario Land Tribunal 

O.P.A. Official Plan Amendment 

O. Reg. Ontario Regulation 

P.O.A. Provincial Offences Act 

P.P.U. Persons per unit 

S.D.U. Single detached unit 

S.W.M. Stormwater management 

sq.ft. square foot 

sq.m square metre 



 

 

Executive Summary 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE i 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Executive Summary 

(a) The report provided herein represents the Development Charges (D.C.) 

Background Study for the Township of Melancthon (Township) required by the 

Development Charges Act, 1997, as amended (D.C.A.).  This report has been 

prepared in accordance with the methodology required under the D.C.A.  The 

contents include the following: 

• Chapter 1 – Introduction and overview of the legislative requirements of 

the D.C.A.; 

• Chapter 2 – Review of the Township’s present D.C. policies; 

• Chapter 3 – Summary of the anticipated residential and non-residential 

development for the Township; 

• Chapter 4 – Approach to calculating the D.C.; 

• Chapter 5 – Review of the historical level of service, increase in capital 

needs, identification of future capital costs to service the anticipated 

development, and related deductions and allocations; 

• Chapter 6 – Calculation of the D.C.s; 

• Chapter 7 – D.C. policy recommendations and rules; and 

• Chapter 8 – By-law implementation. 

(b) D.C.s provide for the recovery of growth-related capital expenditures from new 

development.  The D.C.A. is the statutory basis to impose these charges.  The 

methodology required to determine the charges is detailed in Chapter 4; a 

simplified summary is provided below. 

1) Identify amount, type, and location of the anticipated development; 

2) Identify the increase in need for service to accommodate growth; 

3) Identify capital costs to provide services to meet the needs; 

4) Deduct: 

o Grants, subsidies, and other contributions; 

o Benefit to existing development; 

o Amounts in excess of 15-year historical service calculation; and 

o D.C. reserve funds (where applicable); 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE ii 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

5) Net capital costs are then allocated between residential and non-residential 

development types; and 

6) Net costs divided by the anticipated development to provide the D.C. 

(c) Subsequent to the passage of the Township’s 2019 D.C. by-law (By-law 37-

2019), a number of amendments to the D.C.A. have taken place.  These 

changes have been incorporated throughout the report and in the draft by-law, as 

necessary.  The legislative amendment to the D.C.A. include the following 

(details of each Act are provided in Chapter 1 of this report):  

• Bill 108: More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 

• Bill 138: Plan to Build Ontario Together Act, 2019 

• Bill 197: COVID-19 Economic Recovery Act, 2020 

• Bill 213: Better for People, Smarter for Business Act, 2020 

• Bill 109: More Homes for Everyone Act, 2022 

• Bill 23: More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022 

• Bill 97: Helping Homebuyers, Protecting Tenants Act, 2023 

• Bill 134: Affordable Homes and Good Jobs Act, 2023 

A summary of some of the amendments are outlined below: 

• Limiting D.C. eligible services; 

• Historical level of service calculation extended to a 15-year average; 

• Capital cost definition revised to remove studies, and prescribe services 

for which land or an interest in land will be restricted (no services currently 

prescribed); 

• Mandatory phase-in of a D.C., as follows: 

o Year 1 – 80% of the maximum charge; 

o Year 2 – 85% of the maximum charge; 

o Year 3 – 90% of the maximum charge; 

o Year 4 – 95% of the maximum charge; and  

o Year 5 to expiry – 100% of the maximum charge; 

• Annual installment payments for rental and institutional development, in 

six equal payments commencing at occupancy; 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE iii 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

• D.C. amount for development occurring within two years of a site plan or 

zoning by-law amendment planning approval is determined based on the 

charges in effect on the date of planning application; 

• Maximum interest rate for installments and the determination of D.C.s for 

eligible site plan and zoning by-law amendment applications set at the 

average prime rate plus 1%; 

• D.C. exemptions for additional residential units (up to a third dwelling unit); 

• Statutory D.C. exemptions for affordable units, attainable units, and 

affordable inclusionary zoning units; 

• Statutory D.C. exemption for non-profit housing; 

• Statutory D.C. exemption for universities receiving ongoing funding from 

the Province; 

• Mandatory D.C. discount for rental housing, based on the number of 

bedrooms; 

• Term of a D.C. by-law extended from 5 years to 10 years; 

• Municipalities are required to spend or allocate at least 60% of their D.C. 

reserve fund at the beginning of the year for water, wastewater, and 

services related to a highway; and 

• Additional requirements related to the annual D.C. reserve fund 

Treasurer’s statement. 

It is noted, that on April 10, 2024, Bill 185, the Cutting Red Tape to Build More 

Homes Act, 2024, was introduced, this Act proposes additional amendments to 

the D.C.A., including: 

• Reinstate studies as an eligible capital cost; 

• Remove the mandatory phase-in of charges within D.C. by-law; 

• Allow minor amendments to D.C. by-laws concerning by-law expiry dates, 

removal of the mandatory phase-in, and inclusion of capital costs for 

studies; 

• Reduce the time period governing the D.C. rate freeze for site plan and 

zoning by-law amendment planning applications; and 

• Modernize D.C. public notice requirements. 

If Bill 185 is not in effect at the time Council considers the new D.C. by-law 

though this process, then upon enactment, the Township intends to undertake 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE iv 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

the minor D.C. by-law amendments to remove the mandatory phase-in of 

charges, and include the capital cost of growth-related studies, including the 

costs of D.C. background studies. 

(d) The growth forecast (provided in Chapter 3), summarized in Table ES-1, on 

which the D.C. is based, projects the following population, housing, and non-

residential employment and associated gross floor area for the 10-year forecast 

period (mid-2024 to mid-2034). 

Table ES-1 
Township of Melancthon 

Summary of Anticipated Township-Wide Residential and Non-Residential Development 

Measure 
10 Year 

mid-2024 to mid-2034 

(Net) Population Increase 268 

(Gross) Population Increase in New Households 318 

Residential Unit Increase 98 

Non-Residential Employment Increase 35 

Non-Residential Gross Floor Area Increase 

(sq.ft.) 
39,400 

(e) Table ES-2 includes a summary of the D.C. eligible capital costs for each eligible 

service arising from the anticipated development.  These capital costs are 

provided in detail in Chapter 5.  The D.C.A. requires that the background study 

include a summary of the gross and net capital costs to be incurred over the term 

of the by-law (i.e., 10-years) for existing and future development.  This summary 

is provided by service in Table 6-3 of the D.C. Background Study. 

In total, gross capital costs of approximately $5.42 million are forecast for the 10-

year by-law term.  These capital costs have been identified through the 

Township’s 10-year capital budget and forecast, the Roads Management Plan, 

discussions with Township staff.  Additionally, for Fire Protection Services and 

Library Services, the capital program includes Melancthon’s proportionate share 

of growth capital needs identified by the joint service boards.  Approximately 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE v 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

$670,000 in capital costs relate to the needs of growth beyond the forecast 

period.  These costs are not included in the D.C. calculation and will be 

considered in future D.C. studies.  Other deductions in the determination of the 

D.C. recoverable costs include: 

o $1.72 million related to the costs of services funded by other municipalities 

for shared services; 

o $1.41 million related to the portion of capital projects that will benefit the 

existing development; and 

o $50,000 in anticipated grants, subsidies, and other contributions towards 

the capital costs. 

The resultant net D.C. recoverable costs included in the calculations totals 

$1,577,024, of which $1,434,554 is attributed to the forecast residential development 

and $142,470 allocated to the forecast non-residential development. 

ES-2 
Township of Melancthon  

Summary of Costs Anticipated During the Term of the By-law 

Description Value (2024$) 

Total gross expenditures planned over the next ten years $5,423,900 

Less: benefit to existing development $1,410,276 

Less: share of services to be funded by partner municipalities $1,717,600 

Less: post planning period benefit $669,000 

Less: grants, subsidies, and other contributions $50,000 

Net costs to be recovered from D.C.s. over the term of the 

by-law 
$1,577,024 

(f) At present, the Township imposes D.C.s on residential and non-residential 

developments in accordance with By-Law 37-2019.  The Township is undertaking 

a D.C. public process and anticipates passing a new D.C. by-law for each service 

identified in the D.C. Background Study.  The statutory public meeting has been 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE vi 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

set for June 6, 2024, with adoption of the D.C. by-law anticipated for July 18, 

2024. 

This report provides the calculations of the residential and non-residential 

charges to recover the capital costs of the anticipated increase in need for 

services arising from the forecast development (summarized in Schedule ES-3).  

D.C.s for all of the services listed below are calculated on a uniform Township-

wide basis for the 10-year forecast period (2024-2033): 

• Services Related to a Highway; 

• Fire Protection Services; 

• Parks and Recreation Services; and 

• Library Services. 

(g) Table ES-3 provides the calculated D.C.s for residential and non-residential 

developments by service.   

The calculated D.C. for a single detached residential dwelling unit with 4 or more 

bedrooms within the Township is $15,252.  The calculated D.C. for non-

residential development within the Township is $3.61 per sq.ft. of gross floor 

area. 

(h) In addition to the calculated charges for the services identified above, Bill 185, 

the Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 2024 proposes to allow studies 

to be includes as a capital cost eligible for recovery through D.C.s.  As such, staff 

have reviewed the growth-related study needs for the 10-year forecast period, 

and a D.C calculation has been undertaken in anticipation of the legislative 

change.  The calculated D.C. for costs of growth studies would add $606/unit to 

the proposed D.C.s for a single detached residential dwelling unit, and 

$0.19/sq.ft. of GFA for non-residential development.  If Bill 185 is enacted prior to 

Council’s adoption of the D.C. by-law herein, these additional costs should be 

added to the charges and included in the proposed D.C. by-law for consideration. 

(i) At present, the D.C.A. requires that the charges in the by-law be phased-in over 

a 5-year period.  The charges provided herein conform with the requirements of 

the D.C.A, however the phase-in maybe removed prior to by-law consideration 

by Council if Bill 185, the Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 2024, is 

enacted prior to the time of by-law passage. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE i 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table ES-3 
Township of Melancthon 

Calculated Schedule of Development Charges 

 

Single and 

Semi-Detached 

Dwelling

Other 

Multiples

Apartments - 2 

Bedrooms +

Apartments - 

Bachelor and 1 

Bedroom

Wind Trubines
(per sq.ft. of Gross 

Floor Area)

Township-Wide Services/Class of Service:

Services Related to a Highway 5,458               4,764              3,572               1,776               5,458               1.77

Fire Protection Services 3,045               2,658              1,993               991                  3,045               0.99

Parks and Recreation Services 6,448               5,628              4,220               2,098               0.81

Library Services 301                  263                197                  98                    0.04

Total Township-Wide Services $15,252 $13,313 $9,982 $4,963 $8,503 $3.61

Township-Wide Class of Service*

Growth Studies 606                  529                397                  197                  0.19

Total Township-Wide Class of Service $606 $529 $397 $197 $0 $0.19

Grand Total Township-Wide Services & Class of Service $15,858 $13,842 $10,379 $5,160 $8,503 $3.80

*Potential D.C. for Growth Studies to be considered if Bill 185 is enacted

RESIDENTIAL 

Service/Class of Service

NON-RESIDENTIAL



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE i 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

(j) Tables ES-4 and ES-5 provide a comparison of the D.C.s currently imposed in 

the Township and the calculated charges herein.  These comparisons are 

provided for a single-detached residential dwelling unit and non-residential 

development on a per sq.ft. of gross floor basis, respectively 

Table ES-4 
Township of Melancthon 

Single-Detached Residential Dwelling Unit D.C. Comparison 

 

Table ES-5 
Township of Melancthon 

Non-Residential D.C. Comparison per sq.ft. of Gross Floor Area 

 

(k) Chapter 7 herein, provides the D.C. by-law policy recommendations and rules 

that govern the imposition of the charges.  Council will consider the findings and 

recommendations provided herein and, in conjunction with public input, approve 

Service/Class of Service Current Calculated

Township-Wide Services:

Services Related to a Highway 2,688            5,458            

Fire Protection Services 1,533            3,045            

Policing Services 16                 -                

Parks and Recreation Services* 3,135            6,448            

Library Services 244               301               

Total Township-Wide Services $7,616 $15,252

Growth Studies 2,146            606               

Total Township-Wide Services/Classes $9,762 $15,858

* Includes both Indoor and Outdoor Recreation Services in current by-law.

Service/Class of Service Current Calculated

Township-Wide Services:

Services Related to a Highway 2.03              1.77              

Fire Protection Services 1.14              0.99              

Policing Services 0.01              -                

Parks and Recreation Services* 0.87              0.81              

Library Services 0.06              0.04              

Total Township-Wide Services $4.11 $3.61

Growth Studies 1.58              0.19              

Total Township-Wide Services/Classes $5.69 $3.80

* Includes both Indoor and Outdoor Recreation Services in current by-law.



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE ii 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

such policies and rates it deems appropriate.  These directions will refine the 

draft D.C. by-law, which is appended in Appendix G.  These decisions may 

include: 

• adopting the charges and policies recommended herein; 

• considering additional exemptions to the D.C. by-law; and 

• considering reductions in the charge (obtained by removing certain 

services or capital costs on which the charge is based and/or by a general 

reduction in the charge). 

As the D.C.A. does not allow for any exempted or reduced amount to be made 

up through higher D.C.s from other development, any such decision would 

require the consideration of an alternative (i.e., non-D.C.) funding source 

provided by the Township. 



 

 

Report 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.   
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Chapter 1 
Introduction



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Purpose of this Document 

This background study has been prepared for public comment.  The Township of 

Melancthon (Township) retained Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. (Watson), to 

undertake the D.C. background study and by-law process in 2024.  This background 

study has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Development Charges 

Act, 1997 (D.C.A.), as amended, and recommends new development charges (D.C.) 

and D.C. by-law policies for the Township. 

This D.C. background study will be distributed to members of the public in order to 

provide interested parties with sufficient background information on the legislation, the 

study’s recommendations, and an outline of the basis for these recommendations.  

Watson will continue to work with Township staff to further refine the background study 

(as required) based on public feedback, for the release of the final D.C. background 

study prior to the Council adoption of the by-law. 

This report has been prepared, in the first instance, to meet the statutory requirements 

applicable to the Township’s D.C. background study, as summarized in Chapter 4.  

Chapter 6 contains the calculated D.C.s based on the increase in need and capital 

costs of services identified in Chapter 5.  It also addresses the requirement for “rules” 

outlining the implementation of the charge as contained in Chapter 7.  Appendix G 

provides the proposed by-law to be made available to the public as part of the approval 

process. 

The report also includes a summary of the Township’s current D.C. rates and policies 

(Chapter 2) to provide a comparison with those being proposed.  It further addresses 

post-by-law adoption implementation requirements (Chapter 8), which are critical to the 

successful application of the new by-law. 

The chapters in the report are supported by appendices containing the data required to 

explain and substantiate the calculation of the charges. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

1.2 Summary of the Process 

The public meeting required under section 12 of the Development Charges Act, 1997, 

as amended (D.C.A.), has been scheduled for June 6, 2024.  Its purpose is to present 

the study to the public and to solicit public input.  The meeting is also being held to 

answer any questions regarding the study’s purpose, methodology and the proposed 

D.C. by-law. 

In accordance with the legislation, the background study and proposed D.C. by-law will 

be available for public review on May 16, 2024. 

The process to be followed in finalizing the report and recommendations includes: 

• consideration of responses received prior to, at, or immediately following the 

public meeting;  

• refinements to the report, if required; and  

• Council consideration of the by-law subsequent to the public meeting. 

Figure 1-1 outlines the proposed schedule to be followed with respect to the D.C. by-law 

adoption process 

Figure 1-1 
Schedule of Key D.C. Process Dates 

Process Steps Dates 

Data collection, growth forecast development, staff review, 

engineering work, D.C. calculations and policy work 

Late 2023 to Early 

2024 

Public release of final D.C. Background study and 

proposed by-law 
May 16, 2024 

Public meeting advertisement placed in newspaper(s) 
By 21 Days prior to the 

Public Meeting 

Public meeting of Council June 6, 2024 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Process Steps Dates 

Council considers adoption of background study and 

passage of by-law 
July 18, 2024 

Newspaper notice given of by-law passage 
By 20 days after 

passage 

Last day for by-law appeal 40 days after passage 

Township makes pamphlet available (where by-law not 

appealed) 

By 60 days after in 

force date 

1.3 Changes to the Development Charges Act, 1997 

Over the past five (5) years, a number of changes to the D.C.A. have been introduced 

through various legislation including the following: 

• Bill 108: More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019; 

• Bill 138: Plan to Build Ontario Together Act, 2019; 

• Bill 197: COVID-19 Economic Recovery Act, 2020; 

• Bill 213: Better for People, Smarter for Business Act, 2020; 

• Bill 109: More Homes for Everyone Act, 2022; 

• Bill 23: More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022; 

• Bill 97: Helping Homebuyers, Protecting Tenants Act, 2023; and 

• Bill 134: Affordable Homes and Good Jobs Act, 2023. 

The following provides an overview of the amendments to the D.C.A. that each of these 

pieces of legislation provided. 

It is also noted that on April 10, 2024, the Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 

2024 (Bill 185), was released and is currently in the legislative process. Section 1.3.9 

provides further details of the proposed changes to the D.C.A. under the Bill. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

1.3.1 Bill 108: More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 

The Province introduced Bill 108, More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 which proposed 

changes to the D.C.A. as part of the province’s “More Homes, More Choice: Ontario's 

Housing Supply Action Plan.” The More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 received Royal 

Assent on June 6, 2019.  At that time many of the amendments to the D.C.A. did not 

come into effect, awaiting proclamation by the Lieutenant Governor.  On January 1, 

2020, the following provisions were proclaimed: 

• A D.C. for rental housing and institutional developments will pay the charge in six 

equal annual installments, with the first payment commencing on the date of 

occupancy.  Non-profit housing developments will pay D.C.s in 21 equal annual 

payments (note, that further changes related to non-profit housing have been 

made under the More Homes Built Faster Act, summarized below).  Any unpaid 

D.C. amounts may be added to the property and collected as taxes. 

• For all developments triggering a D.C. within two years of a Site Plan or Zoning 

By-law Amendment planning approval, the D.C. shall be determined based on 

the charges in effect on the date the planning application was submitted.  These 

provisions only apply to Site Plan and Zoning By-law Amendment planning 

applications received on or after January 1, 2020.  These amendments do not 

affect developments approved under other planning application types (e.g., plan 

of subdivision, minor variance, etc.). 

• The removal of the 10% statutory deduction for soft services, i.e., services limited 

to a 10-year forecast period. 

1.3.2 Bill 138: Plan to Build Ontario Together Act, 2019 

The Plan to Build Ontario Together Act, 2019 provided further amendments to the 

D.C.A. and Planning Act.  This Act received Royal Assent on December 10, 2019.  

Proclamation resulted in the sections related to the D.C.A. (schedule 10) coming into 

effect on January 1, 2020.  The amendments to the D.C.A. included the removal of 

instalment payments for commercial and industrial developments that were originally 

included in the More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019. 

1.3.3 Bill 197: COVID-19 Economic Recovery Act, 2020 

In response to the global pandemic that began affecting Ontario in early 2020, the 

Province released Bill 197, COVID-19 Economic Recovery Act, 2020, which provided 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

amendments to a number of statues, including the D.C.A. and Planning Act.  The 

COVID-19 Economic Recovery Act, 2020 further revised some of the proposed changes 

identified in the More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 and Plan to Build Ontario 

Together Act, 2019.  The COVID-19 Economic Recovery Act, 2020 received Royal 

Assent on July 21, 2020, and was proclaimed on September 18, 2020.  The following 

provides a summary of the amendments to the D.C.A.: 

1.3.3.1 List of D.C. Eligible Services 

The D.C.A. previously defined ineligible services for D.C.s.  The amendments to the 

D.C.A. now defined the services that are eligible for inclusion in a D.C. by-law.  The 

following summarizes the D.C. eligible services: 

• Water supply services, including distribution and treatment services; 

• Wastewater services, including sewers and treatment services; 

• Storm water drainage and control services; 

• Services related to a highway; 

• Electrical power services; 

• Waste diversion services; 

• Policing services; 

• Fire protection services; 

• Ambulance services; 

• Library Services; 

• Long-term care services; 

• Parks and recreation services (excluding the acquisition of land for parks); 

• Public health services; 

• Childcare and early years services; 

• Housing services (Note that as per Bill 23, housing services are no longer 

eligible); 

• Provincial Offences Act services; 

• Services related to emergency preparedness; 

• Services related to airports, but only in the Regional Municipality of Waterloo; 

and 

• Additional services as prescribed.  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

1.3.3.2 Classes of D.C. Services 

Prior to the amendments, the D.C.A. allowed for categories of services to be grouped 

together into a minimum of two categories, i.e., 90% services and 100% services.  The 

amendments repealed these rules and replaced them with the following provisions: 

• A D.C. by-law may provide for any eligible service or capital cost related to any 

eligible service to be included in a class as set out in the by-law. 

• A class may be composed of any number or combination of services and may 

include parts or portions of the eligible services or parts or portions of the capital 

costs in respect of those services. 

• A class of service set out in the D.C. by-law is deemed to be a single service with 

respect to reserve funds, use of monies, and credits. 

1.3.3.3 Statutory Exemptions 

The D.C.A. provides for statutory exemptions from payment of D.C.s related to 

additional residential units, where the development is creating additional residential 

dwelling units within prescribed classes of existing residential buildings or structures.  

This statutory exemption has been expanded to include secondary residential dwelling 

units, in prescribed classes, that are ancillary to existing residential buildings.  

Furthermore, additional statutory exemptions are provided for the creation of a second 

dwelling unit in prescribed classes of proposed new residential buildings, including 

structures ancillary to new dwellings.  Note, that further changes related to additional 

residential units have been made under the More Homes Built Faster Act, summarized 

below. 

1.3.4 Bill 213: Better for People, Smarter for Business Act, 2020 

On December 8, 2020, the Better for People, Smarter for Business Act, 2020 received 

Royal Assent.  One of the changes of this Act amended the Ministry of Training, 

Colleges and Universities Act by exempting the developments of land intended for use 

by a university that receives operating funds from the Government from the payment of 

D.C.s.  As a result, this mandatory exemption is included in the Township’s draft D.C. 

by-law. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-7 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

1.3.5 Bill 109: More Homes for Everyone Act, 2022 

On April 14, 2022, the More Homes for Everyone Act, 2022 received Royal Assent.  

One of the D.C.A. amendments, and O. Reg. 438/22, prescribed additional information 

to be included in the annual Treasurer’s Statement on D.C. reserve funds and its 

publication.  The following additional information must be provided for each service for 

which a D.C. is collected for during the year: 

a) whether, as of the end of the year, the municipality expects to incur the amount 

of capital costs that were estimated, in the relevant development charge 

background study, to be incurred during the term of the applicable development 

charge by-law; 

b) if the answer to a) is no, the amount the municipality now expects to incur and a 

statement as to why this amount is expected; and 

c) if no money was spent from the reserve fund during the year, a statement as to 

why there was no spending during the year. 

These requirements have been further amended to require that the annual Treasurer’s 

Statement be made available to the public on the municipality’s website, or in the 

municipal office. 

1.3.6 Bill 23: More Homes Built Fast Act, 2022 

The More Homes Built Fast Act, 2022, received Royal Assent on November 28, 2022.  

This Act amends several pieces of legislation including the Planning Act and the D.C.A.  

The following provides a summary of the amendments to the D.C.A.: 

1.3.6.1 Additional Residential Unit Exemption 

The rules for these exemptions are now provided in the D.C.A., rather than the 

regulations and are summarized as follows: 

• Exemption for residential units in existing rental residential buildings – For rental 

residential buildings with four or more residential units, the greater of one unit or 

1% of the existing residential units will be exempt from D.C. 

• Exemption for additional residential units in existing and new residential buildings 

– The following developments will be exempt from a D.C.: 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-8 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

• A second unit in a detached, semi-detached, or rowhouse if all buildings and 

ancillary structures cumulatively contain no more than one residential unit; 

• A third unit in a detached, semi-detached, or rowhouse if no buildings or ancillary 

structures contain any residential units; and 

• One residential unit in a building or structure ancillary to a detached, semi-

detached, or rowhouse on a parcel of urban land, if the detached, semi-

detached, or rowhouse contains no more than two residential units and no other 

buildings or ancillary structures contain any residential units. 

1.3.6.2 Removal of Housing as an Eligible D.C. Service 

Housing services is removed as an eligible service.  Municipalities with by-laws that 

include a charge for housing services can no longer collect for this service. 

1.3.6.3 New Statutory Exemptions for Affordable Units, Attainable Units, 
Inclusionary Zoning Units, and Non-Profit Housing developments 

Affordable units, attainable units, inclusionary zoning units and non-profit housing 

developments are exempt from the payment of D.C.s, as follows: 

• Affordable Rental Units: Where rent is no more than 80% of the average market 

rent as defined by a new bulletin published by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs 

and Housing. 

• Affordable Owned Units: Where the price of the unit is no more than 80% of the 

average purchase price as defined by a new bulletin published by the Ministry of 

Municipal Affairs and Housing. 

• Attainable Units: Excludes affordable units and rental units; will be defined as 

prescribed development or class of development and sold to a person who is at 

“arm’s length” from the seller. 

o Note: for affordable and attainable units, the municipality shall enter into an 

agreement that ensures the unit remains affordable or attainable for 25 years. 

• Inclusionary Zoning Units: Affordable housing units required under inclusionary 

zoning by-laws are exempt from a D.C. 

• Non-Profit Housing: Non-profit housing units are exempt from D.C.s and D.C. 

instalment payments due after November 28, 2022. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-9 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

1.3.6.4 Historical Level of Service extended to 15-year period instead of 
the historical 10-year period 

Prior to Royal Assent, the increase in need for service was limited by the average 

historical level of service calculated over the 10-year period preceding the preparation 

of the D.C. background study.  This average is now extended to the historical 15-year 

period. 

1.3.6.5 Revised Definition of Capital Costs 

The definition of capital costs has been revised to remove studies.  Further, the 

regulations to the Act will prescribe services for which land or an interest in land will be 

restricted.  As at the time of writing, no services have been prescribed. 

1.3.6.6 Mandatory Phase-in of a D.C. 

For all D.C. by-laws passed after January 1, 2022, the charge must be phased-in 

annually over the first five years the by-law is in force, as follows: 

• Year 1 – 80% of the maximum charge; 

• Year 2 – 85% of the maximum charge; 

• Year 3 – 90% of the maximum charge; 

• Year 4 – 95% of the maximum charge; and 

• Year 5 to expiry – 100% of the maximum charge. 

1.3.6.7 D.C. By-law Expiry 

A D.C. by-law now expires ten years after the day it comes into force unless the by-law 

provides for an earlier expiry or repeal date.  This extends the by-law’s life from what 

use to be a maximum of five years. 

1.3.6.8 Installment Payments 

Non-profit housing development has been removed from the instalment payment 

section of the D.C.A. under Section 26.1, as these units are now exempt from the 

payment of a D.C. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-10 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

1.3.6.9 Rental Housing Discount 

The D.C. payable for rental housing development will be reduced based on the number 

of bedrooms in each unit as follows: 

• Three or more bedrooms – 25% reduction; 

• Two bedrooms – 20% reduction; and 

• All other bedroom quantities – 15% reduction. 

1.3.6.10 Maximum Interest Rate for Instalments and Determination of 
Charge for Eligible Site Plan and Zoning By-law Amendment 
Applications 

No maximum interest rate was previously prescribed, which allowed municipalities to 

choose the interest rate to impose.  As per Bill 23, the maximum interest rate is set at 

the average prime rate plus 1%.  This maximum interest rate provision would apply to 

all instalment payments and eligible site plan and zoning by-law amendment 

applications occurring after November 28, 2022. 

1.3.6.11 Requirement to Allocate Funds Received 

Annually, beginning in 2023, municipalities will be required to spend or allocate at least 

60% of the monies in a reserve fund at the beginning of the year for water services, 

wastewater services, and services related to a highway.  Other services may be 

prescribed by the regulation. 

1.3.7 Bill 97: Helping Homebuyers, Protecting Tenants Act, 2023 

The Helping Homebuyers, Protecting Tenants Act (Bill 97) received Royal Assent on 

June 8, 2023.  This bill extends the mandatory exemption from payment of D.C.s for 

additional residential units in new residential buildings or in existing houses to all lands 

versus just urban lands. 

1.3.8 Bill 134: Affordable Homes and Good Jobs Act, 2023 

The exemption for affordable residential units was included in the More Homes Built 

Faster Act, 2022 (Bill 23), enacted by the Province on November 28, 2022.  Under this 

legislation, affordable residential units were defined within subsection 4.1 of the D.C.A. 

and exemptions for D.C.s were provided in respect of this definition.  While the 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-11 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

legislation was enacted in November 2022, the ability for municipalities to implement the 

exemptions required the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing to publish an 

“Affordable Residential Units for the Purposes of the Development Charges Act, 1997 

Bulletin.”  This bulletin informs the average market rent, average purchase price, and 

average household income thresholds to be used in determining which developments 

qualify as affordable residential units.  The bulletin was published by the Minister on 

May 1, 2024. 

Bill 134 received Royal Assent on December 4, 2023 and provides for a modification to 

the affordable residential unit definition by: 

• Introducing an income-based test for affordable rent and purchase price; and  

• Increasing the threshold for the market test of affordable rent and purchase price. 

This change provides the exemption based on the lesser of the two measures.  

Moreover, the rules in subsection 4.1 of the D.C.A. are unchanged with respect to: 

• The tenant and purchaser transacting the affordable unit being at arm’s length; 

• The intent of maintaining the affordable residential unit definition for a 25-year 

period, requiring an agreement with the municipality (which may be registered on 

title); and 

• Exemptions for attainable residential units and associated rules (requiring further 

regulations). 

The following table provides the definition of affordable residential units as provided 

through Bill 134 (underlining added for emphasis). 

Table 1-1 
Definition of Affordable Residential Units 

Item 
Bill 134 Definition 

(as per D.C.A.) 

Affordable residential unit 
rent (subsection 4.1 (2), 
para. 1) 

The rent is no greater than the lesser of, 

i. the income-based affordable rent for the residential unit set 
out in the Affordable Residential Units bulletin, as identified 
by the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing in 
accordance with subsection (5), and 

ii. the average market rent identified for the residential unit set 
out in the Affordable Residential Units bulletin. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-12 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Item 
Bill 134 Definition 

(as per D.C.A.) 

Average market rent/rent 
based on income 
(subsection 4.1 (5)) for the 
purposes of subsection 4.1 
(2), para. 1 

The Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing shall,  

(a) determine the income of a household that, in the Minister’s 
opinion, is at the 60th percentile of gross annual incomes for 
renter households in the applicable local municipality; and 

(b) identify the rent that, in the Minister’s opinion, is equal to 30 
per cent of the income of the household referred to in 
clause (a). 

Affordable residential unit 
ownership (subsection 4.1 
(3), para. 1) 

The price of the residential unit is no greater than the lesser of, 

i. the income-based affordable purchase price for the 
residential unit set out in the Affordable Residential Units 
bulletin, as identified by the Minister of Municipal Affairs 
and Housing in accordance with subsection (6), and 

ii. 90 per cent of the average purchase price identified for the 
residential unit set out in the Affordable Residential Units 
bulletin. 

Average market purchase 
price/purchase price based 
on income (subsection 4.1 
(6)) for the purposes of 
subsection 4.1 (3), para. 1 

The Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing shall, 

(a) determine the income of a household that, in the Minister’s 
opinion, is at the 60th percentile of gross annual incomes for 
households in the applicable local municipality; and  

(b) identify the purchase price that, in the Minister’s opinion, 
would result in annual accommodation costs equal to 30 
per cent of the income of the household referred to in 
clause (a) 

As noted, the bulletin was release on May 1, 2024, which provides the information for 

the Township to measure against for determining the applicability of the exemption from 

the D.C. (as well as C.B.C. and Parkland requirements).  The bulletin provides the 

following information is specific to the Township (it is noted that the Bulletin will be 

updated annually): 

• For Affordable Ownership Units: the average household income provides the 

amount to be measured against, being $416,800, as the 90% of average 

purchase prices is greater for all unit types, as follows: 

o Detached House:      $891,000 

o Semi-Detached House:     $603,000 

o Row/townhouse:       $639,000 

o Condominium Apartment    $531,000 

• For Affordable Rental Units: the average rent based on household income would 

equal $2,900 per month.  The average market rent by unit type is lower than the 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 1-13 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

average household income and therefore, provides the amount to be measured 

against, being where monthly rent is lower than: 

o For a bachelor unit:      $   984 

o For a 1-bedroom unit:     $1,285 

o For a 2-bedroom unit:      $1,414 

o For a unit with 3 or more bedrooms: $1,543 

1.3.9 Bill 185: Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 2024 

On April 10, 2024, the Ontario Legislature released proposed changes to the D.C.A. 

which proposes the following changes: 

• The removal of the mandatory phase-in for D.C. by-laws; 

• A reduction to the D.C. rate freeze timelines for site plan and zoning by-law 

amendment applications, whereby the period between the building permit 

issuance and planning application approval is reduced to 18 months vs. two (2) 

years (note that the two (2) year timeline will still apply to applications received 

prior to Bill 185 receiving Royal Assent); 

• The inclusion of studies as an eligible cost for services, including a D.C. 

background study; 

• The ability to repeal a provision of the D.C. by-law specifying the date the by-law 

expires (subject to the 10-year by-law limitation provided in the D.C.A.); 

• The ability to undertake minor D.C. by-law amendments for by-laws passed after 

November 28, 2022 and before Bill 185 takes effect, related to the inclusion of 

capital costs for studies and the removal of the mandatory D.C. phase-in; and 

• Modernize D.C. public notice requirements to permit use of municipal websites 

where newspapers of general circulation are not available. 

Bill 185 has not been enacted at the time of writing this D.C. Background Study.  As 

such, the changes proposed in the Bill have been noted in the D.C. calculations but are 

not fully reflected in the draft D.C. by-law contained herein. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.   
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Chapter 2 
Township of Melancthon 
Current D.C. Policy 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 2-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

2. Township of Melancthon Current D.C. Policy 

2.1 Schedule of Charges 

On August 15, 2019, the Township passed By-law 37-2019 under the D.C.A. to imposes 

D.C.s for residential and non-residential uses.  The D.C. by-law is set to expire on 

August 15, 2024. 

2.2 Services Covered  

The following services are covered under By-law 37-2019: 

• Services Related to a Highway; 

• Fire Protection Services; 

• Policing Services; 

• Administration Studies – Engineering & Protection Services; 

• Indoor Recreation Services; 

• Outdoor Recreation Services; 

• Library Services; and 

• Administration Studies – Community Based Services. 

The by-law charges specific services based on the categorization of Engineering & 

Protection Services or Community Based Services.  Within each categorization, the 

related services charge a D.C. on residential and non-residential developments, along 

with a D.C. charge to wind turbines. 

Note: the changes to the D.C.A. under the More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022 (Bill 23), 

eliminated studies as an eligible D.C. cost, however, with the proposed changes in the 

through the Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 2024 (Bill 185) proposes to 

reintroduce studies as an eligible D.C. cost.  As such, studies have been identified and 

calculated herein (as a class of service).  If the Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes 

Act, 2024 (Bill 185) is enacted prior to Council’s consideration of the by-law, studies will 

be included in the schedule to the D.C.by-law. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 2-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

2.3 Timing of D.C. Calculation and Payment 

The by-law indicates that D.C.s are calculated, payable, and collected upon issuance of 

a building permit for a particular development. 

It is noted that the D.C. legislation has been amended since the passage of the by-law 

and D.C.s are now payable at the time of the first building permit issuance for most 

developments.  Payments with respect to rental housing and institutional development 

pay their D.C.s over six (6) annual installments.  Applications with respect to a site plan 

or zoning by-law amendment have their D.C. determined at the rates in effect at the 

time of planning application if the building permit for the proposed development is 

issued within two (2) years of planning application approval.  The provisions of the 

D.C.A. override the provisions of the current by-law. 

2.4 Approvals for Development 

The D.C.s shall be imposed on all lands, buildings, or structures that are developed for 

residential or non-residential uses if the development requires: 

• The passing of a zoning by-law or an amendment thereto; 

• The approval of a minor variance; 

• A conveyance of land to which a by-law passed under Subsection 50(7 of the 

Planning Act; 

• The approval of a plan of subdivision; 

• A consent; 

• The approval under the Condominium Act; or  

• The issuance of a building permit. 

2.5 Indexing 

D.C.s within the by-law are adjusted annually on January 1st, without amendment to the 

By-law, in accordance with the prescribed index in the D.C.A. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 2-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

2.6 Redevelopment Allowance 

As a result of the redevelopment of land where a residential unit or units existed on a 

property prior to a period of not more than five years prior to an application for a building 

permit(s) for new residential dwellings on the same property.  The new units are not 

subject to a development charge up to and including the original number of units that 

existed on the site within five years prior to the application for building permit(s) on the 

property.  All units in excess of the original number are subject to the current 

development charge.  In the case of a non-residential unit or mixed-use building, the 

D.C. payable is reduced by the D.C. rate and the total Gross Floor Area (G.F.A.) that 

have been or will be demolished or converted to another principal use. 

2.7 Exemptions 

The following non-statutory exemptions are provided under By-law 37-2019: 

• D.C.s are not imposed with respect to the portion of lands, buildings or structures 

used for worship in a place of worship, cemetery or burial ground which is 

exempt from taxation under section 3 of the Assessment Act; and 

• D.C.s are not imposed on an agricultural use, including barns, silos, or other 

storage facilities for produce, livestock, or machinery and equipment used in 

connection with an existing agricultural operation, and other ancillary 

development to an agricultural use, but excludes a residential dwelling, an on-

farm diversified use, a cannabis production facility, or greenhouse. 

It is noted that statutory exemptions resulting from D.C.A. amendments as noted in 

Chapter 1, must also be witness by the Township even though they may not be 

currently reflected in the existing by-law. 

2.8 Current Development Charges 

The Township’s current D.C.s for residential and non-residential development are 

shown in Table 2-1, as per By-law 37-2019. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 2-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 2-1 
Township of Melancthon 
Current Schedule of D.C. 

As of January 1, 2024 

 

Service/Class of Service
Single & Semi 

Detached
Multiples

Apartments with 

>= 2 Bedrooms

Apartments with 

< 2 Bedrooms
Wind Trubines

Non-Res. per 

sq.ft. of G.F.A.

Services Related to a Highway 2,688                 2,103                 1,295                 931                    2,688                 2.03                   

Fire Protection Services 1,533                 1,199                 738                    530                    1,533                 1.14                   

Policing Services 16                     11                     8                       5                       -                    0.01                   

Outdoor Recreation Services 77                     61                     39                     26                     -                    0.02                   

Indoor Recreation Services 3,058                 2,395                 1,473                 1,061                 -                    0.85                   

Library Services 244                    192                    119                    85                     -                    0.06                   

Growth Studies 2,146                 1,679                 1,034                 744                    -                    1.58                   

Total $9,762 $7,640 $4,706 $3,382 $4,221 $5.69

Residential Non-Residential



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.   
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Chapter 3 
Anticipated Development in 
the Township of Melancthon 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 3-1 
D.C. Background Study 

3. Anticipated Development in the Township of 
Melancthon 

3.1 Requirement of the Act 

The growth forecast contained in this chapter (with supplemental tables in Appendix A) 

provides for the anticipated development for which the Township will be required to 

provide services over a 10-year (mid-2024 to mid-2034) time horizon. 

Chapter 4 provides the methodology for calculating a D.C. as per the D.C.A.  Figure 4-1 

presents this methodology graphically.  It is noted in the first box of the schematic that in 

order to determine the D.C. that may be imposed, it is a requirement of subsection 5 (1) 

of the D.C.A. that “the anticipated amount, type and location of development, for which 

development charges can be imposed, must be estimated.” 

3.2 Basis of Population, Household and Non-Residential 
Gross Floor Area Forecast 

The D.C. growth forecast has been derived by Watson.  In preparing the growth 

forecast, the following information sources were consulted to assess the residential and 

non-residential development potential for the Township over the forecast period, 

including: 

• Dufferin County 2022 Official Plan Review and Municipal Comprehensive Review 

Draft Land Needs Analysis Report, WSP Canada, July 2022; 

• Township of Melancthon Official Plan, approved by the Ontario Municipal Board, 

September 5, 2017; 

• Township of Melancthon 2019 Development Charges Background Study, June 

2019, Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. 

• 2011, 2016 and 2021 population, household, and employment Census data; 

• Historical residential building permit data over the 2013 to 2022 period; 

• Residential and non-residential supply; and  

• Discussions with Township staff regarding anticipated residential and non-

residential development in the Township of Melancthon. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 3-2 
D.C. Background Study 

3.3 Summary of Growth Forecast 

A detailed analysis of the residential and non-residential growth forecasts is provided in 

Appendix A and the methodology employed is illustrated in Figure 3-1.  The discussion 

provided herein summarizes the anticipated growth for the Township and describes the 

basis for the forecast.  The results of the residential growth forecast analysis are 

summarized in Table 3-1 below, and Schedule 1 in Appendix A. 

As identified in Table 3-1 and Appendix A – Schedule 1, population in the Township of 

Melancthon (excluding census undercount) is anticipated to reach approximately 3,490 

by mid-2034 resulting in an increase of approximately 270 persons.[1] 

Figure 3-1 
Population and Household Forecast Model 

  

 
[1] The population figures used in the calculation of the 2024 D.C. exclude the net 

Census undercount, which is estimated at approximately 3.2%.  Population figures 

presented herein have been rounded. 

Intensification

Designated Lands

Servicing Capacity

Residential Units in the 

Development Process

Employment Market by Local 

Municipality, 

Economic Outlook

Local, region

and Provincial

Forecast of

Residential Units

Decline in Existing Population

Net Population Increase

Historical Housing 

Construction

DEMAND SUPPLY

Occupancy Assumptions

Gross Population Increase



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 3-3 
D.C. Background Study 

Table 3-1 
Township of Melancthon 

Residential Growth Forecast Summary 

 

[1] Population includes the Census undercount estimated at approximately 3.2% and has been rounded. 
[2] Includes townhouses and apartments in duplexes. 
[3] Includes bachelor, 1-bedroom, and 2-bedroom+ apartment units. 
Notes: 
Numbers may not add due to rounding. 
Source: Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. 

Population
Institutional 

Population

Population 

Excluding 

Institutional 

Population

Singles & 

Semi-

Detached

Multiple 

Dwellings
[2] Apartments

[3] Other
Total 

Households

Equivalent 

Institutional 

Households

2,930 2,839 9 2,830 946 17 6 5 974 8 2.915

3,100 3,008 3 3,005 1,010 25 0 0 1,035 3 2.906

3,230 3,132 32 3,100 1,015 15 0 5 1,035 29 3.026

3,320 3,218 33 3,185 1,052 15 0 5 1,072 30 3.002

3,600 3,486 36 3,450 1,142 15 5 5 1,167 33 2.987

170 169 -6 175 64 8 -6 -5 61 -5

130 124 29 95 5 -10 0 5 0 26

90 86 1 85 37 0 0 0 37 1

280 268 3 265 90 0 5 0 95 3

Mid 2011 - Mid 2016

Mid 2016 - Mid 2021

Mid 2011

Mid 2016

Mid 2021

Mid 2024

Mid 2034

Mid 2021 - Mid 2024

Mid 2024 - Mid 2034

Population 

(Including        

Census 

Undercount)
[1]

Year

Excluding Census Undercount Housing Units Person Per 

Unit (P.P.U.): 

Total 

Population/ 

Total 

Households

H
is

to
ri
c
a
l

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

In
c
re

m
e
n
ta

l



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 3-4 
D.C. Background Study 

Figure 3-2  
Township of Melancthon 

Annual Housing Forecast[1] 

 

[1] Growth forecast represents calendar year. 
Source: Historical housing activity derived from Statistics Canada building permit data, 2014 to 2023, by Watson & Associates 
Economists Ltd. 

8
9

11
12 12

11
12

17

14

6 6

9
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

H
o
u
s
in

g
 U

n
it
s

Years

Historical Low Density Medium Density High Density Historical Average



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.   
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

Provided below is a summary of the key assumptions and findings regarding the 

Township’s D.C. growth forecast: 

• Unit Mix (Appendix A - Schedules 1 and 4) 

• The housing unit mix for the Township was derived from a detailed 

review of historical development activity (as per Schedule 4), as well 

as active residential development applications and discussions with 

Township staff regarding anticipated development trends for the 

Township. 

• Based on the above indicators, the mid-2024 to mid-2034 household 

growth forecast for the Township is comprised of a unit mix of 95% low 

density units (single detached and semi-detached), 0% medium 

density (multiples except apartments) and 5% high density (bachelor, 1 

bedroom and 2-bedroom apartments). 

• Planning Period 

• Short-term and longer-term time horizons are required for the D.C. 

process.  The D.C.A. limits the planning horizon for transit services to a 

10-year planning horizon.  All other services can utilize a longer 

planning period if the Township has identified the growth-related 

capital infrastructure needs associated with the longer-term growth 

planning period. 

• Population in New Housing Units (Appendix A - Schedules 2 and 3) 

• The number of housing units to be constructed by 2034 in the 

Township over the forecast period is presented in Table 3-1.  Over the 

mid-2024 to mid-2034 forecast period, the Township is anticipated to 

average approximately 10 new housing units per year. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

• Institutional population[1] is anticipated to increase by approximately 3 

people between mid-2024 to mid-2034. 

• Population in new units is derived from Schedules 2 and 3, which 

incorporate historical development activity, anticipated units (see unit 

mix discussion) and average persons per unit (P.P.U.) by dwelling type 

for new units. 

• Schedule 5a summarizes the average P.P.U. assumed for new 

housing units by age and type of dwelling based on Statistics Canada 

2021 custom Census data for the Township.  Due to data limitations 

medium and high density P.P.U. data was derived from the County of 

Dufferin which includes the Township of Melancthon, and is outlined in 

Schedule 5b.  The total calculated P.P.U. for all density types has been 

adjusted accordingly to account for the P.P.U. trends which has been 

recently experienced in both new and older units.  Forecasted 15-year 

average P.P.U.s by dwelling type are as follows: 

o Low density:    3.381 

o Medium density:  2.951 

o High density:   2.065 

• Existing Units and Population Change (Appendix A - Schedules 2 and 3) 

• Existing households for mid-2024 are based on the 2021 Census 

households, plus estimated residential units constructed between mid-

2021 to the beginning of the growth period, assuming a minimum six-

month lag between construction and occupancy (see Schedule 2). 

• The change in average occupancy levels for existing housing units is 

calculated in Schedules 2 through 3[2].  The forecast population change 

in existing households over the mid-2024 to mid-2034 forecast period 

is forecast to decline by approximately 50. 

  

 
[2] Institutional population largely includes special care facilities such as nursing home or 
residences for senior citizens.  A P.P.U. of 1.100 depicts 1-bedroom and 2-or-more-
bedroom units in collective households. 
[1] Change in occupancy levels for existing households occurs due to aging of the 
population and family life cycle changes, lower fertility rates and changing economic 
conditions. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

• Employment (Appendix A – Schedules 7a and 7b) 

• The employment projections provided herein are largely based on the 

activity rate method, which is defined as the number of jobs in the 

Township divided by the number of residents.  Key employment 

sectors include primary, industrial, commercial/population-related, 

institutional, and work at home, which are considered individually 

below. 

• 2016 employment data [1],[2] (place of work) for the Township is outlined 

in Schedule 7a.  The 2016 employment base is comprised of the 

following sectors: 

o 65 primary (14%); 

o 185 work at home employment (39%); 

o 110 industrial (23%); 

o 75 commercial/population-related (16%); and 

o 45 institutional (9%). 

• The 2016 employment by usual place of work, including work at home, 

is 480.  An additional 140 employees have been identified for the 

Township in 2016 that have no fixed place of work (N.F.P.O.W.).[3] 

• Total employment, including work at home and N.F.P.O.W. for the 

Township is anticipated to reach approximately 810 by mid-2034.  This 

represents an employment increase of approximately 70 for the 10-

year forecast period. 

• Schedule 7b, Appendix A, summarizes the employment forecast, 

excluding work at home employment and N.F.P.O.W. employment, 

which is the basis for the D.C. employment forecast.  The impact on 

township services from work at home employees has already been 

included in the population forecast.  The need for township services 

 
[2] 2016 employment is based on Statistics Canada 2016 Place of Work Employment 
dataset by Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. 
[3] Statistics Canada 2021 Census place of work employment data has been reviewed.  
The 2021 Census employment results have not been utilized due to a significant 
increase in work at home employment captured due to Census enumeration occurring 
during the provincial COVID-19 lockdown from April 1, 2021 to June 14, 2021. 
[1] No fixed place of work is defined by Statistics Canada as "persons who do not go 
from home to the same workplace location at the beginning of each shift.  Such persons 
include building and landscape contractors, travelling salespersons, independent truck 
drivers, etc.” 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

related to N.F.P.O.W. employees has largely been included in the 

employment forecast by usual place of work (i.e., employment and 

gross floor area generated from N.F.P.O.W. construction employment).  

Furthermore, since these employees have no fixed work address, they 

cannot be captured in the non-residential G.F.A. calculation.  

Accordingly, work at home and N.F.P.O.W. employees have been 

removed from the D.C.A. employment forecast and calculation. 

• Total employment for the Township (excluding work at home and 

N.F.P.O.W. employment) is anticipated to reach approximately 410 by 

mid-2034.  This represents an employment increase of approximately 

40 for the 10-year forecast period. 

• Non-Residential Sq.ft. Estimates (G.F.A.), Appendix A - Schedule 7b) 

• Square footage estimates were calculated in Schedule 7b based on 

the following employee density assumptions: 

o 3,000 sq.ft. per employee for primary; 

o 2,000 sq.ft. per employee for industrial; 

o 550 sq.ft. per employee for commercial/population-related; and 

o 900 sq.ft. per employee for institutional employment. 

• The Township-wide incremental G.F.A. is anticipated to increase by 

39,400 sq.ft. over the 10-year forecast period. 

• In terms of percentage growth, the mid-2024 to mid-2034 incremental 

G.F.A. forecast by sector is broken down as follows: 

o Primary - 15% 

o industrial - 41%; 

o commercial/population-related - 26%; and  

o institutional - 18%.



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.   
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

Chapter 4 
The Approach to the 
Calculation of the Charge



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

4. The Approach to the Calculation of the Charge 

4.1 Introduction 

This chapter addresses the requirements of subsection 5 (1) of the D.C.A. with respect 

to the establishment of the need for service which underpins the D.C. calculation.  

These requirements are illustrated schematically in Figure 4-1. 

4.2 Services Potentially Involved 

Table 4-1 lists the full range of municipal services that are provided within municipalities 

and indicates the D.C. eligible service components included in the D.C. background 

study for the Township. 

A number of these services are not included in the list of eligible services provided in 

subsection 2 (4) of the D.C.A. as being ineligible for inclusion in D.C.s.  These are 

shown as “ineligible” on Table 4-1B (as per the legend in Table 4-1A).  Two ineligible 

costs defined in subsection 5 (3) of the D.C.A. are “computer equipment” and “rolling 

stock with an estimated useful life of (less than) seven years.”  In addition, local roads 

are covered separately under subdivision agreements and related means (as are other 

local services).  Services that are potentially eligible for inclusion in the Township’s D.C. 

are indicated with a “Yes.” 

4.3 Increase in the Need for Service 

The D.C. calculation commences with an estimate of “the increase in the need for 

service attributable to the anticipated development,” for each service to be covered by 

the by-law.  There must be some form of link or attribution between the anticipated 

development and the estimated increase in the need for service.  While the need could 

conceivably be expressed generally in terms of units of capacity, subsection 5 (1) 3, 

which requires that Township Council indicate that it intends to ensure that such an 

increase in need will be met, suggests that a project-specific expression of need would 

be most appropriate.  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Figure 4-1 
The Process of Calculating a Development Charge under the Act that must be followed 

  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 4-1A 
Categories of Municipal Services to be Addressed as Part of the Calculation – Eligibility 

Legend 

Eligibility for 
Inclusion in the 
D.C. Calculation 

Description 

Yes 
Township provides the service – service has been included in 
the D.C. calculation. 

No 
Township provides the service – service has not been included 
in the D.C. calculation. 

n/a Township does not provide the service. 

Ineligible Service is ineligible for inclusion in the D.C. calculation. 

Table 4-1B 
Categories of Municipal Services to be Addressed as Part of the Calculation 

Categories of Municipal 
Services 

Inclusion in 
the D.C. 

Calculation 
Service Components 

1. Water supply services, 
including distribution and 
treatment services 

n/a 
 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

1.1 Treatment plants, Water Supply, 
and Storage Facilities 

1.2 Distribution systems 
1.3 Local systems 
1.4 Vehicles and equipment1 

2.  Wastewater services, 
including sewers and 
treatment services 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

2.1 Treatment plants 
2.2 Sewage trunks 
2.3 Local systems 
2.4 Vehicles and equipment1 

3. Stormwater Drainage and 
Control Services 

No 
 

No 
No 

3.1 Main channels and drainage 
trunks 

3.2 Channel connections 
3.3 Retention/detention ponds 

 
1 with a 7+ year useful life 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Categories of Municipal 
Services 

Inclusion in 
the D.C. 

Calculation 
Service Components 

4. Services Related to a 
Highway 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

No 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

4.1 Arterial roads 
4.2 Collector roads 
4.3 Bridges, Culverts and  
 Roundabouts 
4.4 Local municipal roads 
4.5 Traffic signals 
4.6 Sidewalks and streetlights 
4.7 Active Transportation 
4.8 Works Yard 
4.9 Rolling stock1 

5. Electrical Power Services 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

5.1 Electrical substations 
5.2 Electrical distribution system 
5.3 Electrical system rolling stock1 

6. Transit Services 
n/a 
n/a 

6.1 Transit vehicles1 & facilities 
6.2 Other transit infrastructure 

7. Waste Diversion Services 
n/a  
n/a 

7.1  Waste diversion facilities 
7.2 Waste diversion vehicles and 

equipment1 

8. Policing Services 
No 
No 
No 

8.1 Police detachments 
8.2 Police rolling stock1 
8.3 Small equipment and gear 

9. Fire Protection Services 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

9.1 Fire stations 
9.2 Fire Vehicles1 
9.3 Fire Equipment and gear 

10. Ambulance Services 
n/a 
n/a 

10.1 Ambulance station space 
10.2 Vehicles1 

11. Services provided by a 
board within the meaning 
of the Public Libraries Act 

Yes 
 

n/a 
Yes 

11.1 Public library space (incl. 
furniture and equipment) 

11.2 Library vehicles1 
11.3 Library materials 

12. Services Related to Long-
Term Care 

n/a 
n/a 

12.1 Long-Term Care space 
12.2 Vehicles1 

 
1 with a 7+ year useful life 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Categories of Municipal 
Services 

Inclusion in 
the D.C. 

Calculation 
Service Components 

13. Parks and Recreation 
Services 

Ineligible 
 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 

 
 

Yes 

13.1 Acquisition of land for parks, 
woodlots, and E.S.A.s 

13.2 Development of municipal parks 
13.3 Parks rolling stock1 and yards 
13.4 Facilities, such as arenas, indoor 

pools, fitness facilities, 
community centres, etc. 

13.5 Recreation vehicles and 
equipment1 

14. Services Related to Public 
Health 

n/a 
n/a 

14.1 Public Health department space 
14.2  Public Health department 

vehicles1 

15. Child Care and Early 
Years Programs and 
Services within the 
meaning of Part VI of the 
Child Care and Early 
Years Act, 2014 and any 
related services. 

n/a 
n/a 

15.1 Childcare space 
15.2 Vehicles1 

16. Services related to 
proceedings under the 
Provincial Offences Act, 
including by-law 
enforcement services and 
municipally administered 
court services 

No 
 
 

No 

16.1  P.O.A. space, including by-law 
enforcement and municipally 
administered court services 

16.2 Vehicles1 

17. Services Related to 
Emergency Preparedness 

No 
No 

17.1 Emergency Preparedness Space 
17.2 Equipment 

18. Services Related to 
Airports 

Ineligible 
Ineligible 

18.1 Airports 
18.2 Other Airports 

19. Provision of Headquarters 
for the General 
Administration of 
Municipalities and Area 
Municipal Boards 

Ineligible 
Ineligible  
Ineligible 

19.1 Office space  
19.2 Office furniture 
19.3 Computer equipment 

 
1 with a 7+ year useful life 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Categories of Municipal 
Services 

Inclusion in 
the D.C. 

Calculation 
Service Components 

20. Other No 20.1 Interest on money borrowed to 
pay for growth-related capital 

4.4 Local Service Policy 

Some of the need for services generated by additional development consists of local 

services related to a plan of subdivision.  As such, they will be required as a condition of 

subdivision agreements or consent conditions.  The Township’s Local Service Policy is 

included in Appendix D. 

4.5 Capital Forecast 

Paragraph 7 of subsection 5 (1) of the D.C.A. requires that “the capital costs necessary 

to provide the increased services must be estimated.”  The Act goes on to require two 

potential cost reductions and the regulation sets out the way in which such costs are to 

be presented.  These requirements are outlined below. 

These estimates involve capital costing of the increased services discussed above.  

This entails costing actual projects or the provision of service units, depending on how 

each service has been addressed. 

The capital costs include: 

a. costs to acquire land or an interest therein (including a leasehold interest); 

b. costs to improve land; 

c. costs to acquire, lease, construct or improve buildings and structures; 

d. costs to acquire, lease or improve facilities, including rolling stock (with a useful 

life of 7 or more years), furniture and equipment (other than computer 

equipment), materials acquired for library circulation, reference, or information 

purposes; and 

e. interest on money borrowed to pay for the above-referenced costs. 

In order for an increase in need for service to be included in the D.C. calculation, 

Township Council must indicate “that it intends to ensure that such an increase in need 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-7 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

will be met” (subsection 5 (1) 3).  This can be done if the increase in service forms part 

of a Council-approved Official Plan, capital forecast, or similar expression of the 

intention of Council (O. Reg. 82/98 section 3).  The capital program contained herein 

reflects the Township’s approved and proposed capital budgets, and Roads 

Management Plan.  In addition, for Fire Protection Services and Library Services, the 

capital program includes Melancthon’s proportionate share of anticipated growth-related 

capital needs identified by the joint service boards. 

4.6 Treatment of Credits 

Section 8, paragraph 5, of O. Reg. 82/98 indicates that a D.C. background study must 

set out “the estimated value of credits that are being carried forward relating to the 

service.”  Subsection 17, paragraph 4, of the same regulation indicates that, “…the 

value of the credit cannot be recovered from future D.C.s,” if the credit pertains to an 

ineligible service.  This implies that a credit for eligible services can be recovered from 

future D.C.s.  As a result, this provision should be made in the calculation, in order to 

avoid a funding shortfall with respect to future service needs. 

Currently, there are no outstanding credits to be included in the D.C. calculations. 

4.7 Class of Services 

Section 7 of the D.C.A. states that a D.C. by-law may provide for any D.C. eligible 

service or the capital costs with respect to those services.  Further, a class may be 

composed of any number or combination of services and may include parts or portions 

of each D.C. eligible services.  With respect to growth-related studies, section 7(3) of 

the D.C.A. states that: 

“For greater certainty, a development charge by-law may provide for a class 

consisting of studies in respect of any service listed in subsection 2 (4) whose 

capital costs are described in paragraphs 5 and 6 of subsection 5 (3)”. 

These provisions allow for services to be grouped together to create a class for the 

purposes of the D.C. by-law and D.C. reserve funds.  Currently the growth studies have 

been provided as a class of service for purposes of calculating the potential additional 

D.C.s, in the event that Bill 185 is enacted. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-8 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

4.8 Existing Reserve Funds 

Section 35 of the D.C.A. states that: 

“The money in a reserve fund established for a service may be spent only for 

capital costs determined under paragraphs 2 to 7 of subsection 5 (1).” 

There is no explicit requirement under the D.C.A. calculation method set out in s. 5 (1) 

to net the outstanding reserve fund balance as part of making the D.C. calculation; 

however, section 35 does restrict the way in which the funds are used in future. 

For services that are subject to a per-capita-based, service level “cap,” the reserve fund 

balance should be applied against the development-related costs for which the charge 

was imposed once the project is constructed (i.e., the needs of recent growth).  This 

cost component is distinct from the development-related costs for the next 10-year 

period, which underlie the D.C. calculation herein. 

The alternative would involve the Township spending all reserve fund monies prior to 

renewing each by-law, which would not be a sound basis for capital budgeting.  Thus, 

the Municipality will use these reserve funds for the Township’s cost share of applicable 

development-related projects, which are required but have not yet been undertaken, as 

a way of directing the funds to the benefit of the development which contributed them 

(rather than to future development, which will generate the need for additional facilities 

directly proportionate to future growth). 

The Township D.C. reserve fund balance, by service as of December 31, 2023, is 

provided in Table 4-2.  These balances have been considered in the D.C. calculations: 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-9 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 4-2 
Township of Melancthon 

Projected Development Charge Reserve Fund Balances 
As of December 31, 2023 

 

4.9 Deductions 

The D.C.A. potentially requires that four deductions be made to the increase in the need 

for service.  These relate to:  

• the level of service ceiling; 

• uncommitted excess capacity; 

• benefit to existing development; and 

• anticipated grants, subsidies, and other contributions. 

The requirements behind each of these reductions are addressed below. 

4.9.1 Reduction Require by Level of Service Ceiling 

This is designed to ensure that the increase in need included in section 4.3 does “not 

include an increase that would result in the level of service [for the additional 

development increment] exceeding the average level of the service provided in the 

municipality over the 15-year period immediately preceding the preparation of the 

background study” (D.C.A., subsection 5 (1) 4).  O. Reg. 82/98 (section 4) goes further 

to indicate that “both the quantity and quality of a service shall be taken into account in 

determining the level of service and the average level of service.” 

Service

Balance

Dec. 31, 2023

Services Related to a Highway $188,716.30

Fire Protection Services $170,847.63

Parks and Recreation Services $392,232.53

Library Services $30,779.80

Growth Studies $207,960.32

Policing Services $0.00

Total $990,536.58



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-10 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

In many cases, this can be done by establishing a quantity measure in terms of units as 

floor area, land area, or road length per capita and a quality measure, in terms of the 

average cost of providing such units based on replacement costs, engineering 

standards, or recognized performance measurement systems, depending on 

circumstances.  When the quantity and quality factors are multiplied together, they 

produce a measure of the level of service, which meets the requirements of the Act, i.e., 

cost per unit. 

The average service level calculation sheets for each service component in the D.C. 

calculation are set out in Appendix B. 

4.9.2 Reduction for Uncommitted Excess Capacity 

Paragraph 5 of subsection 5 (1) requires a deduction from the increase in the need for 

service attributable to the anticipated development that can be met using the 

Township’s “excess capacity,” other than excess capacity which is “committed.” 

“Excess capacity” is undefined, but in this case must be able to meet some or all of the 

increase in need for service, in order to potentially represent a deduction.  The 

deduction of uncommitted excess capacity from the future increase in the need for 

service would normally occur as part of the conceptual planning and feasibility work 

associated with justifying and sizing new facilities, (e.g., if a road widening to 

accommodate increased traffic is not required because sufficient excess capacity is 

already available, then widening would not be included as an increase in need, in the 

first instance). 

4.9.3 Reduction for Benefit to Existing Development 

Section 5 (1) 6 of the D.C.A. provides that, “The increase in the need for service must 

be reduced by the extent to which an increase in service to meet the increased need 

would benefit existing development.”  The general guidelines used to consider benefit to 

existing development included: 

• the repair or unexpanded replacement of existing assets that are in need of 

repair;  

• an increase in average service level of quantity or quality (compare water as an 

example); 

• the elimination of a chronic servicing problem not created by growth; and 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-11 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

• providing services where none previously existed (generally considered for water 

or wastewater services). 

This step involves a further reduction in the need, by the extent to which such an 

increase in service would benefit existing development.  The level of service cap in 

section 3.10.1 is related but is not the identical requirement.  Sanitary, storm, and water 

trunks are highly localized to growth areas and can be more readily allocated in this 

regard than other services such as services related to a highway, which do not have a 

fixed service area. 

Where existing development has an adequate service level which will not be tangibly 

increased by an increase in service, no benefit would appear to be involved.  For 

example, where expanding existing library facilities simply replicates what existing 

residents are receiving, they receive limited (or no) benefit as a result.  On the other 

hand, where a clear existing service problem is to be remedied, a deduction should be 

made accordingly. 

In the case of services such as recreation facilities, community parks, libraries, etc., the 

service is typically provided on a Township -wide system basis.  For example, facilities 

of the same type may provide different services (i.e., leisure pool vs. competitive pool), 

different programs (i.e., hockey vs. figure skating), and different time availability for the 

same service (i.e., leisure skating available on Wednesdays in one arena and 

Thursdays in another).  As a result, residents will travel to different facilities to access 

the services they want at the times they wish to use them, and facility location generally 

does not correlate directly with residence location.  Even where it does, displacing users 

from an existing facility to a new facility frees up capacity for use by others and 

generally results in only a limited benefit to existing development.  Further, where an 

increase in demand is not met for a number of years, a negative service impact to 

existing development is involved for a portion of the planning period. 

In addition, the growth forecasts indicate that the Township will experience a growth in 

population in existing households.  Therefore, a proportionate share of growth needs 

that benefit this increase growth in existing households, have been deducted from the 

costs included in the D.C. calculations/charges that will be imposed on new residential 

growth units. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 4-12 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

4.9.4 Reduction for Anticipated Grants, Subsidies, and Other 
Contributions 

This step involves reducing the capital costs necessary to provide the increased 

services by capital grants, subsidies, and other contributions (including direct developer 

contributions required due to the local service policy) made or anticipated by Council 

and in accordance with various rules such as the attribution between the share related 

to new vs. existing development.  That is, some grants and contributions may not 

specifically be applicable to growth or where Council targets fundraising as a measure 

to offset impacts on taxes (O. Reg. 82/98, section 6). 

4.9.5 Municipal-wide vs. Area-Specific 

This step involves determining whether all of the subject costs are to be recovered on a 

uniform municipal-wide basis or whether some or all are to be recovered on an area-

specific basis.  Under the amended D.C.A., it is now mandatory to “consider” area-rating 

of services (providing charges for specific areas and services); however, it is not 

mandatory to implement area rating. 

4.9.6 Allocation of Development 

This step involves relating the costs involved to anticipated development for each period 

under consideration and using allocations between residential and non-residential 

development and between one type of development and another, to arrive at a schedule 

of charges. 

4.9.7 Asset Management 

The legislation now requires that a D.C. background study must include an asset 

management plan (subsection 10 (2) c.2).  The asset management plan (A.M.P.) must 

deal with all assets that are proposed to be funded, in whole or in part, by D.C.s.  The 

current regulations provide very extensive and specific requirements for the A.M.P. 

related to transit services (as noted in the subsequent subsection); however, they are 

silent with respect to how the A.M.P. is to be provided for all other services.  As part of 

any A.M.P., the examination should be consistent with the municipality’s existing 

assumptions, approaches, and policies on asset management planning.  This 

examination has been included in Appendix F. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Chapter 5 
D.C. Eligible Cost Analysis by 
Service



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

5. D.C. Eligible Cost Analysis by Service 

5.1 Introduction 

This chapter outlines the basis for calculating eligible costs for the D.C.s to be applied 

on a uniform basis for the defined service areas.  In each case, the required calculation 

process set out in subsection 5 (1) paragraphs 2 to 7 in the D.C.A., and described in 

Chapter 4, was followed in determining D.C. eligible costs. 

The service component is evaluated on two format sheets: 

• The service standards that provide the average historical 15-year level of service 

calculation (see Appendix B), which “caps” the D.C. amounts (note that this is not 

required for water and wastewater services); and  

• The infrastructure cost calculation, which determines the potential D.C. 

recoverable cost. 

The nature of the capital projects and timing identified in the Chapter reflect Council’s 

current intention.  Over time, however, Township projects and Council priorities may 

change; accordingly, Council’s intentions may be altered, and different capital projects 

(and timing) may be necessary to meet the need for services required by new growth. 

5.2 Service Levels and 10-Year Capital Costs for Township-
wide D.C. Services Calculation  

This section evaluates the development-related capital requirements for all Township-

wide services over a 10-year planning period. 

5.2.1 Services Related to a Highway 

The Township’s inventory of roadways is measured in kilometres (km) and are further 

classified as asphalt (including rural, semi-urban, and urban roads) and gravel (only 

rural roads) roads.  In total, the Township currently owns 265.3 km of D.C. eligible 

roads.  Additionally, the Township owns and maintains a total of 51 bridges, culverts, 

and portion of a prefabricated structure.  Further, 19,336 sq.ft. of roads operations 

facility space is owned and used by the Township for Services Related to a Highway, 

along with 14 vehicles and equipment items to service the road network. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

The total inventory of assets over the past 15-years results in an invested level of 

service of $55,855 per capita.  When applied to the 10-year forecast population, a 

maximum D.C. eligible cost of approximately $14.97 million is applicable. 

Table 5-1 provides the 10-year capital program for Services Related to a Highway.  The 

capital program includes upgrades to road and bridges, as well as an additional vehicle.  

The total gross capital cost of the program is approximately $1.4 million over the 2024-

2033 forecast period.  Deductions related to the benefit to the existing development 

were applied of approximately $627,200, along with an adjustment to recognize the 

balance in the existing reserve fund of $188,716.  As a result, the total D.C. recoverable 

cost of $583,284 has been included in the calculation of the charge.  Approximately 

$513,378 (88%) and $70,006 (12%) has been attributed to residential and non-

residential developments, respectfully.  These attributions are based on the incremental 

growth anticipated in population and employment over the 10-year forecast period. 

5.2.2 Fire Protection Services 

The Township currently provides Fire Protection Services to its community through two 

(2) shared fire facilities, one (1) is located in the Township of Melancthon (shared with 

The Township of Mulmur) and the second is located in the Town of Shelburne (shared 

with the Towns of Shelburne and Mono, and the Townships of Mulmur and Amaranth).  

The facilities, vehicles, small equipment, and gear are shared with the based on the 

following proportionate shares: 

• The Mulmur-Melancthon Honeywood Fire Station:  The Township’s proportionate 

share of the service is 50%, based on an equal cost allocation with the Township 

of Mulmur.  As such, the Township’s share of the capital assets includes 3,375 

sq.ft., of facility space (including the fire station and Sea-Cans), 4 vehicles, and 

11 items related to small equipment and gear. 

• Shelburne Fire Hall:  The Township’s share of the service is adjusted annually.  

The apportionment between participating municipalities is based on 

an average of assessment, households, and a three-year fire call average.  

Historically, the Township’s cost share has ranged between 8.40% to 10.5% over 

the past 15-years.  The Township’s 2023 cost share was 10.5%.  This represents 

total facility space of 1,028 sq.ft., 1 vehicle, and 4.5 items related to small 

equipment and gear. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

In total in 2023, the Township was responsible for 4,404 sq.ft. of fire facility space, 5 fire 

vehicles, and 15.5 items related to small equipment and gear to provide fire protection 

services to its community. 

The total inventory of assets over the past 15-years results in an invested level of 

service of $1,218 per capita.  When applied to the 10-year forecast population, a 

maximum D.C. eligible cost of approximately $326,400 is applicable. 

The 10-year capital program for Fire Protection Services is provided in Table 5-2.  The 

capital program included a total gross capital cost of approximately $2.16 million over 

the 2024-2033 forecast period.  As the Honeywood and Shelburne Fire Services are 

shared with the Township of Mulmur and Town of Shelburne, deductions have made 

against each capital project to account for the contributions from the other member 

municipalities to the service agreements.  In total, these deductions equate to 

approximately $1.63 million. 

A post-period deduction has been made of $25,000 to recognize oversizing of capital to 

the benefit beyond the 10-year forecast period, in addition, $170,848 has been 

deducted for the existing D.C. reserve fund balance.  As a result, the D.C. recoverable 

cost of $325,452 has been apportioned to residential and non-residential development.  

The residential development cost share totals $286,398 (8%) and non-residential 

development cost share totals $39,054 (12%).  The allocation of D.C. recoverable costs 

by type of development is based on the incremental population and employment growth 

over the period. 

5.2.3 Parks and Recreation Services 

The Township provides a variety of parks and recreation-related assets to service the 

community.  It should be noted that some assets are located within the Township while 

others have been shared in the past and located in neighbouring municipalities.  

Currently, the Township maintains approximately 7.5 acres of developed parkland and 

10 parkland amenities such as ball diamonds, playgrounds, pavilions, etc.  Further, the 

Township is responsible for 24,920 sq.ft. of recreation facility space, along with an 

equivalent of 3 vehicles and equipment (some of which are shared with the Township of 

Mulmur). 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

The total inventory of assets over the past 15-years provides in an invested level of 

service of approximately $2,396 per capita.  When applied to the 10-year forecast 

population, a maximum D.C. eligible cost of approximately $642,100 is applicable. 

Table 5-3 provides the associated 10-year capital program for Parks and Recreation 

Services.  The gross capital costs identified in the capital program totals $1,674,600.  

This program includes the Horning’s Mills Park Development, a provision for anticipated 

parks and recreation development within the Township, and the Township’s 

proportionate share of recreation facility space in Shelburne, the that is anticipated to be 

required over the forecast period.  It is noted that the location of the new park(s) within 

the Township has not been finalized at this time.  The gross capital costs are adjusted 

to make deductions for the existing 2023 year-end D.C. reserve fund balance of 

$392,233.  The total D.C. recoverable amount of $638,367 has been included in the 

calculation of the charge. 

The predominate users of Parks and Recreation Services tend to be residents of the 

Township, as such, the forecast D.C. recoverable costs have been allocated 95% to 

residential development and 5% for non-residential development.  This results in 

$606,449 being attributed to residential developments and $31,918 being attributed to 

non-residential development. 

5.2.4 Library Services 

The Township currently has an agreement with the Town of Shelburne Library Board to 

utilize a portion of public library facility located in the Town of Shelburne.  Library costs 

are shared with the Towns of Shelburne and Mono, and the Townships of Melancthon, 

Mulmur and Amaranth. The Township’s proportionate share of capital costs varies 

annually based on a 3-year average of active library household cardholders within each 

of the member municipalities.  The Township’s cost share in 2023 was 16.1%.  As a 

result, the Township share of facility space has ranged from 1,049 sq.ft. to 1,083 sq.ft. 

over the past 15 years.  In addition, the Township is responsible for approximately 

11,420 items of library collection materials, based on the same proportionate shares 

annually.  In aggregate, the inventory of assets that the Township has been responsible 

for Library Services over the past 15-years equates to an average historical level of 

service of $343 per capita.  When applied to the 10-year forecast population, a 

maximum D.C. eligible cost of approximately $91,950 could be included in the D.C. 

calculation. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 5-4 presents the 10-year capital program for Library Services.  The gross capital 

cost, which includes capital projects for Shelburne Public Library equates to a total of 

$194,500.  A deduction of $83,900 for the capital costs that are the responsibility of the 

other municipalities was made in relation to “Pop up” Satellite Branches.  This deduction 

has been made to ensure that only the Township’s portion of the capital cost are 

included for recovery through the D.C.  Additionally, it is anticipated that one of these 

“Pop up” Satellite Branches is to be funded through other contributions, totalling 

$50,000, for which a deduction has been made.   

In additional to the “Pop up” Satellite Branches, part of the total gross costs includes a 

provision of $44,500 to allow for the expansion of the collection materials required to 

service the anticipated growth over the forecast period.  A deduction of $30,780 related 

to the 2023 year-end D.C. reserve fund has been made.  As a result, a total D.C. 

recoverable cost of $29,820 has been included in the calculation of the charge.  As the 

predominate users of Library Services tend to be residents, the forecast D.C. 

recoverable costs have been allocated 95% to residential development and 5% for non-

residential development.  This allocation equates to $28,329 and $1,491 attributable to 

residential and non-residential development, respectfully. 

5.2.5 Growth-Related Studies 

Upon enactment of Bill 185, the Township intends to remove of the mandatory phase-in 

of charges, and include the cost of growth-related studies in the charge.  The growth-

related studies anticipated for inclusion are as follows: 

• Development Charge Studies; 

• Official Plan Update; 

• Strategic Plans; and 

• Zoning By-law Update. 

The list of growth-related studies has an estimated gross capital cost of $425,000 and 

net D.C. recoverable cost of $64,913, after deductions for benefit to existing 

development, the portion of studies that do not relate to D.C. eligible services, and the 

year-end reserve fund balance.  Table 5-5 provides the summary of the class of service 

for growth studies.  The growth studies will be added to the schedule of charges in the 

by-law if Bill 185 is proclaimed.  These costs have been attributed to residential and 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-7 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

non-residential growth based on the incremental population and employment growth 

over the forecast period (i.e., 88% residential and 12% non-residential).    



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-8 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 5-1  
Township of Melancthon 

Infrastructure Costs Included in the Development Charge Calculation 
for Services Related to a Highway 

  

Less: Potential D.C. Recoverable Cost

Proj. 

No.

Residential 

Share

Non-

Residential 

Share

2024 to 2033 88% 12%

Road Upgrades:

1
4th Ln OS - Gravel Pit to Cty Rd. 17 (pulverize, 

gravel, pave)
2026 300,000     -            -            300,000     222,900        -                            77,100         67,848       9,252               

2
Provision for Road Expansions including 

Expanded Shoulders
2024-2033 300,000     -            -            300,000     150,000        -                            150,000        132,000     18,000             

Bridges and Culverts:

3
0011 - Anderson Bridge 8th Ln SW (3.4km N of 

Hwy 89)
2024-2031 53,800       -            -            53,800       45,700          -                            8,100           7,128         972                 

4 2023 - 4th Ln (400m South of Cty 21) 2024-2031 246,000     -            -            246,000     209,100        -                            36,900         32,472       4,428               

Vehicles and Equipment:

5 Excavator with Brusher 2024 500,000     -            -            500,000     -               -                            500,000        440,000     60,000             

Adjustments:

6 Reserve Fund Adjustment -            -            -            188,716        -                            (188,716)       (166,070)    (22,646)            

 Total 1,399,800  -            -            1,399,800  816,416        -                            583,384        513,378     70,006             

Increased Service Needs Attributable to 

Anticipated Development
Timing 

(year)

Gross 

Capital 

Cost 

Estimate

(2024$)

Post 

Period 

Benefit

Other 

Deductions

Net Capital 

Cost
Benefit to 

Existing 

Development

Grants, Subsidies 

and Other 

Contributions 

Attributable to New 

Development

Total



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-9 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 5-2 
Township of Melancthon 

Infrastructure Costs Included in the Development Charge Calculation 
for Fire Protection Services 

  

Less: Potential D.C. Recoverable Cost

Proj. 

No.

Residential 

Share

Non-

Residential 

Share

2024 to 2033 88% 12%

Honeywood Station:

1 Pick-up Truck 2025-2033 59,000       -            29,500        29,500       -                -                            29,500       25,960       3,540               

2 Provision for additional fire facility 2025-2033 500,000     25,000       250,000      225,000     -                -                            225,000     198,000     27,000             

3 Additional Hose & Nozzels 2024 33,000       -            16,500        16,500       -                -                            16,500       14,520       1,980               

Shelburne Station:

4 Provision for Building Addition 2028 1,394,000  -            1,193,000    201,000     -                -                            201,000     176,880     24,120             

5 Provision for Additional Firefighter Equipment (8) 2024-2027 94,000       -            80,500        13,500       -                -                            13,500       11,880       1,620               

6
Additional Service Vehicle  (Shelburne - 4 

additional - Mulmur Share)
2028-2033 75,000       -            64,200        10,800       -                -                            10,800       9,504         1,296               

Adjustments:

7 Reserve Fund Adjustment -            -            170,848         -                            (170,848)    (150,346)    (20,502)            

 Total 2,155,000  25,000       1,633,700    496,300     170,848         -                            325,452     286,398     39,054             

Increased Service Needs Attributable to 

Anticipated Development
Timing 

(year)

Post 

Period 

Benefit

Other 

Deductions

Net Capital 

Cost

Gross 

Capital 

Cost 

Estimate

(2024$)

Benefit to 

Existing 

Development

Grants, Subsidies 

and Other 

Contributions 

Attributable to New 

Development

Total



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-10 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 5-3 
Township of Melancthon 

Infrastructure Costs Included in the Development Charge Calculation 
for Parks and Recreation Services 

  

Less: Potential D.C. Recoverable Cost

Proj. 

No.

Residential 

Share

Non-

Residential 

Share

2024 to 2033 88% 12%

Road Upgrades:

1
4th Ln OS - Gravel Pit to Cty Rd. 17 (pulverize, 

gravel, pave)
2026 300,000     -            -            300,000     222,900        -                            77,100         67,848       9,252               

2
Provision for Road Expansions including 

Expanded Shoulders
2024-2033 300,000     -            -            300,000     150,000        -                            150,000        132,000     18,000             

Bridges and Culverts:

3
0011 - Anderson Bridge 8th Ln SW (3.4km N of 

Hwy 89)
2024-2031 53,800       -            -            53,800       45,700          -                            8,100           7,128         972                 

4 2023 - 4th Ln (400m South of Cty 21) 2024-2031 246,000     -            -            246,000     209,100        -                            36,900         32,472       4,428               

Vehicles and Equipment:

5 Excavator with Brusher 2024 500,000     -            -            500,000     -               -                            500,000        440,000     60,000             

Adjustments:

6 Reserve Fund Adjustment -            -            -            188,716        -                            (188,716)       (166,070)    (22,646)            

 Total 1,399,800  -            -            1,399,800  816,416        -                            583,384        513,378     70,006             

Increased Service Needs Attributable to 

Anticipated Development
Timing 

(year)

Gross 

Capital 

Cost 

Estimate

(2024$)

Post 

Period 

Benefit

Other 

Deductions

Net Capital 

Cost
Benefit to 

Existing 

Development

Grants, Subsidies 

and Other 

Contributions 

Attributable to New 

Development

Total



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-11 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 5-4 
Township of Melancthon 

Infrastructure Costs Included in the Development Charge Calculation 
for Library Services 

  

Proj. 

No.

Residential 

Share

Non-

Residential 

Share

2024 to 2033 95% 5%

1 "Pop-Up" Sattelite Branch 

(Book Vending Machines) (3)

2024-2033 150,000       -           83,900          66,100          -               50,000          16,100          15,295        805             

2

Provision for Additional 

Collection Materials & E-

Materials

2024-2033 44,500        -           -               44,500          -               -               44,500          42,275        2,225          

Adjustments:

3 Reserve Adjustment -              -           -               -               30,780          -               (30,780)         (29,241)       (1,539)         

 Total 194,500       -           83,900          110,600        30,780          50,000          29,820          28,329        1,491          

Total

Potential D.C. Recoverable Cost

Net Capital 

Cost

Benefit to 

Existing 

Development

Grants, 

Subsidies 

and Other 

Contributions 

Attributable 

to New 

Development

Gross 

Capital Cost 

Estimate

(2024$)

Less:

Post 

Period 

Benefit

Other 

Deductions

Increased Service Needs 

Attributable to Anticipated 

Development
Timing 

(year)



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-12 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 5-5 
Township of Melancthon 

Infrastructure Costs Included in the Development Charge Calculation 
for the Growth Studies Class of Service 

 

Residential 

Share

Non-

Residential 

Share

2024 to 2033 88% 12%

1 Development Charges Study:

1a Development Charges Study 2024 Services Related to a Highway 10,173        -           -               10,173          -               -                   10,173          8,952          1,221          

1b Development Charges Study 2024 Fire Protection Services 5,675          -           -               5,675            -               -                   5,675            4,994          681             

1c Development Charges Study 2024 Parks and Recreation Services 11,132        -           -               11,132          -               -                   11,132          9,796          1,336          

1d Development Charges Study 2024 Library Services 520             -           -               520              -               -                   520              458             62              

Sub-total Development Charges Study 27,500        -           -               27,500          -               -                   27,500          24,200        3,300          

2 Development Charges Study:

2a Development Charges Study 2033 Services Related to a Highway 10,173        -           -               10,173          -               -                   10,173          8,952          1,221          

2b Development Charges Study 2033 Fire Protection Services 5,675          -           -               5,675            -               -                   5,675            4,994          681             

2c Development Charges Study 2033 Parks and Recreation Services 11,132        -           -               11,132          -               -                   11,132          9,796          1,336          

2d Development Charges Study 2033 Library Services 520             -           -               520              -               -                   520              458             62              

Sub-total Development Charges Study 27,500        -           -               27,500          -               -                   27,500          24,200        3,300          

3 Official Plan:

3a Official Plan 2024-2025 Services Related to a Highway 18,496        -           1,850            16,646          4,162            -                   12,484          10,986        1,498          

3b Official Plan 2024-2025 Fire Protection Services 10,319        -           1,032            9,287            2,322            -                   6,965            6,129          836             

3c Official Plan 2024-2025 Parks and Recreation Services 20,240        -           2,024            18,216          4,554            -                   13,662          12,023        1,639          

3d Official Plan 2024-2025 Library Services 945             -           94                851              213              -                   638              561             77              

Sub-total Official Plan 50,000        -           5,000            45,000          11,251          -                   33,749          29,699        4,050          

4 Zoning By-law Update:

4a Zoning By-law Update 2024-2025 Services Related to a Highway 27,745        -           2,775            24,970          6,243            -                   18,727          16,480        2,247          

4b Zoning By-law Update 2024-2025 Fire Protection Services 15,478        -           1,548            13,930          3,483            -                   10,447          9,193          1,254          

4c Zoning By-law Update 2024-2025 Parks and Recreation Services 30,359        -           3,036            27,323          6,831            -                   20,492          18,033        2,459          

4d Zoning By-law Update 2024-2025 Library Services 1,418          -           141              1,277            319              -                   958              843             115             

Sub-total Zoning By-law Update 75,000        -           7,500            67,500          16,876          -                   50,624          44,549        6,075          

5 Strategic Plan:

5a Strategic Plan 2029 Services Related to a Highway 11,098        -           1,110            9,988            4,994            -                   4,994            4,395          599             

5b Strategic Plan 2029 Fire Protection Services 6,191          -           619              5,572            2,786            -                   2,786            2,452          334             

5c Strategic Plan 2029 Parks and Recreation Services 12,144        -           1,214            10,930          5,465            -                   5,465            4,809          656             

Net Capital 

Cost

Benefit to 

Existing 

Development

Grants, 

Subsidies and 

Other 

Contributions 

Attributable to 

New 

Development

Total

Less: Potential D.C. Recoverable Cost

Other 

Deductions 

(to recognize 

benefit to 

non-D.C. 

services)

Service(s) to Which 

the Study Relates

Proj. 

No.

Increased Service Needs Attributable 

to Anticipated Development
Timing 

(year)

Gross 

Capital Cost 

Estimate

(2024$)

Post 

Period 

Benefit



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 5-13 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 5-5 (continued) 
Township of Melancthon 

Infrastructure Costs Included in the Development Charge Calculation 
for the Growth Studies Class of Service 

 

Residential 

Share

Non-

Residential 

Share

2024 to 2033 88% 12%

5d Strategic Plan 2029 Library Services 567             -           57                510              255              -                   255              224             31              

Sub-total Strategic Plan 30,000        -           3,000            27,000          13,500          -                   13,500          11,880        1,620          

6 Bridge Studies (5) 2025-2033 Services Related to a Highway 100,000      -           -               100,000        50,000          -                   50,000          44,000        6,000          

7 Road Needs Study 2028-2029 Services Related to a Highway 65,000        -           -               65,000          32,500          -                   32,500          28,600        3,900          

8 Parks & Recreation Master Plan 2025-2033 Parks and Recreation Services 50,000        -           -               50,000          12,500          -                   37,500          33,000        4,500          

Adjustments

9 Reserve Fund Adjustment -           -               -               207,960        -                   (207,960)       (183,005)     (24,955)       

 Total 425,000      -           15,500          409,500        344,587        -                   64,913          57,123        7,790          

Net Capital 

Cost

Benefit to 

Existing 

Development

Grants, 

Subsidies and 

Other 

Contributions 

Attributable to 

New 

Development

Total

Less: Potential D.C. Recoverable Cost

Other 

Deductions 

(to recognize 

benefit to 

non-D.C. 

services)

Service(s) to Which 

the Study Relates

Proj. 

No.

Increased Service Needs Attributable 

to Anticipated Development
Timing 

(year)

Gross 

Capital Cost 

Estimate

(2024$)

Post 

Period 

Benefit



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Chapter 6 
D.C. Calculation



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 6-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

6. D.C. Calculation 

Table 6-1 calculate the proposed D.C.s to be imposed on development for all Township-

wide services over the 10-year forecast period (2024-2033).  Table 6-2 calculates the 

proposed D.C.s to be imposed on development on a Township-wide basis for the 

growth studies class of service, which will be considered if Bill 185 is enacted. 

The calculation for residential development is generated on a per capita basis and is 

based upon four (4) forms of housing types (singles and semi-detached dwellings, other 

multiple dwellings, bachelor and 1-bedroom apartments, and 2+ bedrooms apartments).  

The non-residential D.C. has been calculated on a uniform per sq.ft. of G.F.A. basis for 

all types of non-residential development (industrial, commercial, and institutional).  

The D.C. eligible costs for each service component were determined in Chapter 5 for all 

Township-wide services, based on their associated capital programs. 

For the residential calculations, the total cost is divided by the “gross” (new resident) 

population to determine the per capita amount.  The residential D.C. recoverable capital 

cost calculations set out in Chapter 5 are based on the net anticipated population 

increase (the forecast new unit population less the anticipated decline in existing units).  

The cost per capita is then multiplied by the average occupancy of the new units 

(Appendix A, Schedule 5) to calculate the charges in Tables 6-2.  Wind Turbines are 

deemed to be equivalent to a residential single detached unit as it relates to Services 

Related to a Highway, and Fire Protection Services only. 

Table 6-3 provides the schedule of charges that is applicable for all services by type of 

development.  Table 6-4 provides the schedule of charges if growth-related study costs 

become eligible for recovery through D.C., upon enactment of Bill 185.  Table 6-5 

summarizes the gross capital expenditures and sources of revenue for works to be 

undertake during the 10-year life of the by-law (excluding growth-related studies).  

Similarly, Table 6-6 provides a summary of the gross capital expenditures and sources 

for revenue works for all services and class of services, including growth-related 

studies.  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 6-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 6-1 
Township of Melancthon 

Town-Wide Services D.C. Calculation 
2024-2033 

 

Table 6-2 
Township of Melancthon 

Town-Wide Class of Services D.C. Calculation 
2024-2033 

 

2024$ D.C.-Eligible Cost 2024$ D.C.-Eligible Cost

SERVICE/CLASS Residential Non-Residential S.D.U. per sq.ft.

$ $ $ $

1. Services Related to a Highway  

1.1 Roads and Related 513,378                    70,006                       5,458                 1.77              

513,378                    70,006                       5,458                 1.77              

2. Fire Protection Services

2.1 Fire facilities, vehicles & equipment 286,398                    39,054                       3,045                 0.99              

286,398                    39,054                       3,045                 0.99              

3. Parks and Recreation Services

3.1
606,449                    31,918                       6,448                 0.81              

606,449                    31,918                       6,448                 0.81              

4. Library Services

4.1 Library facilities, materials and vehicles 28,329                      1,491                         301                    0.04              

28,329                      1,491                         301                    0.04              

TOTAL $1,434,554 $142,470 $15,252 $3.61

D.C.-Eligible Capital Cost $1,434,554 $142,470

10-Year Gross Population/GFA Growth (sq.ft.) 318                          39,400                       

Cost Per Capita/Non-Residential GFA (sq.ft.) $4,511.18 $3.62

By Residential Unit Type P.P.U.

Single and Semi-Detached Dwelling 3.381 $15,252

Other Multiples 2.951 $13,312

Apartments - 2 Bedrooms + 2.213 $9,983

Apartments - Bachelor and 1 Bedroom 1.100 $4,962

Park development, amenities, trails, recreation facilities, vehicles, 

and equipment

2024$ D.C.-Eligible Cost 2024$ D.C.-Eligible Cost

CLASS OF SERVICE Residential Non-Residential S.D.U. per sq.ft.

5. Growth Studies

5.1 Services Related to a Highway 29,109                      3,969                         309                    0.10              

5.2 Fire Protection Services 6,604                       901                           70                      0.02              

5.3 Library Services 605                          83                             6                       -                

5.4 Parks and Recreation Services 20,805                      2,837                         221                    0.07              

D.C.-Eligible Capital Cost $57,123 $7,790 $606 $0.19

10-Year Gross Population/GFA Growth (sq.ft.) 318                          39,400                       

Cost Per Capita/Non-Residential GFA (sq.ft.) $179.63 $0.19

By Residential Unit Type P.P.U.

Single and Semi-Detached Dwelling 3.381 $607

Other Multiples 2.951 $530

Apartments - 2 Bedrooms + 2.213 $398

Apartments - Bachelor and 1 Bedroom 1.100 $198



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 6-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 6-3 
Township of Melancthon 

Calculated Schedule of Development Charges 
by Service 

 

Single and 

Semi-Detached 

Dwelling

Other 

Multiples

Apartments - 2 

Bedrooms +

Apartments - 

Bachelor and 1 

Bedroom

Wind Trubines
(per sq.ft. of Gross 

Floor Area)

Township-Wide Services

Services Related to a Highway 5,458               4,764              3,572               1,776               5,458               1.77

Fire Protection Services 3,045               2,658              1,993               991                  3,045               0.99

Parks and Recreation Services 6,448               5,628              4,220               2,098               0.81

Library Services 301                  263                197                  98                    0.04

Total Township-Wide Services $15,252 $13,313 $9,982 $4,963 $8,503 $3.61

RESIDENTIAL 

Service

NON-RESIDENTIAL



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 6-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 6-4 
Township of Melancthon 

Calculated Schedule of Development Charges 
by Service and Class of Service 

 

Single and 

Semi-Detached 

Dwelling

Other 

Multiples

Apartments - 2 

Bedrooms +

Apartments - 

Bachelor and 1 

Bedroom

Wind Trubines
(per sq.ft. of Gross 

Floor Area)

Township-Wide Services

Services Related to a Highway 5,458               4,764              3,572               1,776               5,458               1.77

Fire Protection Services 3,045               2,658              1,993               991                  3,045               0.99

Parks and Recreation Services 6,448               5,628              4,220               2,098               0.81

Library Services 301                  263                197                  98                    0.04

Total Township-Wide Services $15,252 $13,313 $9,982 $4,963 $8,503 $3.61

Township-Wide Class of Service*

Growth Studies 606                  529                397                  197                  0.19

Total Township-Wide Class of Service $606 $529 $397 $197 $0 $0.19

Grand Total Township-Wide Services & Class of Service $15,858 $13,842 $10,379 $5,160 $8,503 $3.80

*Potential D.C. for Growth Studies to be considered if Bill 185 is enacted

RESIDENTIAL 

Service

NON-RESIDENTIAL



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 6-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 6-5 
Township of Melancthon 

Gross Expenditure and Sources of Revenue Summary for Costs 
to Incurred over the 10-Year Life of the By-law for all Services 

 

Sources of Financing

Tax Base or Other Non-D.C. Source D.C. Reserve Fund

Other 

Deductions

Benefit to 

Existing
Other Funding Residential Non-Residential

1. Services Related to a Highway

1.1 Roads and Related 1,399,800 0 816,416 0 0 513,378 70,006

2. Fire Protection Services

2.1 Fire facilities, vehicles & equipment 2,155,000 1,633,700 170,848 0 25,000 286,398 39,054

3. Parks and Recreation Services

3.1
Park development, amenities, trails, recreation facilities, 

vehicles, and equipment
1,674,600 0 392,233 0 644,000 606,449 31,918

4. Library Services

4.1 Library facilities, materials and vehicles 194,500 83,900 30,780 50,000 0 28,329 1,491

Total Expenditures & Revenues $5,423,900 $1,717,600 $1,410,276 $50,000 $669,000 $1,434,554 $142,470

Post D.C. Period 

Benefit

Total Gross CostService/Class



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 6-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table 6-6 
Township of Melancthon 

Gross Expenditure and Sources of Revenue Summary for Costs 
to Incurred over the 10-Year Life of the By-law for all Services/Class of Services 

 

Sources of Financing

Tax Base or Other Non-D.C. Source D.C. Reserve Fund

Other 

Deductions

Benefit to 

Existing
Other Funding Residential Non-Residential

1. Services Related to a Highway

1.1 Roads and Related 1,399,800 0 816,416 0 0 513,378 70,006

2. Fire Protection Services

2.1 Fire facilities, vehicles & equipment 2,155,000 1,633,700 170,848 0 25,000 286,398 39,054

3. Parks and Recreation Services

3.1
Park development, amenities, trails, recreation facilities, 

vehicles, and equipment
1,674,600 0 392,233 0 644,000 606,449 31,918

4. Library Services

4.1 Library facilities, materials and vehicles 194,500 83,900 30,780 50,000 0 28,329 1,491

5. Growth Studies

5.1 Services Related to a Highway 242,685 5,735 97,899 0 0 122,365 16,686

5.2 Fire Protection Services 43,338 3,199 8,591 0 0 27,762 3,786

5.3 Library Services 3,970 292 787 0 0 2,544 347

5.4 Parks and Recreation Services 135,007 6,274 29,350 0 0 87,457 11,926

Total Expenditures & Revenues $5,848,900 $1,733,100 $1,546,903 $50,000 $669,000 $1,674,682 $175,214

Post D.C. Period 

Benefit

Total Gross CostService/Class



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Chapter 7 
D.C. Policy Recommendations 
and D.C. By-law Rules



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 7-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

7. D.C. Policy Recommendations and D.C. By-law 
Rules 

7.1 Introduction 

This chapter outlines the D.C. policy recommendations and by-law rules. 

Subsection 5 (1) 9 of the D.C.A. states that rules must be developed: 

“to determine if a development charge is payable in any particular case 

and to determine the amount of the charge, subject to the limitations set 

out in subsection 6.” 

Paragraph 10 of the section goes on to state that the rules may provide for exemptions, 

phasing in and/or indexing of D.C.s. 

Subsection 5 (6) establishes the following restrictions on the rules: 

• the total of all D.C.s that would be imposed on anticipated development must not 

exceed the capital costs determined under subsection 5 (1) 2-7 for all services 

involved; 

• if the rules expressly identify a type of development, they must not provide for it 

to pay D.C.s that exceed the capital costs that arise from the increase in the 

need for service for that type of development; however, this requirement does not 

relate to any particular development; and 

• if the rules provide for a type of development to have a lower D.C. than is 

allowed, the rules for determining D.C.s may not provide for any resulting 

shortfall to be made up via other development. 

With respect to “the rules,” section 6 states that a D.C. by-law must expressly address 

the matters referred to above re subsection 5 (1) paragraphs 9 and 10, as well as how 

the rules apply to the redevelopment of land. 

The rules provided give consideration for the recent amendments to the D.C.A. as 

summarized in Chapter 1.  However, these policies are provided for Council’s 

consideration and may be refined prior to adoption of the by-law. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 7-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

7.2 D.C. By-law Structure 

It is recommended that: 

• The Township uses a uniform Township-wide D.C. calculation for all services. 

7.3 D.C. By-law Rules 

The following sets out the recommended rules governing the calculation, payment, and 

collection of D.C.s in accordance with subsection 6 of the D.C.A. 

It is recommended that the following provides the basis for the D.C.s: 

7.3.1 Payment in any Particular Case 

In accordance with the D.C.A., s.2(2), a D.C. be calculated, payable and collected 

where the development requires one or more of the following: 

(a) the passing of a zoning by-law or of an amendment to a zoning by-law under 

section 34 of the Planning Act; 

(b) the approval of a minor variance under section 45 of the Planning Act; 

(c) a conveyance of land to which a by-law passed under subsection 50 (7) of the 

Planning Act applies; 

(d) the approval of a plan of subdivision under section 51 of the Planning Act; 

(e) a consent under section 53 of the Planning Act; 

(f) the approval of a description under section 9 of the Condominium Act, 1998; or 

(g) the issuing of a permit under the Building Code Act, 1992 in relation to a building 

or structure. 

7.3.2 Determination of the Amount of the Charge 

The following convention be adopted: 

1. Costs allocated to residential uses will be assigned to different types of 

residential units based on the average occupancy for each housing type 

constructed during the previous decade.  Costs allocated to non-residential uses 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 7-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

will be assigned based on the amount of square feet of G.F.A. constructed for 

eligible uses (i.e., primary, industrial, commercial, and institutional). 

2. Costs allocated to residential and non-residential uses are based upon a number 

of conventions, as may be suited to each municipal circumstance, as follows: 

• For Services Related to a Highway and Fire Protections Services, an 88% 

residential and 12% non-residential attribution has been made, over the 

Township-wide 10-Year forecast period; 

• For Parks and Recreation Services along with Library Services, a 95% 

residential attribution and 5% non-residential attribution over the Township-

wide 10-year forecast period; and 

• For Growth Studies Class of Service, an 88% residential and 12% non-

residential attribution has been made, over the Township-wide 10-Year 

forecast period. 

7.3.3 Application to Redevelopment of Land (Demolition and 
Conversion) 

Despite any other provisions of this By-law 45-2019, where, as a result of the 

redevelopment of land, a building or structure existing on the same land within 60 

months prior to the date of payment of development charges in regard to such 

redevelopment was, or is to be demolished, in whole or in part, or converted from one 

principal use to another principal use on the same land, in order to facilitate the 

redevelopment, the development charges otherwise payable with respect to such 

redevelopment shall be reduced by the following amounts: 

• in the case of a residential building or structure, or in the case of a mixed-use 

building or structure, the residential uses in the mixed-use building or structure, 

an amount calculated by multiplying the applicable D.C. by the number, 

according to type, of dwelling units that have been or will be demolished or 

converted to another principal use; and 

• in the case of a non-residential building or structure or, in the case of mixed-use 

building or structure, the non-residential uses in the mixed-use building or 

structure, an amount calculated by multiplying the applicable D.C., by the G.F.A. 

that has been or will be demolished or converted to another principal use; 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 7-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

provided that such amounts shall not exceed, in total, the amount of the development 

charges otherwise payable with respect to the redevelopment. 

The conversion from an exempt principal use to a non-exempt principal use, on the 

same land, would result in the payment of the applicable D.C. based on the new non-

exempt use (with no D.C. credit applicable). 

7.3.4 Exemptions 

Statutory exemptions include the following: 

• Partial exemption for industrial building additions of up to and including 50% of 

the existing G.F.A. (defined in O. Reg. 82/98, section 1) of the building; for 

industrial building additions that exceed 50% of the existing G.F.A., only the 

portion of the addition in excess of 50%, is subject to D.C.s (subsection 4 (3) of 

the D.C.A.); 

• Full exemption for buildings or structures owned by and used for the purposes of 

any municipality, local board, or Board of Education; 

• Full exemption for additional residential development in existing buildings: 

development that results only in the enlargement of an existing dwelling unit, or 

that results only in the creation of up to two additional dwelling units (based on 

prescribed limits set out in section 2 of O. Reg. 82/98); 

• Full exemption for additional residential development in new dwellings: 

development that includes the creation of up to two additional dwelling units 

(based on prescribed limits set out in section 2 of O. Reg. 82/98); and 

• Full exemption for a university in Ontario that receives direct, regular, and 

ongoing operating funding from the Government of Ontario; 

• Full exemption for affordable residential units (see bulletin rates identified in 

section 1.3.8 herein); 

• Full exemption for attainable residential units; 

• Full exemption for affordable inclusionary zoning units; 

• Full exemption for non-profit housing developments; and 

• Partial exemption through a discount for rental housing units based on the 

number of bedrooms contained in each unit, as prescribed (note that these 

discounts are not part of the methodology required for calculating the charge, but 

a rule that has to be included in the by-law which informs implementation): 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 7-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

o Residential units intended for use as a rented residential premises with 

three (3) or more bedrooms - 25% discount. 

o Residential units intended for use as a rented residential premises with 

two (2) bedrooms - 20% discount. 

o Residential units intended for use as a rented residential premises not 

referred to 1 or 2 above - 15% discount. 

Non-statutory (discretionary exemptions) include the following: 

• D.C.s shall not be imposed on the development an agricultural use, including 

barns, silo, or other storage facilities for produce, livestock, or machinery and 

equipment used in connection with an existing agricultural operation, and other 

ancillary development to an agricultural use, but excluding a residential dwelling, 

an on-farm diversified use, a cannabis production facility, or a greenhouse. 

• D.C. shall not be imposed on a place of worship, for the portion of lands, 

buildings, or structures used for worship, or as a cemetery or burial ground 

exempt from taxation under the Assessment Act. 

7.3.5 Mandatory Phasing In 

As required by the More Homes Built Faster Act, 2022 the calculated D.C. will be 

phased-in over a five-year period as follows (unless Bill 185 is enacted, removing this 

mandatory requirement): 

• Year 1 - 80% of the maximum charge; 

• Year 2 - 85% of the maximum charge; 

• Year 3 - 90% of the maximum charge; 

• Year 4 - 95% of the maximum charge; and 

• Year 5 to expiry - 100% of the maximum charge. 

7.3.6 Timing of Collection 

The D.C.s for all services and classes are payable upon issuance of a building permit 

for each dwelling unit, building, or structure, subject to early or late payment 

agreements entered into by the Municipality and an owner under s. 27 of the D.C.A. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 7-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

Rental housing and institutional developments will pay D.C.s in six equal annual 

payments commencing at occupancy.  Moreover, the D.C. amount for all developments 

occurring within two (2) years of a Site Plan or Zoning By-law Amendment planning 

approval (for applications submitted after January 1, 2020 and before Bill 185 is 

enacted), shall be determined based on the D.C. in effect on the day of the applicable 

Site Plan or Zoning By-law Amendment application.  The D.C. amount for all 

developments occurring within eighteen (18) months of a Site Plan or Zoning By-law 

Amendment planning approval (for applications submitted after Bill 185 is enacted), 

shall be determined based on the D.C. in effect on the day of the applicable Site Plan or 

Zoning By-law Amendment application. 

Installment payments and payments determined at the time of Site Plan or Zoning By-

law Amendment application is subject to annual interest charges.  The maximum 

interest rate the Municipality can impose is the average prime rate plus 1%. 

7.3.7 Indexing 

Indexing of the D.C.s shall be implemented on a mandatory basis annually commencing 

on January 1st of each year, in accordance with the Statistics Canada Quarterly, Non-

Residential Building Construction Price Index 1 for the most recent year-over-year 

period. 

7.3.8 D.C. Spatial Applicability 

The D.C.A. historically has provided the opportunity for a municipality to impose 

municipal-wide charges or area specific charges.  Sections 2(7) and 2(8) of the D.C.A. 

provide that a D.C. by-law may apply to the entire municipality or only part of it and 

more than one D.C. by-law may apply to the same area.  The D.C.A. now require 

municipalities to consider the application of municipal-wide and area-specific D.C.s. 

s.10(2) (c.1) requires Council to consider the use of more than one D.C. by-law to 

reflect different needs from services in different areas.  Most municipalities in Ontario 

have established uniform, municipal-wide D.C.s.  When area-specific charges are used, 

it is generally to underpin master servicing and front-end financing arrangements for 

more localized capital costs. 

The rationale for maintaining a municipal-wide D.C. approach is based, in part, on the 

following: 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 7-7 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

1. All Municipal services, except for water and wastewater, require that the average 

15-year service standard be calculated.  This average service standard multiplied 

by growth in the Municipality, establishes an upper ceiling on the amount of funds 

that can be collected from all developing landowners.  Section 4 (4) of O. Reg. 

82/98 provides that “if a development charge by-law applies to a part of the 

municipality, the level of service and average level of service cannot exceed that 

which would be determined if the by-law applied to the whole municipality.” Put in 

layman terms, the average service standard multiplied by the growth within the 

specific area would establish an area-specific ceiling which would significantly 

reduce the total revenue recoverable for the Municipality hence potentially 

resulting in D.C. revenue shortfalls and impacts on property taxes. 

2. Expanding on item 1, attempting to impose an area charge potentially causes 

equity issues in transitioning from a Municipal-wide approach to an area-specific 

approach.  For example, if all services were now built (and funded) within Area A 

(which is 75% built out) and this was funded with some revenues from Areas B 

and C, moving to an area-rating approach would see Area A contribute no funds 

to the costs of services in Areas B and C.  The D.C.s would be lower in Area A 

(as all services are now funded) and higher in Areas B and C.  As well, funding 

shortfalls may then potentially encourage the municipality to provide less services 

to Areas B and C due to reduced revenue. 

3. Many services provided (roads, parks & recreation facilities) are not restricted to 

one specific area and are often used by all residents.  For example, arenas 

located in different parts of the Municipality will be used by residents from all 

areas depending on the programing of the facility (i.e., a public skate is available 

each night, but at a different arena; hence usage of any one facility at any given 

time is based on programming availability). 

Based on the foregoing and discussions with Township staff, there is no apparent 

justification for the establishment of area-specific D.C.s at this time.  The 

recommendation is to apply Township-wide D.C.s for all services.  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 7-8 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

7.4 Other D.C. By-law Provisions 

It is recommended that: 

7.4.1 Categories of Services for Reserve Fund and Credit Purposes 

It is recommended that the Township’s D.C. collections be contributed into four (4) 

separate reserve funds, including: 

• Services Related to a Highway; 

• Fire Protection Services; 

• Parks and Recreation Services; and 

• Library Services. 

7.4.2 Categories for Class of Service for Reserve Fund and Credit 
Purposes 

With enactment of Bill 185, it is recommended that the Township’s D.C. collections 

related to the growth studies class of service be contributed into a separate reserve 

fund from the four reserve funds for the services noted above in section 7.4.1. 

7.4.3 By-law In-force Date 

A by-law under the D.C.A. comes into force on the day after which the by-law is passed 

by Council. 

7.4.4 Minimum Interest Rate Paid on Refunds and Charged for Inter-
Reserve Fund Borrowing 

The minimum interest rate is the Bank of Canada rate on the day on which the by-law 

come into force (as per s.11 of O. Reg. 82/98).  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 7-9 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

 

7.5 Other Recommendations  

It is recommended that Council: 

“Whenever appropriate, request that grants, subsidies and other 
contributions be clearly designated by the donor as being to the benefit of 
existing development or new development, as applicable;” 

“Adopt the assumptions contained herein as an ‘anticipation’ with respect 
to capital grants, subsidies, and other contributions;” 

“Adopt the D.C. approach to calculate the charges on a uniform Township-
wide basis for all services.” 

“Approve the capital project listing set out in Chapter 5 of the D.C. 
Background Study dated May 16, 2024, subject to further annual review 
during the capital budget process;” 

“Approve the D.C. Background Study dated May 16, 2024, as amended (if 
applicable);" 

“Determine that no further public meeting is required;” and 

“Approve the D.C. By-law as set out in Appendix G.”



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Chapter 8 
By-law Implementation 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 8-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 
 

8. By-law Implementation 

8.1  Public Consultation Process 

8.1.1 Introduction 

This chapter addresses the mandatory, formal public consultation process (section 

8.1.2), as well as the optional, informal consultation process (section 8.1.3).   The latter 

is designed to seek the co-operation and participation of those involved, in order to 

produce the most suitable policy.  Section 8.2 addresses the anticipated impact of the 

D.C. on development from a generic viewpoint. 

8.1.2 Public Meeting of Council 

Section 12 of the D.C.A. indicates that before passing a D.C. by-law, Council must hold 

at least one public meeting, giving at least 20 clear days’ notice thereof, in accordance 

with the Regulation.  Council must also ensure that the proposed by-law and 

background report are made available to the public at least two weeks prior to the (first) 

meeting. 

Any person who attends such a meeting may make representations related to the 

proposed by-law. 

If a proposed by-law is changed following such a meeting, Council must determine 

whether a further meeting (under this section) is necessary (i.e., if the proposed by-law 

which is proposed for adoption has been changed in any respect, Council should 

formally consider whether an additional public meeting is required, incorporating this 

determination as part of the final by-law or associated resolution.  It is noted that 

Council’s decision, once made, is final and not subject to review by a Court or the 

Ontario Land Tribunal (O.L.T.) (formerly the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal (LPAT)). 

8.1.3 Other Consultation Activity 

There are three broad groupings of the public who are generally the most concerned 

with municipal D.C. policy: 

1. The first grouping is the residential development community, consisting of land 

developers and builders, who are typically responsible for generating the majority 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 8-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

of the D.C. revenues.  Others, such as realtors, are directly impacted by D.C. 

policy.  They are, therefore, potentially interested in all aspects of the charge, 

particularly the quantum by unit type, projects to be funded by the D.C. and the 

timing thereof, and municipal policy with respect to development agreements, 

D.C. credits and front-ending requirements. 

2. The second public grouping embraces the public at large and includes taxpayer 

coalition groups and others interested in public policy. 

3. The third grouping is the industrial/commercial/institutional/primary development 

sector, consisting of land developers and major owners or organizations with 

significant construction plans, such as hotels, entertainment complexes, 

shopping centres, offices, industrial buildings, institutional buildings, and 

buildings on agricultural lands.  Also involved are organizations such as Industry 

Associations, the Chamber of Commerce, the Board of Trade, and the Economic 

Development Agencies, who are all potentially interested in Municipal D.C. 

policy.  Their primary concern is frequently with the quantum of the charge, gross 

floor area exclusions such as basements, mechanical or indoor parking areas, or 

exemptions and phase-in or capping provisions in order to moderate the impact. 

8.1.4 Anticipated Impact of the Charge on Development 

The establishment of sound D.C. policy often requires the achievement of an 

acceptable balance between two competing realities.  The first is that high non-

residential D.C.s can, to some degree, represent a barrier to increased economic 

activity and sustained industrial/commercial growth, particularly for capital intensive 

uses.  Also, in many cases, increased residential D.C.s can ultimately be expected to be 

recovered via housing prices and can impact project feasibility in some cases (e.g., 

rental apartments). 

On the other hand, D.C.s or other municipal capital funding sources need to be obtained 

in order to help ensure that the necessary infrastructure and amenities are installed. 

The timely installation of such works is a key initiative in providing adequate service 

levels and in facilitating strong economic growth, investment, and wealth generation. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 8-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

8.2 Implementation Requirements 

8.2.1 Introduction 

Once the Municipality has calculated the charge, prepared the complete background 

study, carried out the public process and passed a new by-law, the emphasis shifts to 

implementation matters.  These include notices, potential appeals and complaints, 

credits, front-ending agreements, subdivision agreement conditions and finally the 

collection of revenues and funding of projects. 

The sections that follow present an overview of the requirements in each case. 

8.2.2 Notice of Passage 

In accordance with section 13 of the D.C.A., when a D.C. by-law is passed, the 

Municipal Clerk shall give written notice of the passing and of the last day for appealing 

the by-law (the day that is 40 days after the day it was passed).  Such notice must be 

given no later than 20 days after the day the by-law is passed (i.e., as of the day of 

newspaper publication or the mailing of the notice). 

Section 10 of O. Reg. 82/98 further defines the notice requirements which are 

summarized as follows: 

• notice may be given by publication in a newspaper which is (in the Clerk's 

opinion) of sufficient circulation to give the public reasonable notice, or by 

personal service, fax, or mail to every owner of land in the area to which the by-

law relates; 

• subsection 10 (4) lists the persons/organizations who must be given notice; and 

• subsection 10 (5) lists the eight items that the notice must cover. 

8.2.3 By-law Pamphlet 

In addition to the “notice” information, the Municipality must prepare a “pamphlet” 

explaining each D.C. by-law in force, setting out: 

• a description of the general purpose of the D.C.s; 

• the "rules" for determining if a charge is payable in a particular case and for 

determining the amount of the charge; 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 8-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

• the services to which the D.C.s relate; and 

• a description of the general purpose of the Treasurer's statement and where it 

may be received by the public. 

Where a by-law is not appealed to the O.L.T., the pamphlet must be readied within 60 

days after the by-law comes into force.  Later dates apply to appealed by-law. 

The Municipality must give one copy of the most recent pamphlet without charge, to any 

person who requests one. 

8.2.4 Appeals 

Sections 13 to 19 of the D.C.A. set out the requirements relative to making and 

processing a D.C. by-law appeal and O.L.T. hearing in response to an appeal.  Any 

person or organization may appeal a D.C. by-law to the O.L.T. by filing a notice of 

appeal with the Municipal Clerk, setting out the objection to the by-law and the reasons 

supporting the objection.  This must be done by the last day for appealing the by-law, 

which is 40 days after the by-law is passed. 

The Municipality is conducting a public consultation process in order to address the 

issues that come forward as part of that process, thereby avoiding or reducing the need 

for an appeal to be made. 

8.2.5 Complaints 

A person required to pay a D.C., or his agent, may complain to the Municipal Council 

imposing the charge that: 

• the amount of the charge was incorrectly determined; 

• the reduction to be used against the D.C. was incorrectly determined; or 

• there was an error in the application of the D.C. 

Sections 20 to 25 of the D.C.A. set out the requirements that exist, including the fact 

that a complaint may not be made later than 90 days after a D.C. (or any part of it) is 

payable.  A complainant may appeal the decision of Municipal Council to the O.L.T. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 8-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

8.2.6 Credits 

Sections 38 to 41 of the D.C.A. set out a number of credit requirements, which apply 

where a municipality agrees to allow a person to perform work in the future that relates 

to a service in the D.C. by-law. 

These credits would be used to reduce the amount of D.C.s to be paid.  The value of 

the credit is limited to the reasonable cost of the work which does not exceed the 

average level of service.  The credit applies only to the service to which the work relates 

unless the municipality agrees to expand the credit to other services for which a D.C. is 

payable. 

8.2.7 Front-Ending Agreements 

The Municipality and one or more landowners may enter into a front-ending agreement 

that provides for the costs of a project that will benefit an area in the Municipality to 

which the D.C. by-law applies.  Such an agreement can provide for the costs to be 

borne by one or more parties to the agreement who are, in turn, reimbursed in future by 

persons who develop land defined in the agreement. 

Part III of the D.C.A. (sections 44 to 58) addresses front-ending agreements and 

removes some of the obstacles to their use which were contained in the Development 

Charges Act, 1989.  Accordingly, the Municipality assesses whether this mechanism is 

appropriate for its use, as part of funding projects prior to Municipal funds being 

available. 

8.2.8 Severance and Subdivision Agreement Conditions 

Section 59 of the D.C.A. prevents a municipality from imposing directly or indirectly, a 

charge related to development or a requirement to construct a service related to 

development, by way of a condition or agreement under section 51 or section 53 of the 

Planning Act, except for: 

• "local services, related to a plan of subdivision or within the area to which the 

plan relates, to be installed or paid for by the owner as a condition of approval 

under section 51 of the Planning Act;" and 

• "local services to be installed or paid for by the owner as a condition of approval 

under section 53 of the Planning Act." 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE 8-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

It is also noted that subsection 59 (4) of the D.C.A. requires that the municipal approval 

authority for a draft plan of subdivision under subsection 51 (31) of the Planning Act, 

use its power to impose conditions to ensure that the first purchaser of newly subdivided 

land is informed of all the D.C.s related to the development, at the time the land is 

transferred. 

In this regard, if the municipality in question is a commenting agency, in order to comply 

with subsection 59 (4) of the D.C.A. it would need to provide to the approval authority 

information regarding the applicable municipal D.C.s related to the site. 

If the Municipality is an approval authority for the purposes of section 51 of the Planning 

Act, it would be responsible to ensure that it collects information from all entities that 

can impose a D.C. 

The most effective way to ensure that purchasers are aware of this condition would be 

to require it as a provision in a registered subdivision agreement, so that any purchaser 

of the property would be aware of the charges at the time the title was searched prior to 

closing a transaction conveying the lands.



 

 

Appendices 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix A  
Background Information on 
Residential and Non-
Residential Growth Forecast 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule 1 
Township of Melancthon 

Residential Growth Forecast Summary 

 

[1] Population includes the Census undercount estimated at approximately 3.2% and has been rounded. 
[2] Includes townhouses and apartments in duplexes. 
[3] Includes bachelor, 1-bedroom, and 2-bedroom+ apartment units. 
Notes: 
Numbers may not add due to rounding. 
Source: Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. 

Population
Institutional 

Population

Population 

Excluding 

Institutional 

Population

Singles & 

Semi-

Detached

Multiple 

Dwellings
[2] Apartments

[3] Other
Total 

Households

Equivalent 

Institutional 

Households

2,930 2,839 9 2,830 946 17 6 5 974 8 2.915

3,100 3,008 3 3,005 1,010 25 0 0 1,035 3 2.906

3,230 3,132 32 3,100 1,015 15 0 5 1,035 29 3.026

3,320 3,218 33 3,185 1,052 15 0 5 1,072 30 3.002

3,600 3,486 36 3,450 1,142 15 5 5 1,167 33 2.987

170 169 -6 175 64 8 -6 -5 61 -5

130 124 29 95 5 -10 0 5 0 26

90 86 1 85 37 0 0 0 37 1

280 268 3 265 90 0 5 0 95 3

Mid 2011 - Mid 2016

Mid 2016 - Mid 2021

Mid 2011

Mid 2016

Mid 2021

Mid 2024

Mid 2034

Mid 2021 - Mid 2024

Mid 2024 - Mid 2034

Population 

(Including        

Census 

Undercount)
[1]

Year

Excluding Census Undercount Housing Units Person Per 

Unit (P.P.U.): 

Total 

Population/ 

Total 

Households

H
is

to
ri
c
a
l

F
o
re

c
a
s
t

In
c
re

m
e
n
ta

l



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Figure A-1 
Township of Melancthon 

Annual Housing Forecast[1] 

 

[1] Growth forecast represents calendar year. 
Source: Historical housing activity derived from Statistics Canada building permit data, 2014 to 2023, by Watson & Associates 
Economists Ltd. 

8
9

11
12 12

11
12

17

14

6 6

9
10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

H
o
u
s
in

g
 U

n
it
s

Years

Historical Low Density Medium Density High Density Historical Average



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule 2 
Township of Melancthon 

Current Year Growth Forecast 
Mid 2021 to Mid 2024 

  

Mid 2021 Population 3,132

Occupants of Units (2) 37

New Housing Units, multiplied by P.P.U. (3) 3.441

Mid 2021 to Mid 2024 gross population increase 127 127

Occupants of New Units 1

Equivalent Institutional Units, multiplied by P.P.U. (3) 1.100

Mid 2021 to Mid 2024 gross population increase 1 1

Decline in Housing Units (4) 1,035

Unit Occupancy, multiplied by P.P.U. decline rate (5) -0.041

Mid 2021 to Mid 2024 total decline in population -42 -42

 Population Estimate to Mid 2024 3,218

Net Population Increase, Mid 2021 to Mid 2024 86

(1) 2021 population based on Statistics Canada Census unadjusted for Census undercount.

(2)

(3) Average number of persons per unit (P.P.U.) is assumed to be:

Singles & Semi Detached 3.441 100% 3.441

Multiples (6) 3.196 0% 0.000

Apartments (7) 2.519 0% 0.000

Total 100% 3.441

¹ Based on 2021 Census custom database

² Based on Building permit/completion activity

(4) 2021 households taken from Statistics Canada Census.

(5) Decline occurs due to aging of the population and family life cycle changes, lower fertility rates and

changing economic conditions. 

(6) Includes townhouses and apartments in duplexes.

(7) Includes bachelor, 1-bedroom and 2-bedroom+ apartments.

Note: Numbers may not add to totals due to rounding.

Estimated residential units constructed, Mid-2021 to the beginning of the growth period assuming a six-month lag between construction and 

occupancy.

Population

Structural Type
Persons Per Unit¹ 

(P.P.U.)

% Distribution of 

Estimated Units²

Weighted Persons 

Per Unit Average



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule 3 
Township of Melancthon 

Ten Year Growth Forecast 
Mid 2024 to Mid 2034 

  

Mid 2024 Population 3,218

Occupants of Units (2) 95

New Housing Units, multiplied by P.P.U. (3) 3.312

Mid 2024 to Mid 2034 gross population increase 315 315

Occupants of New Units 3

Equivalent Institutional Units, multiplied by P.P.U. (3) 1.100

Mid 2024 to Mid 2034 gross population increase 3 3

Decline in Housing Units (4) 1,072

Unit Occupancy, multiplied by P.P.U. decline rate (5) -0.047

Mid 2024 to Mid 2034 total decline in population -50 -50

 Population Estimate to Mid 2034 3,486

Net Population Increase, Mid 2024 to Mid 2034 268

(1) Mid 2024 Population based on:

(2) Based upon forecast building permits/completions assuming a lag between construction and occupancy.

(3) Average number of persons per unit (P.P.U.) is assumed to be:

Singles & Semi Detached 3.381 95% 3.203

Multiples (6) 2.951 0% 0.000

Apartments (7) 2.065 5% 0.109

one bedroom or less 1.100

two bedrooms or more 2.213

Total 100% 3.312

¹ Persons per unit based on adjusted Statistics Canada Custom 2021 Census database.

² Forecast unit mix based upon historical trends and housing units in the development process.

(4) Mid 2024 households based upon 2021 Census (1,035 units) + Mid 2021 to Mid 2024 unit estimate (37 units) = 1,072 units.

(5)

(6) Includes townhouses and apartments in duplexes.

(7) Includes bachelor, 1-bedroom and 2-bedroom+ apartments.

Note: Numbers may not add to totals due to rounding.

Decline occurs due to aging of the population and family life cycle changes, lower fertility rates and changing economic conditions. 

Population

2021 Population (3,132) + Mid 2021 to Mid 2024 estimated housing units to beginning of forecast period  (37 x 3.441 = 127) + (1 x 1.1 = 1) + 

(1,035 x -0.041 = -42) = 3,218

Structural Type
Persons Per Unit¹ 

(P.P.U.)

% Distribution of 

Estimated Units²

Weighted Persons 

Per Unit Average



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule 4 
Township of Melancthon 

Historical Residential Building Permits 
Years 2014 to 2023 

 
[1] Includes Townhouses and apartments in duplexes. 
[2] Includes bachelor, 1-bedroom, and 2-bedroom+ apartment units. 
Source: Historical housing activity derived from Statistics Canada building permit data for the 
Township of Melancthon, 2014-2023, by Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  

Residential Building Permits Residential Building Completions

Total

2014 8 0 0 8

2015 9 0 0 9

2016 11 0 0 11

2017 12 0 0 12

2018 12 0 0 12

Sub-total 52 0 0 52

Average (2014 - 2018) 10 0 0 10

% Breakdown 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%

2019 9 0 2 11

2020 12 0 0 12

2021 17 0 0 17

2022 14 0 0 14

2023 6 0 0 6

Sub-total 58 0 2 60

Average (2019 - 2023) 12 0 0 12

% Breakdown 96.7% 0.0% 3.3% 100.0%

2014 - 2023

Total 110 0 2 112

Average 11 0 0 11

% Breakdown 98.2% 0.0% 1.8% 100.0%

Singles & 

Semi 

Detached

Multiples
[1]

Apartments
[2]

Year



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-7 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule 5a 
Township of Melancthon 

Persons Per Unit by Age and Type of Dwelling 
(2021 Census) 

 
[1] Adjusted based on historical trends. 
Note:  Does not include Statistics Canada data classified as “Other.” 
P.P.U. Not calculated for samples less than or equal to 50 dwelling units and does not include 
institutional population.  

Age of Singles and Semi-Detached

Dwelling < 1 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3/4 BR  5+ BR Total 15 Year Average 15 Year Average Adjusted 
[1]

1-5 - -          -          -          -          -          

6-10 - -          -          -          -          -          #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

11-15 - -          -          3.769        -          3.389        3.389                              3.381                                              

16-20 - -          -          3.250        -          3.294        3.342                              3.381                                              

20-25 - -          -          2.333        -          2.467        3.050                              3.381                                              

25-35 - -          -          2.818        -          2.923        

35+ - -          2.000        2.908        -          2.900        2.995                              3.381                                              

Total 0.154        - 2.412        2.979        5.400        3.010        

Age of All Density Types

Dwelling < 1 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3/4 BR  5+ BR Total

1-5 - -          -          -          -          -          

6-10 - -          -          -          -          -          

11-15 - -          -          3.769        -          3.389        

16-20 - -          -          3.250        -          3.278        

20-25 - -          -          2.333        -          2.467        

25-35 - -          -          2.818        -          2.923        

35+ - -          2.077        2.921        6.273        2.850        

Total 0.133        - 2.500        2.986        5.074        2.976        



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-8 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule 5b 
Dufferin County 

Person Per Unit by Age and Type of Dwelling 
(2021 Census) 

 
[1] Includes townhouses and apartments in duplexes.  
[2] Includes bachelor, 1 bedroom and 2 bedroom+ apartments.  
[3] Adjusted based on historical trends. 
Note:  Does not include Statistics Canada data classified as “Other.” 
P.P.U. Not calculated for samples less than or equal to 50 dwelling units and does not include 
institutional population.

Age of Multiples
[1]

Dwelling < 1 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3/4 BR  5+ BR Total 15 Year Average 15 Year Average Adjusted 
[3]

1-5 - -          -             3.205        -          3.196        

6-10 - -          -             2.950        -          2.714        

11-15 - -          -             -          -          2.571        2.827                              2.951                                                 

16-20 - -          -             2.667        -          2.727        2.802                              2.951                                                 

20-25 - -          -             2.882        -          2.300        2.702                              2.951                                                 

25-35 - -          -             3.250        -          3.033        

35+ 0.300        1.231        2.105           2.657        -          2.321        

Total 0.368        1.750        2.103           2.885        - 2.581        

Age of Apartments
[2]

Dwelling < 1 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3/4 BR  5+ BR Total 15 Year Average 15 Year Average Adjusted 
[3]

1-5 - -          -             2.696        -          2.519        

6-10 - -          1.538           -          -          1.813        

11-15 - -          1.500           -          -          1.765        2.032                              2.065                                                 

16-20 - -          -             -          -          1.583        1.920                              2.065                                                 

20-25 - -          -             -          -          1.294        1.795                              2.065                                                 

25-35 - -          -             -          -          1.467        

35+ 0.643        1.204        1.776           2.318        -          1.514        

Total 0.500        1.194        1.726           2.686        - 1.586        

Age of All Density Types

Dwelling < 1 BR 1 BR 2 BR 3/4 BR  5+ BR Total

1-5 - -          -             3.236        4.750        3.336        

6-10 - -          1.750           3.245        4.696        3.293        

11-15 - -          1.690           3.241        4.088        3.134        

16-20 - -          2.000           3.129        4.394        3.153        

20-25 - 1.571        1.842           3.106        4.086        3.026        

25-35 - -          1.935           2.950        4.273        2.994        

35+ 1.091        1.271        1.865           2.711        3.995        2.537        

Total 1.667        1.360        1.868           2.920        4.219        2.809        



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-9 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule 6 
Township of Melancthon 

Person Per Unit Structural Type and Age of Dwelling 
(2021 Census) 

 

0.00 0.00

3.39
3.29

2.47

2.92 2.90

3.20

2.71
2.57

2.73

2.30

3.03

2.32
2.52

1.81 1.76
1.58

1.29
1.47 1.51

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

4.00

1-5 6-10 11-15 16-20 20-25 25-35 35+

P
e
rs

o
n

s
 P

e
r 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

Age of Dwelling 

Singles and Semi-Detached Multiples Apartments

Multiple and Apartment P.P.U.s are based on Dufferin County.



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-10 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule 7a 
Township of Melancthon 

Employment Forecast, 2024 to 2034 

 
[1] Statistics Canada defines no fixed place of work (N.F.P.O.W.) employees as "persons who do not go from home to the same work 
place location at the beginning of each shift".  Such persons include building and landscape contractors, travelling salespersons, 
independent truck drivers, etc. 
Note:  Statistics Canada 2021 Census place of work employment data has been reviewed.  The 2021 Census employment results 
have not been utilized due to a significant increase in work at home employment captured due to Census enumeration occurring 
during the provincial COVID-19 lockdown from April 1, 2021 to June 14, 2021. 
Source: Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. 

Employment

Mid 2016 3,008 0.022 0.062 0.037 0.025 0.015 0.160 0.046 0.205 65 185 110 75 45 480 137 617 295

Mid 2024 3,218 0.016 0.066 0.034 0.032 0.034 0.182 0.046 0.228 52 211 111 102 110 586 149 735 375

Mid 2034 3,486 0.016 0.068 0.034 0.034 0.034 0.186 0.046 0.232 54 237 119 119 118 647 160 807 410

Mid 2016 - Mid 2024 210 -0.0054 0.0041 -0.0021 0.0068 0.0192 0.0225 0.0008 0.0233 -13 26 1 27 65 106 12 118 80

Mid 2024 - Mid 2034 268 -0.0005 0.0025 -0.0003 0.0025 -0.0003 0.0039 -0.0003 0.0036 2 26 8 17 8 61 11 72 35

Mid 2016 - Mid 2024 26 -0.00068 0.00051 -0.00026 0.00085 0.00240 0.00282 0.00009 0.00291 -2 3 0 3 8 13 2 15 10

Mid 2024 - Mid 2034 27 -0.00005 0.00025 -0.00003 0.00025 -0.00003 0.00039 -0.00003 0.00036 0 3 1 2 1 6 1 7 4

Total 

(Excluding 

Work at Home 

and 

N.F.P.O.W.)

  Incremental Change

  Annual Average

Total 

Including 

N.F.P.O.W.

N.F.P.O.W.
[1]Work at 

Home
Industrial

Commercial/ 

Population 

Related

Total 

Employment 

(Including 

N.F.P.O.W.)

InstitutionalN.F.P.O.W.
[1]

Activity Rate

Period Population
Primary

Work at 

Home
Industrial

Commercial/ 

Population 

Related

Institutional Total

Employment

Primary Total



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE A-11 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule 7b 
Township of Melancthon 

Employment and Gross Floor Area (G.F.A.) Forecast, 2024 to 2034 

 
[1] Square Foot Per Employee Assumptions 

Primary - Non-Bona Fide Farming   3,000 
Industrial   2,000 
Commercial/Population-Related      550 
Institutional      900 

[2] Primary industry includes bona-fide, non bona-fide farming and cannabis growing operation related employment. 

*Reflects Mid-2024 to Mid-2034 forecast period. 
Note:  Numbers may not add up precisely due to rounding. 
Source: Watson & Associates Economists Ltd. 

Mid 2016 3,008 65 110 75 45 295 195,000 220,000 45,000 40,500 500,500

Mid 2024 3,218 52 111 102 110 375 156,000 222,000 61,200 99,000 538,200

Mid 2034 3,486 54 119 119 118 410 162,000 238,000 71,400 106,200 577,600

Mid 2016 - Mid 2024 210 -13 1 27 65 80 -39,000 2,000 16,200 58,500 37,700

Mid 2024 - Mid 2034 268 2 8 17 8 35 6,000 16,000 10,200 7,200 39,400

Mid 2016 - Mid 2024 26 -2 0 3 8 10 -4,875 250 2,025 7,313 4,713

Mid 2024 - Mid 2034 27 0 1 2 1 4 600 1,600 1,020 720 3,940

Period Population

Employment

Total

  Annual Average

Primary Industrial Institutional Total 

Primary - Non-

Bona Fide 

Farming
[2]

Gross Floor Area in Square Feet (Estimated)
[¹]

  Incremental Change

Commercial/ 

Population 

Related

Institutional Industrial

Commercial/ 

Population 

Related



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix B  
Level of Service 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-1 
Township of Melancthon 

Summary of the Level of Service Ceiling by Services Considered 

  

Cost (per capita)

Services Related to a Highway - Roads $39,778.87 0.0884    km of roadways 449,987    per km 10,660,737    

Services Related to a Highway - Bridges, Culverts & Structures $13,435.00 0.0170    Number of Bridges, Culverts & Structures 790,294    per item 3,600,580     

Services Related to a Highway - Public Works Facilities $1,423.00 5.5256    sq.ft. of building area 258          per sq.ft. 381,364        

Services Related to a Highway - Public Works Vehicles & Equipment $1,218.03 0.0037    No. of vehicles and equipment 329,197    per vehicle 326,432        

Fire Protection Services - Facilities $579.56 1.4693    sq.ft. of building area 394          per sq.ft. 155,322        

Fire Protection Services - Vehicles & Equipment $503.83 0.0014    No. of vehicles 359,879    per vehicle 135,026        

Fire Protection Services - Small Equipment and Gear $134.52 0.0055    No. of equipment and gear 24,458      per item 36,051          

Parkland Development $159.21 0.0021    No. of parkland amenities 75,814      per acre 42,668          

Parkland Amenities $86.85 0.0017    No. of parkland amenities 51,088      per amenity 23,276          

Recreation Facilities $2,136.24 5.8313    sq.ft. of building area 366          per sq.ft. 572,512        

Parks & Recreation Vehicles and Equipment $13.72 0.0005    No. of vehicles and equipment 27,440      per vehicle 3,677            

Library Services - Facilities $176.97 0.3561    sq.ft. of building area 497          per sq.ft. 47,428          

Library Services - Collection Materials $166.14 3.6920    No. of library collection items 45            per collection item 44,526          

Maximum 

Ceiling LOS

15 Year Average Service Standard

Quality (per capita)Quantity (per capita)

SUMMARY OF SERVICE STANDARDS AS PER DEVELOPMENT CHARGES ACT, 1997, AS AMENDED

Service Category Sub-Component

Service Related to a 

Highway

Library

Parks & Recreation

Fire Protection



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-2 
Township of Melancthon 

Services Related to a Highway – Roads and Related 

  

Unit Measure: km of roadways

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2024 Value 

($/km)

Asphalt - Rural 67.02              67.02      67.02      67.02      67.02      67.02      67.02      67.02      67.02      67.02      62.02      62.02      62.02      54.36      54.36      $625,000

Asphalt - Semi-Urban 8.76               8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        8.76        $615,000

Asphalt - Urban 1.31               1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        1.31        $650,000

Gravel - Rural 188.22            188.22     188.22     188.22     188.22     188.22     188.22     188.22     188.22     188.22     193.22     193.22     193.22     200.88     200.88     $382,000

Total 265.30            265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     265.30     

Population 2,918              2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 0.0909            0.0924     0.0934     0.0927     0.0917     0.0905     0.0894     0.0882     0.0875     0.0868     0.0860     0.0854     0.0847     0.0835     0.0826     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 0.0884            

Quality Standard $449,987

Service Standard $39,779

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $39,779

Eligible Amount $10,660,737



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-3 
Township of Melancthon 

Services Related to a Highway – Bridges and Culverts 

 

Unit Measure: Number of Bridges, Culverts & Structures

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2024 Value 

($/item)

Bridge/Structure 28.5               28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        28.5        1,012,200   

Culvert 22.0               22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        22.0        517,100      

Prefabricated Structure (50% Share) 0.5                0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          206,500      

Total 51.0               51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        51.0        

Population 2,918             2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 0.0175           0.0178     0.0180     0.0178     0.0176     0.0174     0.0172     0.0170     0.0168     0.0167     0.0165     0.0164     0.0163     0.0161     0.0159     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 0.0170           

Quality Standard $790,294

Service Standard $13,435

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $13,435

Eligible Amount $3,600,580



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-4 
Township of Melancthon 

Services Related to a Highway – Public Works Facilities 

  

Unit Measure: sq.ft. of building area

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2024 

Bld'g 

Value 

($/sq.ft.)

Value/sq.ft. 

with land, 

site works, 

etc.

Sand Storage Facility 4,736             4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      4,736      $249 $289

Public Works Garage 9,600             9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      9,600      $249 $289

Equipment Storage Facility -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          5,000      5,000      5,000      5,000      5,000      5,000      5,000      $38 $57

Total 14,336           14,336     14,336     14,336     14,336     14,336     14,336     14,336     19,336     19,336     19,336     19,336     19,336     19,336     19,336     

Population 2,918             2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 4.9130           4.9934     5.0497     5.0073     4.9537     4.8912     4.8302     4.7660     6.3773     6.3231     6.2698     6.2274     6.1737     6.0862     6.0218     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 5.5256           

Quality Standard $258

Service Standard $1,423

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $1,423

Eligible Amount $381,364



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-5 
Township of Melancthon 

Services Related to a Highway - Public Works Vehicles and Equipment 

 

Unit Measure: No. of vehicles and equipment

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2024 Value 

($/Vehicle)

Champion Grader 1                   1             1             -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          $618,200

GMC Dump Truck 1                   1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             $478,700

Freightliner Dump Truck 1                   -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          $478,700

GMC Pickup 2                   2             2             2             2             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             $52,000

JBC Backhoe 1                   1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             $377,900

Western Star Plow 1                   1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             $478,700

Western Star Dump Truck 1                   1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             $478,700

John Deer Grader -                 -          -          1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             $527,500

CAT Grader 1                   1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             $527,500

Volvo vehicles 1                   2             2             2             2             2             2             2             2             2             2             2             2             2             2             $216,600

CAT Loader 1                   1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             $146,200

Ford F150 Pickup -                 -          -          -          -          -          -          1             1             1             1             1             1             1             1             $59,800

Ford 550 with Sander Unit & Plow -                 -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          1             $154,000

2015 John Deere Grader -                 -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          1             $303,000

2022 Western Star Plow Truck -                 -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          1             1             $330,000

Total 11                  11           11           11           11           10           10           11           11           11           11           11           11           12           14           

Population 2,918             2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 0.0038           0.0038     0.0039     0.0038     0.0038     0.0034     0.0034     0.0037     0.0036     0.0036     0.0036     0.0035     0.0035     0.0038     0.0044     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 0.0037           

Quality Standard $329,197

Service Standard $1,218

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $1,218

Eligible Amount $326,432



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-7 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-6 
Township of Melancthon 

Fire Protection Services - Facilities 

  

Unit Measure: sq.ft. of building area

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2024 Bld'g 

Value 

($/sq.ft.)

Value/sq.ft. 

with land, 

site works, 

etc.

Mulmur Melancthon Fire Hall (located in Mulmur)

Mulmur Melancthon (Honeywood) Fire Station 

(Melancthon's Portion)
3,375          3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      3,375      $272 $323

Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Station - Sea-Cans 

(Melancthon's Portion)
-             -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.50        0.50        $5,500 $5,500

Shelburne Fire Station 

Shelburne Fire Station (Melancthon's Portion) 866             866         866         1,136      1,136      1,136      1,096      1,067      1,072      1,046      1,046      1,071      1,073      1,039      1,028      $500 $627

Total 4,241          4,241      4,241      4,511      4,511      4,511      4,471      4,442      4,447      4,421      4,421      4,446      4,448      4,415      4,404      

Population 2,918          2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 1.4534        1.4772     1.4938     1.5756     1.5587     1.5391     1.5064     1.4767     1.4667     1.4457     1.4335     1.4319     1.4202     1.3895     1.3714     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 1.4693        

Quality Standard $394

Service Standard $580

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268             

$ per Capita $580

Eligible Amount $155,322



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-8 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-7 
Township of Melancthon 

Fire Protection Services – Vehicles and Equipment 

 

Unit Measure: No. of vehicles 

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2024 Value 

($/Vehicle)

Mulmur Melancthon Fire Hall (Melancthon's portion): 

1999 Freightliner Pumper 0.50           0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        $629,900

2009 Spartan Rescue Pumper ZS4 0.50           0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        $629,900

1987 Ford Tanker 0.50           0.50        -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        $363,600

2005 International Tanker -             -          0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        $285,300

2000 Ford F-350 Rescue 0.50           0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        -          -          -          -          -          0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        $103,600

2000 Freightliner Command Rescue -             -          -          -          -          -          0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        $87,900

2007 Trailer 20' 0.50           0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        $30,800

8 Wheeled Argo 0.50           0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        $46,000

Shelburne Fire Station (Melancthon's portion):

Rescue Unit 26 0.16           0.16        0.16        0.16        0.16        0.16        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.14        $543,200

Pumper Unit 1 0.16           0.16        0.16        0.16        0.16        0.16        -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          $714,700

Pumper Unit 27 0.16           0.16        0.16        0.16        0.16        0.16        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.14        $714,700

Tanker Truck Unit 25 0.16           0.16        0.16        0.16        0.16        0.16        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.14        $643,300

Ford Crew Cab Unit 2 -             -          -          0.16        0.16        0.16        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        -          -          -          -          -          $71,500

Ariel Truck Unit 28 -             -          -          0.16        0.16        0.16        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.14        $1,643,900

GMC Safari Cargo Van Unit 2 0.16           0.16        0.16        -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          $60,800

Ford SUV -             -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.15        0.15        0.15        0.14        $100,000

Chev Crew Cab C22 -             -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.14        $71,500

Pumper 24 -             -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.15        0.14        $714,700

Total 3.80           3.80        3.80        3.95        3.95        3.95        3.77        3.75        3.75        3.88        3.88        5.05        5.05        5.02        5.01        

Population 2,918         2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 0.0013       0.0013     0.0013     0.0014     0.0014     0.0013     0.0013     0.0012     0.0012     0.0013     0.0013     0.0016     0.0016     0.0016     0.0016     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 0.0014       

Quality Standard $359,879

Service Standard $504

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $504

Eligible Amount $135,026



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-9 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-8 
Township of Melancthon 

Fire Protection Services – Small Equipment and Gear 

  

Unit Measure: No. of equipment and gear

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2024 Value 

($/item)

Mulmur Melancthon Fire Hall (located in Honeywood)

Mulmur Melancthon (Honeywood) Fire Fighters 

(Melancthon's Share) 
11.00            11.00      11.00      11.50      11.50      13.00      12.50      12.00      12.00      10.50      10.50      10.50      10.50      10.50      10.50      $11,000

Mulmur Melancthon (Honeywood) Small Equipment 

(Melancthon's Share) 
0.50             0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        0.50        $240,400

Shelburne Fire Station

Fire Hoses (Melancthon's Share)              0.14         0.14         0.14         0.16         0.16         0.16         0.15         0.15         0.15         0.15         0.15         0.15         0.15         0.15         0.14 114,000     

Shelburne Firefighters and Small Equipment 

(Melancthon's Share) 
4.77             4.77        4.77        4.77        4.77        4.77        4.61        4.49        4.51        4.40        4.40        4.40        4.40        4.40        4.40        $31,200

Total 16.41            16.41      16.41      16.93      16.93      18.43      17.76      17.13      17.16      15.54      15.54      15.55      15.55      15.54      15.54      

Population 2,918            2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 0.0056          0.0057     0.0058     0.0059     0.0059     0.0063     0.0060     0.0057     0.0057     0.0051     0.0050     0.0050     0.0050     0.0049     0.0048     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 0.0055          

Quality Standard $24,458

Service Standard $135

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $135

Eligible Amount $36,051



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-10 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-9 
Township of Melancthon 

Parks and Recreation Services – Parkland Development 

  

Unit Measure: Acres of Parkland

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2024 Value 

($/item)

Horning's Mills Park 5.00              5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        $73,800

Corbetton Community Park

(682409 Main St)
-                -          -          -          -          -          2.50        2.50        2.50        2.50        2.50        2.50        2.50        2.50        2.50        $74,600

Total 5.00              5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        5.00        7.50        7.50        7.50        7.50        7.50        7.50        7.50        7.50        7.50        

Population 2,918            2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 0.0017           0.0017     0.0018     0.0017     0.0017     0.0017     0.0025     0.0025     0.0025     0.0025     0.0024     0.0024     0.0024     0.0024     0.0023     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 0.0021           

Quality Standard $75,814

Service Standard $159

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $159

Eligible Amount $42,668



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-11 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-10 
Township of Melancthon 

Parks and Recreation Services – Parkland Amenities 

  

Unit Measure: No. of parkland amenities

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2024 Value 

($/item)

Corbetton Community Park 

(682409 Main St):

Pavillion (320 sq.ft.) -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          1.0          $29,700

Playgrond Equipment -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          1.0          1.0          1.0          $52,000

Asphalt Pad -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          1.0          1.0          1.0          $6,800

Gravel Parking Area -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          $1,400

Horning's Mills Park:

Ball Diamond 1.0                1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          $100,000

Ball Diamond Bleachers 1.0                1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          $17,000

Ball Diamond Lighting -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          1.0          1.0          1.0          $31,600

Playgrond Equipment 1.0                1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          $25,000

Pavillion (Storage & Covered 

Picnic Area)
1.0                1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          $89,100

North Dufferin Community Centre 

- Mulmur/Melancthon Area:

Playgrond Equipment -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          $16,100

Bleachers -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          $37,400

Total 4.0                4.0          4.0          4.0          4.0          4.0          4.0          4.0          4.0          5.0          5.0          6.0          9.0          9.0          10.0        

Population 2,918            2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 0.0014           0.0014     0.0014     0.0014     0.0014     0.0014     0.0013     0.0013     0.0013     0.0016     0.0016     0.0019     0.0029     0.0028     0.0031     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 0.0017           

Quality Standard $51,088

Service Standard $87

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $87

Eligible Amount $23,276



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-12 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-10 
Township of Melancthon 

Parks and Recreation Services – Recreation Facilities 

 

Unit Measure: sq.ft. of building area

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2024 

Bld'g 

Value 

($/sq.ft.)

Value/sq.ft. 

with land, 

site works, 

etc.

Centre Dufferin Recreation Complex  (15% 

Melancthon portion)
4,660           6,830      6,830      6,830      6,830      6,830      6,830      6,830      6,830      6,877      6,877      6,877      6,877      6,877      6,877      $384 $438

Southgate Dundalk Community Centre (10% 

Melancthon portion)
3,052           3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      3,052      $237 $276

Horning's Mills Hall 3,240           3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      3,240      $253 $294

North Dufferin Community Centre - 

Mulmur/Melancthon Area - Arena
-               -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          11,750     11,750     11,750     11,750     11,750     11,751     $331 $373

Total 10,953          13,123     13,123     13,123     13,123     13,123     13,123     13,123     13,123     24,920     24,920     24,920     24,920     24,920     24,920     

Population 2,918           2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 3.7535          4.5707     4.6222     4.5835     4.5344     4.4771     4.4213     4.3625     4.3280     8.1490     8.0803     8.0257     7.9565     7.8438     7.7609     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 5.8313          

Quality Standard $366

Service Standard $2,136

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $2,136

Eligible Amount $572,512



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-13 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-11 
Township of Melancthon 

Parks and Recreation Services – Vehicles and Equipment 

 

Unit Measure: No. of vehicles and equipment

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2024 Value 

($/Vehicle)

John Deere Zero Turn Mower 1.0                1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          $14,400

Ice Resurfacing Machine -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          $121,000

Gas Ice Edger -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          $4,600

Floor Scrubber -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          0.5          $8,700

Zero Turn John Deere Mower -                -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          -          0.5          0.5          0.5          $13,700

Total 1.0                1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          1.0          2.0          2.5          2.5          3.0          3.0          3.0          

Population 2,918            2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 0.0003           0.0003     0.0004     0.0003     0.0003     0.0003     0.0003     0.0003     0.0003     0.0007     0.0008     0.0008     0.0010     0.0009     0.0009     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 0.0005           

Quality Standard $27,440

Service Standard $14

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $14

Eligible Amount $3,677



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-14 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-11 
Township of Melancthon 

Library Services – Facilities 

 

Unit Measure: sq.ft. of building area

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2024 

Bld'g 

Value 

($/sq.ft.)

Value/sq.ft. 

with land, 

site works, 

etc.

Shelburne Library (Melancthon portion) 1,049           1,049      1,049      1,049      1,049      1,076      1,076      1,076      1,076      1,076      1,083      1,083      1,083      1,083      1,083      $409 $497

Total 1,049           1,049      1,049      1,049      1,049      1,076      1,076      1,076      1,076      1,076      1,083      1,083      1,083      1,083      1,083      

Population 2,918           2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 0.3595         0.3654     0.3695     0.3664     0.3625     0.3671     0.3625     0.3577     0.3549     0.3519     0.3511     0.3487     0.3457     0.3408     0.3372     

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 0.3561         

Quality Standard $497

Service Standard $177

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $177

Eligible Amount $47,428



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE B-15 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Schedule B-12 
Township of Melancthon 

Library Services – Collection Materials 

 

Unit Measure: No. of library collection items

Description 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2024 Value 

($/item)

Shelburne Public Library:

Circulation Books & Periodicals (Melancthon's 

Share)
8,418            8,523      10,342     11,391     11,391     11,683     11,654     12,147     12,524     12,098     10,669     11,417     11,417     11,417     11,417     $45

Total 8,418            8,523      10,342     11,391     11,391     11,683     11,654     12,147     12,524     12,098     10,669     11,417     11,417     11,417     11,417     

Population 2,918            2,871      2,839      2,863      2,894      2,931      2,968      3,008      3,032      3,058      3,084      3,105      3,132      3,177      3,211      

Per Capita Standard 2.88              2.97        3.64        3.98        3.94        3.99        3.93        4.04        4.13        3.96        3.46        3.68        3.65        3.59        3.56        

15 Year Average 2009 to 2023

Quantity Standard 3.6920          

Quality Standard $45

Service Standard $166

D.C. Amount (before deductions) 10 Year

Forecast Population 268

$ per Capita $166

Eligible Amount $44,526



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE C-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix C  
Long-Term Capital and 
Operating Cost Examination



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE C-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix C:  Long-Term Capital and Operating 
Cost Examination  

As a requirement of the D.C.A. under subsection 10 (2) (c), an analysis must be 

undertaken to assess the long-term capital and operating cost impacts for the capital 

infrastructure projects identified within the D.C. background study.  As part of this 

analysis, it was deemed necessary to isolate the incremental operating expenditures 

directly associated with these capital projects, factor in cost savings attributable to 

economies of scale or cost sharing where applicable and prorate the cost on a per unit 

basis (i.e., sq.ft. of building space, per vehicle, etc.).  This was undertaken through a 

review of the Township’s approved 2022 Financial Information Return (F.I.R.). 

In addition to the operational impacts, over time the initial capital projects will require 

replacement.  This replacement of capital is often referred to as lifecycle cost.  By 

definition, lifecycle costs are all the costs that are incurred during the life of a physical 

asset, from the time its acquisition is first considered, to the time it is taken out of 

service for disposal or redeployment.  Lifecycle costs were estimated by dividing the 

growth-related costs by the average useful life.  The useful life assumptions used for 

each asset class are provided in Table C-1. 

Table C-1 
Average Useful Life by Asset Class 

Asset 
Lifecycle Cost Average 

Useful Life 

Facilities 50 

Services Related to a 

Highway 
25 

Parkland Development 15-50 

Vehicles 15 

Small Equipment & Gear 10 

Library Materials 10 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE C-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table C-1 depicts the annual operating impact resulting from the proposed gross capital 

projects at the time they are all in place.  It is important to note that, while Township 

program expenditures will increase with growth in population, the costs associated with 

the new infrastructure (i.e., facilities) would be delayed until the time these works are in 

place. 

Table C-2 
Operating and Capital Expenditure Impacts for Future Capital Expenditures 

 

SERVICE

 GROSS COST LESS 

BENEFIT TO 

EXISTING 

 ANNUAL LIFECYCLE 

EXPENDITURES 

 ANNUAL 

OPERATING 

EXPENDITURES 

 TOTAL ANNUAL 

EXPENDITURES 

1. Services Related to a Highway

1.1 Roads and Related 583,384                    43,317                      169,423                    212,740                    

2. Fire Protection Services

2.1 Fire facilities, vehicles & equipment 1,984,152                 14,398                      19,282                      33,680                      

3. Parks and Recreation Services

3.1

Park development, amenities, trails, recreation 

facilities, vehicles, and equipment 1,282,367                 10,440                      11,347                      21,787                      

4. Library Services

4.1 Library facilities, materials and vehicles 163,720                    5,094                        -                           5,094                        

Total $4,013,624 $73,249 $200,052 $273,301



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE D-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix D  
D.C. Reserve Fund Policy



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE D-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix D:  D.C. Reserve Fund Policy 

D.1 Legislative Requirements 

The Development Charges Act, 1997, as amended (D.C.A.) requires development 

charge (D.C.) collections (and associated interest) to be placed in separate reserve 

funds.  Sections 33 through 36 of the D.C.A. provide the following regarding reserve 

fund establishment and use: 

• A municipality shall establish a reserve fund for each service to which the D.C. 

by-law relates; subsection 7 (1), however, allows services to be grouped into 

categories of services for reserve fund (and credit) purposes and for classes of 

services to be established. 

• The municipality shall pay each D.C. it collects into a reserve fund or funds to 

which the charge relates. 

• The money in a reserve fund shall be spent only for the "capital costs" 

determined through the legislated calculation process (as per subsection 5 (1) 2 

to 8). 

• Money may be borrowed from the fund but must be paid back with interest (O. 

Reg. 82/98, subsection 11 (1) defines this as Bank of Canada rate either on the 

day the by-law comes into force or, if specified in the by-law, the first business 

day of each quarter). 

• D.C. reserve funds may not be consolidated with other municipal reserve funds 

for investment purposes and may only be used as an interim financing source for 

capital undertakings for which D.C.s may be spent (section 37). 

Annually, the Treasurer of the municipality is required to provide Council with a financial 

statement related to the D.C. by-law(s) and reserve funds.  This statement must be 

made available to the public and may be requested to be forwarded to the Minister of 

Municipal Affairs and Housing. 

Subsection 43 (2) and O. Reg. 82/98 prescribe the information that must be included in 

the Treasurer’s statement, as follows: 

• opening balance; 

• closing balance; 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE D-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

• description of each service and/or service category for which the reserve fund 

was established (including a list of services within a service category); 

• transactions for the year (e.g., collections, draws) including each asset's capital 

costs to be funded from the D.C. reserve fund and the manner for funding the 

capital costs not funded under the D.C. by-law (i.e., non-D.C. recoverable cost 

share and post-period D.C. recoverable cost share); 

• for projects financed by D.C.s, the amount spent on the project from the D.C. 

reserve fund and the amount and source of any other monies spent on the 

project; 

• amounts borrowed, purpose of the borrowing, and interest accrued during 

previous year; 

• amount and source of money used by the municipality to repay municipal 

obligations to the D.C. reserve fund; 

• list of credits by service or service category (outstanding at the beginning of the 

year, given in the year, and outstanding at the end of the year by the holder); 

• for credits granted under section 14 of the previous D.C.A., a schedule identifying 

the value of credits recognized by the municipality, the service to which it applies, 

and the source of funding used to finance the credit; and 

• a statement as to compliance with subsection 59 (1) of the D.C.A., whereby the 

municipality shall not impose, directly or indirectly, a charge related to a 

development or a requirement to construct a service related to development, 

except as permitted by the D.C.A. or another Act. 

Recent changes arising from Bill 109 (More Homes for Everyone Act, 2022) provide that 

the Council shall make the statement available to the public by posting the statement on 

the website or, if there is no such website, in the municipal office.  In addition, Bill 109 

introduced the following requirements which shall be included in the treasurer’s 

statement. 

• For each service for which a development charge is collected during the year 

o whether, as of the end of the year, the municipality expects to incur the 

amount of capital costs that were estimated, in the relevant development 

charge background study, to be incurred during the term of the applicable 

development charge by-law, and 

o if the answer to the above is no, the amount the municipality now expects 

to incur and a statement as to why this amount is expected. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE D-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

• For any service for which a development charge was collected during the year 

but in respect of which no money from a reserve fund was spent during the year, 

a statement as to why there was no spending during the year. 

Based upon the above, Appendix D-1 and Attachments 1 through 3 (Appendix D-2 

through D-4), set out the format for which annual reporting to Council should be 

provided. 

D.2 D.C. Reserve Fund Application 

Section 35 of the D.C.A. states that: 

“The money in a reserve fund established for a service may be spent only for 

capital costs determined under paragraphs 2 to 7 of subsection 5(1).” 

This provision clearly establishes that reserve funds collected for a specific service are 

only to be used for that service, or to be used as a source of interim financing of capital 

undertakings for which a D.C. may be spent.



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE D-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix D-1 
Annual Treasurer's Statement of Development Charge Reserve Funds 

 

Description

Services 

Related to a 

Highway

Fire 

Protection 

Services

Parks and 

Recreation 

Services

Library 

Services

Opening Balance, January 1, ________ 0

Plus:

Development Charge Collections 0

Accrued Interest 0

Repayment of Monies Borrowed from Fund and Associated Interest1 0

Sub-Total 0 0 0 0 0

Less:

Amount Transferred to Capital (or Other) Funds
2

0

Amounts Refunded 0

Amounts Loaned to Other D.C. Service Category for Interim Financing 0

Credits
3

0

Sub-Total 0 0 0 0 0

Closing Balance, December 31, ________ 0 0 0 0 0
1
 Source of funds used to repay the D.C. reserve fund

2
 See Attachment 1 for details

3
 See Attachment 2 for detailsThe Municipality is compliant with s.s. 59.1  (1) of the Development Charges Act , whereby charges are not directly or indirectly 

imposed on development nor has a requirement to construct a service related to development been imposed, except as permitted by 

the Development Charges Act  or another Act.

Total

Services to which the Development Charge Relates



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE D-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix D-2 
Amount Transferred to Capital (or Other) Funds - Capital Fund Transactions 

 

D.C. Recoverable Cost Share Non-D.C. Recoverable Cost Share

D.C. Forecast Period Post D.C. Forecast Period

Capital Fund Transactions

Gross Capital 

Cost

D.C. Reserve 

Fund Draw

D.C. Debt 

Financing

Grants, 

Subsidies Other 

Contributions

Post-Period 

Benefit/ Capacity 

Interim Financing

Grants, 

Subsidies Other 

Contributions

Other 

Reserve/Reserve 

Fund Draws

Tax Supported 

Operating Fund 

Contributions

Rate Supported 

Operating Fund 

Contributions Debt Financing

Grants, 

Subsidies Other 

Contributions

Services Related to a Highway

Capital Cost A

Capital Cost B

Capital Cost C

Sub-Total - Services Related to Highways $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Fire Protection Services

Capital Cost D

Capita Cost E

Capital Cost F

Sub-Total - Fire Protection Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Parks and Recreation Services

Capital Cost G

Capita Cost H

Capital Cost I

Sub-Total - Parks and Recreation Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Library Services

Capital Cost G

Capita Cost H

Capital Cost I

Sub-Total - Library Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE D-7 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix D-3 
Amount Transferred to Operating (or Other) Funds - Operating Fund Transactions 

 

D.C. Reserve Fund Draw Post D.C. Forecast Period Non-D.C. Recoverable Cost Share

Operating Fund Transactions Principal Interest Principal Interest Source Principal Interest Source

Services Related to a Highway

Capital Cost J

Capita Cost K

Capital Cost L

Sub-Total - Services Related to a Highway $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Fire Protection Services

Capital Cost M

Capita Cost N

Capital Cost O

Sub-Total - Fire Protection Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Parks and Recreation Services

Capital Cost P

Capita Cost Q

Capital Cost R

Sub-Total - Parks and Recreation Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Library Services

Capital Cost P

Capita Cost Q

Capital Cost R

Sub-Total - Library Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Annual Debt 

Repayment 

Amount



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE D-8 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix D-4 
Statement of Credit Holder Transactions 

  

Credit Holder

Applicable D.C. 

Reserve Fund

Credit Balance 

Outstanding 

Beginning of 

Year ________

Additional 

Credits Granted 

During Year

Credits Used by 

Holder During 

Year

Credit Balance 

Outstanding 

End of Year 

________

Credit Holder A

Credit Holder B

Credit Holder C

Credit Holder D

Credit Holder E

Credit Holder F



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE D-9 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix D-5 
Annual Treasurer’s Statement of Development Charge Reserve Funds 

Statement of Reserve Fund Balance Allocations 

 

Service:

Services Related to a 

Highway

Balance in Reserve Fund at Beginning of Year:

60% of Balance to be Allocated (at a minimum):

Projects to Which Funds Will be Allocated

Project Description Project Number

Total Growth-related Capital 

Cost Remaining to be 

Funded

Share of Growth-related 

Cost Allocated to Date

Share of Growth-related Cost 

Allocated - Current Year

Total $0 $0 $0



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE E-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix E  
Local Service Policy 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE E-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix E:  Local Service Policy 

This Appendix sets out the Township’s General Policy Guidelines on D.C. and local 

service funding for Services Related to a Highway, Water, Wastewater, Stormwater and 

Parkland Development services.  The guidelines outline, in general terms, the size and 

nature of engineered infrastructure that is included in the study as a D.C. project, versus 

infrastructure that is considered as a local service, to be emplaced separately by 

landowners, pursuant to a development agreement. 

The following policy guidelines are general principles by which staff will be guided in 

considering development applications.  However, each application will be considered, in 

the context of these policy guidelines as subsection 59(2) of the D.C.A., 1997, as 

amended on its own merits having regard to, among other factors, the nature, type and 

location of the development and any existing and proposed development in the 

surrounding area, as well as the location and type of services required and their 

relationship to the proposed development and to existing and proposed development in 

the area. 

A. Services Related to a Highway 

A highway and services related to a highway are intended for the transportation of 

people and goods via many different modes including, but not limited to passenger 

automobiles, commercial vehicles, transit vehicles, bicycles, and pedestrians.  The 

highway shall consist of all land and associated infrastructure built to support (or 

service) this movement of people and goods regardless of the mode of transportation 

employed, thereby achieving a complete street.  A complete street is the concept 

whereby a highway is planned, designed, operated, and maintained to enable 

pedestrians, cyclists, public transit users and motorists to safely and comfortably be 

moved, thereby allowing for the efficient movement of persons and goods. 

The associated infrastructure to achieve this concept shall include, but is not limited to: 

road pavement structure and curbs; grade separation/bridge structures (for any 

vehicles, railways and/or pedestrians); grading, drainage and retaining wall features; 

culvert structures; storm water drainage systems; utilities; traffic control systems; 

signage; gateway features; street furniture; active transportation facilities (e.g. 

sidewalks, bike lanes, multi-use trails which interconnect the transportation network, 

etc.); transit lanes & lay-bys; roadway illumination systems; boulevard and median 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE E-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

surfaces (e.g. sod & topsoil, paving, etc.); street trees and landscaping; parking lanes & 

lay-bys; (excluding on-street parking in the downtown) and driveway entrances; noise 

attenuation systems; railings and safety barriers. 

1. Roads (including associated land) 

• Roads Internal to Development – Direct developer responsibility under s.59 of 

the D.C.A. (as a local service) 

• Roads External to Development – If local service within the area to which the 

plan relates, direct developer responsibility under s.59 of the D.C.A. 

• Roads External to Development – if not within the area to which the plan 

relates, Include in D.C. calculation to the extent permitted under s.5(1) of the 

D.C.A. 

2. Streetlights 

• Streetlights on Township Roads – Linked to road funding source. 

3. Sidewalks 

• Sidewalks on Township Roads – Linked to road funding source. 

B. Stormwater Management 

• Quality and Quantity Works – be direct developer responsibility through local 

service provisions (s.59 of the D.C.A.). 

C. Water 

• Water Services – direct developer responsibility through local service 

provisions (s.59 of the D.C.A.). 

D. Wastewater 

• Wastewater Services – direct developer responsibility through local service 

provisions (s.59 of the D.C.A.).  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE E-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

E. Parkland 

1. Parkland Development for Municipal Parks, Community Parks, Neighbourhood 

Parks and Parkettes: responsibility to provide up to base condition is a direct 

developer responsibility as a local service provision under s. 59 of the D.C.A. 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

a. Clearing and grubbing. 

b. Topsoil Stripping, screening, and stockpiling, (Topsoil or any fill or soils shall 

not be stockpiled on parkland without the approval of the Municipality). 

c. Parkland shall be free of any contaminated soil or subsoil. 

d. Servicing - Water, Hydro, Stormwater, Sanitary, Electrical, Fibre/phone, catch 

basins, meter, and meter boxes to a point just inside the property line as per 

Municipal requirements.  This includes providing a catch basin, manhole, 

access boxes and meter boxes within the park property. 

e. Rough grading (pre-grading) to allow for positive drainage of the Park, with a 

minimum slope of 2%.  If necessary, this may include some minor drainage 

tile work and grading as per the overall subdivision grading design complete 

with any required swales or catch basins.  Runoff from the development 

property shall not drain into the park unless approved by the Municipality 

f. Supply and spreading of topsoil to 200 mm depth as per Municipal 

requirements (import topsoil if existing on-site is insufficient to reach required 

depth). 

g. Parkland shall not be mined for engineering fill and replaced with fill or topsoil. 

h. Seeding of site with Municipal-approved seed mix. Maintenance of seed until 

acceptance by the Municipality. 

i. Parkland shall be conveyed free and clear of all encumbrances. 

j. When parkland parcels cannot be developed in a timely manner, they shall be 

graded to ensure positive drainage and seeded to minimize erosion and dust. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE E-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

k. Temporary fencing may also be required where there is no permanent fence 

to prevent illegal dumping.  

l. Temporary Park sign advising future residents that the site is a future park is 

a direct developer responsibility as a local service under s. 59 of the D.C.A. 

m. Perimeter fencing of parkland to the Municipal standard located on the public 

property side of the property line adjacent land uses (residential, industrial, 

commercial) as required by the Municipality is a direct developer 

responsibility as a local service under s. 59 of the D.C.A. 

n. The Park block shall not be used for topsoil or other construction material, 

equipment storage, or sales pavilions. 

o. Required heritage features within the park as set out within the Planning 

approval conditions. 

2. Program facilities, including but limited to, sports facilities, creative play 

structures/equipment, shade shelters, multi-purpose courts, walkways, trails, site 

furnishings, and other amenities (including associated utilities) within Parks are 

included in the parkland D.C.’s. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE F-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix F  
Asset Management Plan



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE F-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix F:  Asset Management Plan 

The recent changes to the Development Charges Act, 1997, as amended (D.C.A.) (new 

subsection 10 (2) (c.2)) require that the background study must include an asset 

management plan (A.M.P.) related to new infrastructure.  Section 10 (3) of the D.C.A. 

provides: 

“The asset management plan shall, 

(a) deal with all assets whose capital costs are proposed to be funded under 

the development charge by-law; 

(b) demonstrate that all the assets mentioned in clause (a) are financially 

sustainable over their full life cycle; 

(c) contain any other information that is prescribed; and 

(d) be prepared in the prescribed manner.” 

In regard to the above, section 8 of the regulations was amended to include subsections 

(2), (3), and (4) which set out specific detailed requirements for transit (only).  For all 

services except transit, there are no prescribed requirements at this time, thus requiring 

the municipality to define the approach to include in the background study.  

At a broad level, the A.M.P. provides for the long-term investment in an asset over its 

entire useful life along with the funding.  The schematic below identifies the costs for an 

asset through its entire lifecycle.  For growth-related works, the majority of capital costs 

will be funded by the development charge (D.C.).  Non-growth-related expenditures will 

then be funded from non-D.C. revenues as noted below.  During the useful life of the 

asset, there will be minor maintenance costs to extend the life of the asset along with 

additional program-related expenditures to provide the full services to the residents.  At 

the end of the life of the asset, it will be replaced by non-D.C. financing sources. 

It should be noted that with the recent passing of the Infrastructure for Jobs and 

Prosperity Act (I.J.P.A.) municipalities are now required to complete A.M.P.s, based on 

certain criteria, which are to be completed by 2021 for core municipal services and 2024 

for all other services.  The amendments to the D.C.A. do not require municipalities to 

complete these A.M.P.s (required under I.J.P.A.) for the D.C. background study, rather 

the D.C.A. requires that the D.C. background study include information to show the 

assets to be funded by the D.C. are sustainable over their full lifecycle. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE F-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Purchase

Install

Commission

Operate

Maintain

Monitor

(Throughout Life

of Assets)

(To End of

Useful Life)

Removal/Decommission 

Disposal

New Assets

 

Replacement Assets

 

Reserves/Reserve Funds

Debentures

User Fees

Grants

Other

Proceeds on Disposal

Funding of Disposal / 

Decommissioning Costs

Operating Budget

Financing Methods

Purchase

Install

Commission

Operate

Maintain

Monitor

(Throughout Life

of Assets)

(To End of

Useful Life)

Removal/Decommission 

Disposal

 

In 2012, the Province developed Building Together:  Guide for municipal asset 

management plans which outlines the key elements for an A.M.P., as follows: 

State of local infrastructure:  asset types, quantities, age, condition, financial 

accounting valuation and replacement cost valuation. 

Desired levels of service:  defines levels of service through performance measures 

and discusses any external trends or issues that may affect expected levels of service 

or the municipality’s ability to meet them (for example, new accessibility standards, 

climate change impacts). 

Asset management strategy:  the asset management strategy is the set of planned 

actions that will seek to generate the desired levels of service in a sustainable way, 

while managing risk, at the lowest lifecycle cost. 

Financing strategy:  having a financial plan is critical for putting an A.M.P. into action.  

By having a strong financial plan, municipalities can also demonstrate that they have 

made a concerted effort to integrate the A.M.P. with financial planning and municipal 

budgeting and are making full use of all available infrastructure financing tools. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE F-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Commensurate with the above, the Municipality’s prepared an A.M.P. in 2021 for its 

existing core infrastructure assets; however, it did not take into account future growth-

related assets.  As a result, the asset management requirement for the D.C. must be 

undertaken in the absence of this information. 

In recognition to the schematic above, the following table (presented in 2023$) has 

been developed to provide the annualized expenditures and revenues associated with 

new growth.  Note that the D.C.A. does not require an analysis of the non-D.C. capital 

needs or their associated operating costs so these are omitted from the table below.  As 

well, as all capital costs included in the D.C. eligible capital costs are not included in the 

Township’s A.M.P., the present infrastructure gap and associated funding plan have not 

been considered at this time.  Hence the following does not represent a fiscal impact 

assessment (including future tax/rate increases) but provides insight into the potential 

affordability of the new assets: 

1. The non-D.C. recoverable portion of the projects that will require financing from 

municipal financial resources (i.e., rates, fees, etc.).  This amount has been 

presented on an annual debt charge amount based on 20-year financing. 

2. Lifecycle costs for the 2023 D.C. capital works have been presented based on a 

straight-line basis.  The assets have been considered over their estimated useful 

lives. 

3. Incremental operating costs for the D.C. services (only) have been included. 

4. The resultant total annualized expenditures are approximately $445,800. 

5. Consideration was given to the potential new tax and user fee revenue which will 

be generated as a result of new growth.  These revenues will be available to 

assist in financing the expenditures above.  The new operating revenues are 

$230,650, which will be in addition to the total existing revenues of approximately 

$4.6 million, for a total of approximately $4.84 million. 

6. In consideration of the above, the capital plan is deemed to be financially 

sustainable.  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE F-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Table F-1 
Township of Melancthon 

Asset Management – Future Expenditures and Associated Revenues 
2024$ 

 

Expenditure/Revenue 2033 (Total)

Expenditures (Annualized)

Annual Debt Payment on Non-Growth 

Related Capital1 $172,571

Annual Lifecycle $73,249

Incremental Operating Costs (for D.C. 

Services) $200,052

Total Expenditures $445,873

Revenue  (Annualized)

Total Existing Revenue2 $4,612,896

Incremental Tax and Non-Tax Revenue 

(User Fees, Fines, Licences, etc.) $230,650

Total Revenues $4,843,546

2
 As per Sch. 10 of  FIR

1
 Non-Growth Related component of Projects including 10% 

mandatory deduction on soft services



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-1 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Appendix G 
Proposed D.C. By-law 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-2 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 

By-law Number XX-2024 

BEING A BY-LAW to establish development charges for the Township of Melancthon 

and to repeal Development Charge By-law Number 37-2019. 

WHEREAS subsection 2(1) of the Development Charges Act, 1997, S.O. 1997, c. 27, 

as amended (the "Act"), provides that the council of a municipality may by by-law 

impose development charges against land to pay for increased capital costs required 

because of increased needs for services arising from development of the area to which 

the by-law applies; 

AND WHEREAS a Development Charges Background Study for the Township of 

Melancthon, dated May 16, 2024 (the "Study"} as required by section 10 of the Act was 

presented to Council along with a draft of this By-law as then proposed on July 18, 2019 

and was completed within a one-year period prior to the enactment of this By-law; 

AND WHEREAS notice of a public meeting was given pursuant to subsection 12(1) of 

the Act, and in accordance with the regulations under the Act, on or before May 16, 

2024, and copies of the Study and this proposed development charge by-law were 

made available to the public not later than May 16, 2024 in accordance with subsection 

12(1) of the Act; 

AND WHEREAS a public meeting was held on June 6, 2024 in accordance with the Act 

to hear comments and representations from all persons who applied to be heard (the 

"Public Meeting"); 

AND WHEREAS any person who attended the public meeting was afforded an 

opportunity to make representations and the public generally were afforded an 

opportunity to make written submissions relating to this proposed By-law; 

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Township of Melancthon has determined that no 

further public meeting is required in accordance with Section 12(3) of the Development 

Charges Act, 1997, S.O. 1997, c. 27; 

NOW THEREFORE The Corporation of the Township of Melancthon by its Council 

enacts the following: 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-3 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

MELANCTHON ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1) Definitions 

In this By-law” 

(a) "Act" means the Development Charges Act, 1997, S.O. 1997, c. 27, as amended, 

or any successor thereto; 

(b) "Accessory Use" means where used to describe a use, building, or structure that 

the use, building or structure is naturally and normally incidental, subordinate in 

purpose of floor area or both, and exclusively devoted to a principal use, building 

or structure; 

(c) "Affordable Residential Unit" means a Residential Unit that meets the criteria set 

out in subsection 4.1 of the Act; 

(d) "Agricultural Use" means the growing of crops, including nursery, biomass, and 

horticultural crops; raising of livestock; raising of other animals for food, fur, or 

fibre, including poultry and fish; aquaculture; apiaries; agro forestry, maple syrup 

projection; and associated on-farm buildings and structures, including but not 

limited to livestock facilities and manure storages, excluding: 

a) Residential uses; 

b) On-farm diversified uses; 

c) Cannabis Production Facilities; 

d) Greenhouse. 

(e) "Ancillary Residential Use" means a Residential Dwelling that would be ancillary 

to a Single Detached Dwelling, Semi-Detached Dwelling, or Row dwelling; 

(f) "Apartment Unit" means any residential unit within a building containing three or 

more dwelling units where access to each residential unit is obtained through a 

common entrance or entrances from the street level and the residential units are 

connected by an interior corridor: 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-4 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

(g) "Assessment Act' means the Assessment Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. A.31, as amended 

or any successor thereto; 

(h) "Attainable Residential Unit" means a residential unit that meets the criteria set 

out in subsection 4.1 of the Act; 

(i) "Back-to-Back Townhouse Dwelling" means a building containing three or more 

dwelling units separated vertically by a common wall, including a rear common 

wall, that do not have rear yards; 

(j) "Bedroom" means a habitable room larger than seven square metres. including a 

den, study, or other similar area, but does not include a living room, dining room 

or kitchen; 

(k) "Benefiting Area" means an area defined by map, plan, or legal description in a 

front-ending agreement as an area that will receive a benefit from the 

construction of a service; 

(l) “Board" has the same meaning as that specified in the Education Act, R.S.O. 

1990, c. E.2, as amended or any successor thereto; 

(m)"Building Code Act' means the Building Code Act, 1992, S.O. 1992, c. 23, as 

amended, and all Regulations made under it including the Building Code, as 

amended, or any successors thereto; 

(n) "Cannabis" means: 

a) A Cannabis plant; 

b) Any part of a cannabis plant. including the phytocannabinoids produced 

by, or found in, such a plant, regardless of whether that part has been 

processed or not; 

c) any substance or mixture of substances that contains or has on it any part 

of such a plant; and 

d) any substance that is identical to any phytocannabinoid produced by, or 

found in, such a plant, regardless of how the substance was obtained. 

(o) "Cannabis Plant" means a plant that belongs to the genus “Cannabis”; 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-5 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

(p) "Cannabis Facilities" means a Building, or part thereof, designed, used, or 

intended to be used for one or more of the following: cultivation, growing 

propagation, production, processing, harvesting, testing, alteration, destruction, 

storage, packaging, shipment or distribution of cannabis where a licence, permit 

or authorization has been issued under applicable federal law but does not 

include a Building or part thereof solely designed, used, or intended to be used 

for retail sales of cannabis. 

(q) "Capital Cost" means costs incurred or proposed to be incurred by the 

municipality or a local board thereof directly or by others on behalf of, and as 

authorized by, the municipality or local board 

a) to acquire land or an interest in land, including a leasehold interest; 

b) to improve land; 

c) to acquire, lease, construct or improve buildings and structures; 

d) to acquire, lease, construct or improve facilities including, 

i. rolling stock with an estimated useful life of seven years or more, 

ii. furniture and equipment, other than computer equipment, and 

iii. materials acquired for circulation, reference or information purposes 

by a library board as defined in the Public Libraries Act, R. 0. 1990, 

c. 57, and 

iv. to undertake studies in connection with any of the matters referred 

to in clauses (a) to (d); 

e) to complete the development charge background study under Section 10 

of the Act; 

f) interest on money borrowed to pay for costs in (a) to (d); required for 

provision of services designated in this by-law within or outside the 

municipality; 

(r) "Commercial'' means any use of land, structures, or buildings for the purposes of 

buying or selling commodities and services, but does not include industrial or 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-6 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

agricultural uses, but does include hotels, motels, motor inns and boarding, 

lodging and rooming houses; 

(s) "Council" means the Council of the Township of Melancthon; 

(t) "Development" means the construction, erection or placing of one or more 

buildings or structures on land or the making of an addition or alteration to a 

building or structure that the effect of increasing the size of usability thereof, and 

includes redevelopment; 

(u) "Development Charge” means a charge imposed pursuant to this By-law; 

(v) "Duplex" means a building that is divided horizontally into two dwelling units each 

of which has an independent entrance either directly or through a common 

vestibule. 

(w) "Dwelling Unit" means any part of a building or structure used, designed, or 

intended to be used as a domestic establishment in which one or more persons 

may sleep and are provided with culinary and sanitary facilities for their exclusive 

use; 

(x) "Education Act' means the Education Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. E.2, as amended or 

any successor thereto; 

(y) "Existing Industrial" means an industrial building or buildings existed on a lot in 

the Township on the day this By-law comes into effect or the first industrial 

building or buildings constructed and occupied on a vacant lot pursuant to site 

plan approval under section 41 of the Planning Act subsequent to this By-law 

coming into effect for which full Development Charges were paid: 

(z) "Grade" means the average level of finished ground adjoining a building or 

structure at all exterior walls; 

(aa) "Greenhouse'' means the use of a building or structure for the growing of such 

items as flowers, bushes, shrubs, trees, plants, fruits, vegetables, and other 

types of nursery stock for wholesale or retail purposes. Such use may also 

include the retail sale of greenhouse products customarily, incidental, 

subordinate and exclusively, devoted to the principal use, located on the same lot 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-7 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

therein. A retail space accessory to a greenhouse shall have a maximum retail 

floor area of 75 square metres. 

(bb) "Gross Floor Area" means: 

a) in the case of a residential building or structure, the total area of all floors 

above grade of a dwelling unit measured between the outside surfaces of 

exterior walls or between the outside surfaces of exterior walls and the 

centre line of party walls dividing the dwelling unit from any other dwelling 

unit or other portion of a building; and 

b) in the case of a non-residential building or structure, or in the case of a 

mixed-use building or structure in respect of the non-residential portion 

thereof, the total area of all building floors above or below grade measured 

between the outside surfaces of the exterior walls, or between the outside 

surfaces of exterior walls and the centre line of party walls dividing a non 

residential use and a residential use, except for: 

i. a room or enclosed area within the building or structure above or 

below that is used exclusively for the accommodation of heating, 

cooling, ventilating, electrical, mechanical or telecommunications 

equipment that service the building; 

ii. loading facilities above or below grade; and 

a part of the building or structure below grade that is used for the parking 

of motor vehicles or for storage or other accessory use 

(cc) "Hospice" means a building or portion of a mixed-use building designed and 

intended to provide palliative care and emotional support to the terminally ill in a 

home or homelike setting so that quality of life is maintained, and family 

members may be active participants in care; 

(dd) "Industrial" means lands, buildings or structures used or designed or intended 

for use for manufacturing, processing, fabricating or assembly of raw goods, 

warehousing or bulk storage of goods, and includes office uses and the sale of 

commodities to the general public where such uses are accessory to an industrial 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-8 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

use, but does not include the sale of commodities to the general public through a 

warehouse club, or any land, buildings or structures used for an agricultural use; 

(ee) Institutional" means development of a building or structure intended for use: 

a) as a long-term care home within the meaning of subsection 2 (1) of the 

Fixing Long-Term Care Homes Act, 2021; 

b) as a retirement home within the meaning of subsection 2 (1) of the 

Retirement Homes Act, 2010; 

c) by any institution of the following post-secondary institutions for the 

objects of the institution: 

i. a university in Ontario that receives direct, regular, and ongoing 

operation funding from the Government of Ontario; 

ii. a college or university federated or affiliated with a university 

described in subclause (a); or 

iii. an Indigenous Institute prescribed for the purposes of section 6 of 

the Indigenous Institute Act, 2017; 

(ff) "Local Board" means a school board, public utility, commission, transportation 

commission, public library board, board of park management, local board of 

health, board of commissioners of police, planning board, or any other board, 

commission, committee, body or local authority established or exercising any 

power or authority under any general or special Act with respect to any of the 

affairs or purposes, including school purposes, of the municipality or any part or 

parts thereof; 

(gg) "Mixed Use" means land, buildings or structures used, or designed or intended 

for use, for a combination of residential and non-residential uses; 

(hh) "Multiple Dwellings" means all dwellings other than single-detached, semi 

detached and apartment unit dwellings; 

(ii) "Municipality" (or the “Township") means The Corporation of the Township of 

Melancthon; 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-9 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

(jj) "Non-profit housing development" means development of a building or structure 

intended for use as residential premises by: 

a) a corporation without share capital to which the Corporations Act applies, 

that is in good standing under that Act and whose primary objective is to 

provide housing; 

b) a corporation without share capital to which the Canada Not-for-profit 

Corporation Act applies, that is in good standing under that Act and whose 

primary objective is to provide housing; or 

c) a non-profit housing co-operative that is in good standing under the Co-

operative Corporations Act. 

(kk) "Non-Residential Use" means a building or structure of any kind whatsoever 

used, designed, or intended to be used for other than a residential use; 

(ll) "On-Farm Diversified Use" means a use, occurring entirely and exclusively within 

a detached building that is secondary and subordinate to the active and principle 

agricultural use occurring on a property. Such uses shall be integrated within a 

farm cluster of buildings which must include a dwelling, and may include, but are 

not limited to, uses that produce value added agricultural products or provide a 

service that is supportive of regional agri-business. 

(mm) "Other Multiples" means all dwellings other than Single-detached, Semi-

detached, and Apartment dwellings, and includes a Duplex, and the portion of a 

Live-Work Unit, intended to be used exclusively for living accommodations for 

one or more individuals; 

(nn) "Owner" means the owner of land or a person who has made an application for 

approval for the development of land upon which a development charge is 

imposed; 

(oo) Official Plan" means the Official Plan adopted for the municipality, as amended, 

and approved; 

(pp) "Place of Worship" means a building or structure that is used primarily for 

worship and religious practices and purposes, including related administrative, 

assembly and associated spaces, but does not include portions of such building 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-10 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

or structure used for any commercial use, including but not limited to daycare 

facilities; 

(qq) "Planning Act' means the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13, as amended or 

any successor thereto; 

(rr) "Rate" means the interest rate established weekly by the Bank of Canada based 

on Treasury Bills having a term of 91 days; 

(ss) "Redevelopment" means the construction, erection or placing of one (1) or 

more buildings or structures on land where all or part of a building or structure 

has previously been demolished on such land, or changing the use of a building 

or structure from residential to non-residential or from non-residential to 

residential; 

(tt) "Regulation" means any regulation made under the Act; 

(uu) "Rental housing" means development of a building or structure with four or 

more dwelling units all of which are intended for use as rented residential 

premises. 

(vv) "Residential Dwelling" means a building, occupied or capable of being occupied 

as a home, residence or sleeping place by one or more persons, containing one 

or more dwelling units but not including motels, hotels, tents, truck campers, 

tourist trailers, mobile camper trailers or boarding, lodging or rooming houses; 

(ww) "residential use" means the use of a building, or structure or portion thereof 

for one or more dwelling units. This also includes a dwelling unit on land that is 

used for an agricultural use; 

(xx) "Row Dwelling" shall mean a residential building that is divided vertically into 

three or more dwelling units. 

(yy) "Semi-Detached Dwelling" means a dwelling unit in a residential building 

consisting of two dwelling units having one vertical wall or one horizontal wall, but 

not other parts, attached or another dwelling unit where the residential unit are 

not connected by an interior corridor; 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-11 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

(zz) "Service" means a service designed in Schedule "A" to this By-law, and 

"services" shall have a corresponding meaning; 

(aaa) "Single Detached Dwelling" means a completely detached building containing 

only one dwelling unit; 

(bbb) "Stacked Townhouse Dwelling" means a Building, or part of a building, 

containing two or more dwelling units where each Dwelling Unit is separated 

horizontally and/or vertically from another Dwelling Unit by a common wall and 

having direct separate access to an exterior ground level main entrance/exit; 

(ccc) "Townhouse Dwelling" means a dwelling unit in a building divided vertically 

into no less than three nor more than eight dwelling units attached by common 

walls extended from the base of the foundation to the roof line, each dwelling unit 

having a separate entrance at grade, and includes a Back-to-Back Townhouse. 

(ddd) "Wind Turbine" means any wind energy system, comprising one or more 

turbines, that converts energy into electricity, with a combined nameplate 

generating capacity greater than 500 kilowatts and a height greater than 100 

metres, that converts energy into electricity, and consists of a wind turbine, a 

tower, and associated control or conversion electronics. A wind turbine and 

energy system may be connected to the electricity grid in circuits at a substation 

to provide electricity off-site for sale to an electrical utility or other intermediary; 

(eee) "Zoning By-Law" means the Zoning By-Law of the Township, or any 

successor thereof passed pursuant to Section 34 of the Planning Act, S. 0. 1998;  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-12 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

2) Designation of Services 

2.1 The category of service for which development charges are imposed under this By-

law is: 

a) Services Related to a Highway; 

b) Fire Protection Services; 

c) Parks and Recreation Services; and 

d) Library Services. 

2.2 The components of the services designated in subsection 2.1 are described in 

Schedule "A" to this By-law. 

3) Application of By-law Rules 

3.1 Development charges shall be payable in the amounts set out in this By-law 

where: 

a) the lands are located in the area described in subsection 3.2; and 

b) the development of the lands requires any of the approvals set out in clause 

3.4(a). 

Area to Which By-law Applies 

3.2 Subject to subsection 3.3, this By-law applies to all lands in the geographic area of 

the Township of Melancthon. 

3.3 This By-law shall not apply to lands that are owned by and used for the purposes 

of: 

a) the Township of Melancthon or a local board thereof; 

b) a board as defined in section 1(1) of the Education Act, or 

c) the Corporation of the County of Dufferin or a local board thereof.  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-13 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Approvals for Development 

3.4  

a) Development charges shall be imposed on all lands, buildings or 

structures that are developed for residential or non-residential uses if the 

development requires: 

i. the passing of a zoning by-law or of an amendment to a zoning by 

law under section 34 of the Planning Act; 

ii. the approval of a minor variance under section 45 of the Planning 

Act, 

iii. a conveyance of land to which a by-law passed under subsection 

50(7) of the Planning Act applies; 

iv. the approval of a plan of subdivision under section 51 of the 

Planning Act, 

v. a consent under section 53 of the Planning Act; 

vi. the approval of a description under section 50 of the Condominium 

Act, R.S.O. 1990, Chap. C.26, as amended, or any successor 

thereof; or 

vii. the issuing of a permit under the Building Code Act in relation to a 

building or structure. 

b) No more than one development charge for each service designated in 

subsection 2.1 shall be imposed upon any lands, buildings, or structures 

to which this By-law applies even though two or more of the actions 

described in subsection 3.4(a) are required before the lands, buildings or 

structures can be developed. 

c) Despite subsection 3.4(b), if two or more of the actions described in 

subsection 3.4(a) occur at different times, additional development charges 

shall be imposed if the subsequent action has the effect or increasing the 

need for services. 

Exemptions 

3.5 Notwithstanding the provisions of this By-law, development charges shall not be 

imposed with respect to: 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-14 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

a) an enlargement to an existing dwelling unit; 

b) A second residential unit in an existing detached house, semi-detached 

house, or rowhouse on a parcel of land on which residential use, other 

than ancillary residential use, is permitted, if all buildings and structures 

ancillary to the existing detached house, semi-detached house or 

rowhouse cumulatively contain no more than one residential unit; 

c) A third residential unit in an existing detached house, semi-detached 

house, or rowhouse on a parcel of land on which residential use, other 

than ancillary residential use, is permitted, if no building or structure 

ancillary to the existing detached house, semi-detached house or 

rowhouse contains any residential units; 

d) One residential unit in a building or structure ancillary to an existing 

detached house, semi-detached house or rowhouse on a parcel of land, if 

the existing detached house, semi-detached house or rowhouse contains 

no more than two residential units and no other building or structure 

ancillary to the existing detached house, semi-detached house or 

rowhouse contains any residential units; 

e) A second residential unit in a new detached house, semi-detached house 

or rowhouse on a parcel of land on which residential use, other than 

ancillary residential use, is permitted, if all buildings and structures 

ancillary to the new detached house, semi-detached house or rowhouse 

cumulatively will contain no more than one residential unit; 

f) A third residential unit in a new detached house, semi-detached house or 

rowhouse on a parcel of land on which residential use, other than ancillary 

residential use, is permitted, if no building or structure ancillary to the new 

detached house, semi-detached house or rowhouse contains any 

residential units; 

g) One residential unit in a building or structure ancillary to a new detached 

house, semi-detached house or rowhouse on a parcel of land, if the new 

detached house, semi-detached house or rowhouse contains no more 

than two residential units and no other building or structure ancillary to the 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-15 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

new detached house, semi-detached house or rowhouse contains any 

residential units; or 

h) In an existing rental residential Building, which contains four or more 

residential Dwelling Units, the creation of the greater of one residential 

Dwelling Unit or one percent of the existing residential Dwelling Units. 

3.6 Notwithstanding subsection 3.5 development charges shall be imposed if the total 

floor area of the additional one or two dwelling units in the single detached dwelling 

exceeds the total floor area of the dwelling unit already in the building. 

3.7 Notwithstanding section 3.5, development charges shall be imposed if the 

additional unit has a gross floor area greater than: 

a) in the case of a semi-detached or row dwelling, the gross floor area of the 

existing dwelling unit; and 

b) in the case of any other residential building, the gross floor area of the 

smallest dwelling unit contained in the residential building. 

3.8 Exemption for Industrial Development: 

3.8.1 Notwithstanding any other provision of this by-law, no Development 

Charge is payable with respect to an enlargement of the gross floor area 

of an Existing Industrial building where the Gross Floor Area is enlarged 

by 50 percent or less; 

3.8.2 If the Gross Floor Area of an existing industrial building is enlarged by 

greater than 50 percent, the amount of the development charge payable 

in respect of the enlargement is the amount of the development charge 

that would otherwise be payable multiplied by the fraction determined as 

follows: 

3.8.2.1 notwithstanding section 3.8.1, if the Gross Floor Area is 

enlarged by more than 50 percent (50%), development charges 

shall be payable and collected and the amount payable shall be 

calculated in accordance with s.4(3) of the Act. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-16 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

3.8.2.2 that for greater certainty in applying the exemption in this 

section, the gross floor area of an Existing Industrial building is 

enlarged where there is a bona fide increase in the size of the 

Existing Industrial building, the enlarged area is attached to the 

Existing Industrial building, there is a direct means of ingress and 

egress from the Existing Industrial building to and from the 

enlarged areas for persons, goods, and equipment, and the 

Existing Industrial building and the enlarged area are used for or 

in connection with an industrial purpose as set out in subsection 

1.1 of this by-law.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 

the exemption in this section shall not apply where the enlarged 

area is attached to the Existing Industrial building by means only 

of a tunnel, bridge, canopy, corridor, or other passageway, or 

through a shared below-grade connection such as a service 

tunnel, foundation, footing, or a parking facility 

3.8.2.3 in particular, for the purposes of applying this exemption, the 

industrial building is considered existing if it is built, occupied, and 

assessed for property taxation at the time of the application 

respecting the enlargement 

3.8.2.4 the exemption of an Existing Industrial building provided by this 

section shall be applied to a maximum of fifty percent (50%) of the 

gross floor area that was existing as of the effective date of this 

by-law, or based on the first building or structures constructed on 

a vacant site pursuant to site plan approval under section 41 of 

the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P. 13, as amended, or any 

successor thereof, subsequent to the effective date of this by-law, 

for which full development charges were paid. 

3.9 Other Exemptions 

3.9.1 Notwithstanding the provisions of this By-law, development charges shall 

not be imposed with respect to the portion of lands, buildings or 

structures used for worship in a place of worship as well as a cemetery, 

or a burial ground exempt from taxation under the Assessment Act. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-17 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

3.9.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of this By-law, development charges shall 

not be imposed on "an agricultural use", including barns, silos, or other 

storage facilities for produce, livestock, or machinery and equipment 

used in connection with an existing agricultural operation, and other 

ancillary development to an agricultural use, but excluding a "residential 

dwelling", an "on-farm diversified use", a "cannabis production facility", 

or a “greenhouse”. 

3.9.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of this By-law, development charges shall 

not be imposed on land vested in or leased to a university that receives 

regular and ongoing operating funds from the government for the 

purposes of post-secondary education if the development is intended to 

be occupied and used by the university. 

3.9.4 Notwithstanding the provisions of this development charges shall not be 

imposed on Non-profit Housing. 

3.9.5 Notwithstanding the provisions of this development charges shall not be 

imposed on Affordable residential units. 

3.9.6 Notwithstanding the provisions of this development charges shall not be 

imposed on Attainable residential units. 

3.9.7 Notwithstanding the provisions of this development charges shall not be 

imposed on inclusionary zoning units. 

Amount of Charges 

Residential Uses 

3.10 The residential development charges set out in Schedule B shall be imposed on 

residential uses of lands, buildings or structures, including a dwelling unit 

accessory to a non-residential use and, in the case of a mixed-use building or 

structure, on the residential uses in the mixed-use building or structure, and the 

residential portion for a Live-Work unit, according to the type of residential unit, and 

calculated with respect to the service according to the type of residential use. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-18 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

Non-Residential Uses 

3.11 The development charges described in Schedules B-1 and B-2 to this by-law shall 

be imposed on non-residential uses of lands, buildings, or structures, and, in the 

case of a mixed-use building or structure, on the non-residential uses in the mixed-

use building or structure, and the non-residential portion for a Live-Work unit, and 

calculated with respect to each of the services according to the total floor area of 

the non-residential use. 

Wind Turbines 

3.12 The development charges described in Schedules B to this by-law shall be 

imposed on wind turbines with respect to services related to a highway and fire 

protection services on a per unit basis. 

Reduction of Development Charges for Redevelopment 

3.13 Despite any other provisions of this By-law, where. as a result of the 

redevelopment of land, a building or structure existing on the same land within 5 

years prior to the date of payment of development charges in regard to such 

redevelopment was, or is to be demolished, in whole or in part, or converted from 

one principal use to another principal use on the same land, in order to facilitate 

the redevelopment, the development charges otherwise payable with respect to 

such redevelopment shall be reduced by the following amounts: 

a) Despite any other provisions of this By-law, where. as a result of the 

redevelopment of land, a building or structure existing on the same land 

within 5 years prior to the date of payment of development charges in 

regard to such redevelopment was, or is to be demolished, in whole or in 

part, or converted from one principal use to another principal use on the 

same land, in order to facilitate the redevelopment, the development 

charges otherwise payable with respect to such redevelopment shall be 

reduced by the following amounts: 

b) Despite any other provisions of this By-law, where. as a result of the 

redevelopment of land, a building or structure existing on the same land 

within 5 years prior to the date of payment of development charges in 

regard to such redevelopment was, or is to be demolished, in whole or in 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-19 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

part, or converted from one principal use to another principal use on the 

same land, in order to facilitate the redevelopment, the development 

charges otherwise payable with respect to such redevelopment shall be 

reduced by the following amounts: 

provided that such amounts shall not exceed, in total, the amount of the 

development charges otherwise payable with respect to the redevelopment. 

Discounts for Rental Housing 

3.14 The Development Charge payable for Rental Housing developments will be 

reduced based on the number of bedrooms in each unit as follows: 

a) Three or more bedrooms - 25% reduction; 

b) Two bedrooms - 20% reduction; and 

c) All other bedroom quantities - 15% reduction. 

Time of payment of Development Charges 

3.15 Except as otherwise provided in this By-law, Development Charges shall be 

determined and payable on the date that the first building permit is issued. 

3.16 Except as otherwise provided in this By-law, a building permit shall not be issued 

until the development charge has been paid in full. 

3.17 Development charges for rental housing and institutional developments are due 

and payable in 6 equal installments commencing with the first installment payable 

on the date of occupancy, and each subsequent installment, including interest, 

payable on the anniversary date each year thereafter. 

3.18 Where the development of land results from the approval of a Site Plan or Zoning 

By-law Amendment made on or after January 1, 2020, and the approval of the 

application occurred within the period of building permit issuance as specific in 

section 26.2(5) of the Act, the development charges under subsections 3.15, 3.16, 

and 3.17 shall be calculated based on the rates set out in Schedule "B" on the date 

the planning application was made.  Where both planning applications apply, 

development charges under subsections 3.15, 3.16, and 3.17 shall be calculated 

on the rates set out in Schedule "B", on the date of the latter planning application, 

including interest. 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-20 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

3.19 Interest for the purposes of rule 3.17 and 3.18 shall be determined as prescribed in 

the Development Charges Act, as amended from time to time. 

3.20 Despite section 3.15, Council from time to time, and at any time, may enter into 

agreements providing for all or any part of a development charge to be paid before 

or after it would otherwise be payable, in accordance with section 27 of the Act. 

4) Payment By Services 

4.1 Despite the payment required under subsections 3.10, 3.11 and 3.12, Council may, 

by agreement, give a credit towards a development charge in exchange for work 

that relates to a service to which a development charge relates under this By-law. 

5) Indexing 

5.1 Development charges imposed pursuant to this By-law shall be adjusted annually, 

without amendment to this By-law, on January 1st of each year, in accordance with 

the prescribed index in the Act. 

6) SCHEDULES 

The following schedules shall form part of this By-law: 

Schedule A – Components of Services Designated in Section 2.1 

Schedule B – Schedule of Development Charges for all services 

7) Conflicts 

7.1 Where the Township of Melancthon and an owner or former owner have entered 

into an agreement with respect to land within the area to which this By-law applies, 

and a conflict exists between the provisions of this By-law and such agreement, 

the provisions of the agreement shall prevail to the extent that there is a conflict. 

7.2 Notwithstanding section 7.1, where a development which is the subject of an 

agreement to which section 7.1 applies, is subsequently the subject of one or more 

of the actions described in subsection 3.4(a), an additional development charge in 

respect of the development permitted by the action shall be calculated, payable 

and collected in accordance with the provisions of this By-law if the development 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-21 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

has the effect of increasing the need for services, unless such agreement provides 

otherwise. 

8) SEVERABILITY 

8.1 If, for any reason, any provision of this By-law is held to be invalid, it is hereby 

declared to be the intention of Council that all the remainder of this By-law shall 

continue in full force and effect until repealed, re-enacted, amended or modified. 

9) Date By-law In Force 

9.1 This By-law shall come into effect at 12:01 AM on July 18, 2024. 

10) Date By-law Expires 

10.1 This By-law will expire at 12:01 AM on July 18, 2034 unless it is repealed by 

Council at an earlier date. 

11) Existing By-law Repealed 

11.1 By-law Number 37-2019 is hereby repealed as of the date and time of this By-law 

coming into effect 

12) Short Title 

12.1 This By-law may be referred to as the "Development Charges By-law". 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME THIS 18th DAY OF JULY, 2024. 

READ A THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 18th DAY OF JULY, 2024. 

______________________ 

Mayor 

______________________ 

Clerk  



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-22 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

SCHEDULE “A” TO BY-LAW 
DESIGNATED MUNICIPAL SERVICES UNDER THIS BY-LAW 

Township-Wide Services 

1. Services Related to a Highway 

2. Fire Protection Services 

3. Parks and Recreation Services 

4. Library Services 



 

 

Watson & Associates Economists Ltd.  PAGE G-23 
H:\Melancthon\2024 DC\Report\D.C. Background Study.docx 

SCHEDULE “B” TO BY-LAW 
SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 

 

Single and 

Semi-Detached 

Dwelling

Other 

Multiples

Apartments - 2 

Bedrooms +

Apartments - 

Bachelor and 1 

Bedroom

Wind Trubines
(per sq.ft. of Gross 

Floor Area)

Township-Wide Services:

Services Related to a Highway 5,458               4,764              3,572               1,776               5,458               1.77

Fire Protection Services 3,045               2,658              1,993               991                  3,045               0.99

Parks and Recreation Services 6,448               5,628              4,220               2,098               0.81

Library Services 301                  263                197                  98                    0.04

Total Township-Wide Services $15,252 $13,313 $9,982 $4,963 $8,503 $3.61

RESIDENTIAL 

Service

NON-RESIDENTIAL



CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 
MOTION 

 
 
 

Date: May 2, 2024 
 
 
Moved by  McLean 
 
Seconded by  Neilson 
 
 
Be it resolved that: 
 
The Council for Melancthon Township dissolve the Horning's Mills Community Park 
Board and Corbetton Park Board effective July 15, 2024; 
 
And further that the Council for the Melancthon Township establish a new Melancthon 
Park Board that will oversee the activities and upgrades at the Horning's Mills 
Community Park, Corbetton Park and the Township properties in Riverview; 
 
And further that a new Terms of Reference be created by the Board, to reflect the new 
Board; 
 
And further that the membership on the new Board will be expanded to include 7 
members of the public and 2 members of Council with recruitment of the new Board to 
begin on July 15, 2024. 
  
 
 
Recorded Vote       Yea  Nay 
 
Mayor Darren White 
Deputy Mayor James McLean 
Councillor Ralph Moore 
Councillor Bill Neilson 
Councillor Ruth Plowright 
 
 

Carried/Lost: ___________________________________ 
        MAYOR DARREN WHITE 
 
 
 
*Tabled to a future Council meeting 

kdinnick
Typewritten Text

kdinnick
Typewritten Text
GB 16.3.3JUNE 20 2024

kdinnick
Typewritten Text


	June 20, 2024 Council Agenda
	PLAN 11.1 ~ Applications to Permit
	BD COMM 1 ~ Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board – January 16, 2024 
	BD COMM 2 ~ Roads Sub-Committee – May 6, 2024
	BD COMM 3 ~ Heritage Advisory Committee – May 27th, 2024
	BD COMM 4 ~ Horning’s Mills Community Hall – April 9, 2024
	BD COMM 5 ~ Horning’s Mills Community Hall – May 14, 2024
	INFO 1 ~ Township of Southgate – Memorandum from Lindsey Green, Clerk regarding Zoning By-law Amendment Application C5-24 
	INFO 2 ~ Township of Clearview – Zoning By-law Amendment Notice of Public Meeting June 26th, 2024 
	ZBA Notice of Public Meeting - 2019-003
	Public Meeting Information:
	The Proposal:
	Your Rights to Appeal:
	For More Information:

	PM Sign 2019-003-ZB with Sketch
	1191 County Rd 42 Stayner_Site Plan_2024-03-27
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN




	INFO 3 ~ Township of Clearview – Official Plan Amendment & Zoning By-law Amendment Notice of Complete Application & Public Meeting – June 26th, 2024 
	OPA & ZBA Notice Complete & PM - 2024-035
	Public Meeting Information:
	The Proposal:
	Your Rights to Appeal:
	For More Information:

	PM Sign 2024-035-ZB with Sketch
	10367 COUNTY ROAD 10_PLANNING REPORT_MAY 2024 61


	INFO 4 ~ Township of Clearview – Notice of Adoption of New Official Plan
	INFO 5 ~ Mulmur-Melancthon Volunteer Fire Department Financial Statements Year Ended December 31, 2023 
	INFO 6 ~ Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority – May 2024 Board Meeting Highlights  
	ACT 1 ~ Dundalk Fall Fair Request for 2024 Sponsorship
	GB 16.2.2 ~ Report from Denise B. Holmes, CAOClerk regarding Conservation and Demand Management Plan 2024-2029 
	GB 16.2.3 ~ Memo from Denise B. Holmes, CAOClerk regarding the Strategic Planning Progress Report 2024 prepared by Town Hall Consulting 
	GB 16.3.1 ~ Development Charges Background Study and By-law 
	Executive Summary
	1. Introduction
	1.1 Purpose of this Document
	1.2 Summary of the Process
	1.3 Changes to the Development Charges Act, 1997
	1.3.1 Bill 108: More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019
	1.3.2 Bill 138: Plan to Build Ontario Together Act, 2019
	1.3.3 Bill 197: COVID-19 Economic Recovery Act, 2020
	1.3.3.1 List of D.C. Eligible Services
	1.3.3.2 Classes of D.C. Services
	1.3.3.3 Statutory Exemptions

	1.3.4 Bill 213: Better for People, Smarter for Business Act, 2020
	1.3.5 Bill 109: More Homes for Everyone Act, 2022
	1.3.6 Bill 23: More Homes Built Fast Act, 2022
	1.3.6.1 Additional Residential Unit Exemption
	1.3.6.2 Removal of Housing as an Eligible D.C. Service
	1.3.6.3 New Statutory Exemptions for Affordable Units, Attainable Units, Inclusionary Zoning Units, and Non-Profit Housing developments
	1.3.6.4 Historical Level of Service extended to 15-year period instead of the historical 10-year period
	1.3.6.5 Revised Definition of Capital Costs
	1.3.6.6 Mandatory Phase-in of a D.C.
	1.3.6.7 D.C. By-law Expiry
	1.3.6.8 Installment Payments
	1.3.6.9 Rental Housing Discount
	1.3.6.10 Maximum Interest Rate for Instalments and Determination of Charge for Eligible Site Plan and Zoning By-law Amendment Applications
	1.3.6.11 Requirement to Allocate Funds Received

	1.3.7 Bill 97: Helping Homebuyers, Protecting Tenants Act, 2023
	1.3.8 Bill 134: Affordable Homes and Good Jobs Act, 2023
	1.3.9 Bill 185: Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 2024


	2. Township of Melancthon Current D.C. Policy
	2.1 Schedule of Charges
	2.2 Services Covered
	2.3 Timing of D.C. Calculation and Payment
	2.4 Approvals for Development
	2.5 Indexing
	2.6 Redevelopment Allowance
	2.7 Exemptions
	2.8 Current Development Charges

	3. Anticipated Development in the Township of Melancthon
	3.1 Requirement of the Act
	3.2 Basis of Population, Household and Non-Residential Gross Floor Area Forecast
	3.3 Summary of Growth Forecast

	4. The Approach to the Calculation of the Charge
	4.1 Introduction
	4.2 Services Potentially Involved
	4.3 Increase in the Need for Service
	4.4 Local Service Policy
	4.5 Capital Forecast
	4.6 Treatment of Credits
	4.7 Class of Services
	4.8 Existing Reserve Funds
	4.9 Deductions
	4.9.1 Reduction Require by Level of Service Ceiling
	4.9.2 Reduction for Uncommitted Excess Capacity
	4.9.3 Reduction for Benefit to Existing Development
	4.9.4 Reduction for Anticipated Grants, Subsidies, and Other Contributions
	4.9.5 Municipal-wide vs. Area-Specific
	4.9.6 Allocation of Development
	4.9.7 Asset Management


	5. D.C. Eligible Cost Analysis by Service
	5.1 Introduction
	5.2 Service Levels and 10-Year Capital Costs for Township-wide D.C. Services Calculation
	5.2.1 Services Related to a Highway
	5.2.2 Fire Protection Services
	5.2.3 Parks and Recreation Services
	5.2.4 Library Services
	5.2.5 Growth-Related Studies


	6. D.C. Calculation
	7. D.C. Policy Recommendations and D.C. By-law Rules
	7.1 Introduction
	7.2 D.C. By-law Structure
	7.3 D.C. By-law Rules
	7.3.1 Payment in any Particular Case
	7.3.2 Determination of the Amount of the Charge
	7.3.3 Application to Redevelopment of Land (Demolition and Conversion)
	7.3.4 Exemptions
	7.3.5 Mandatory Phasing In
	7.3.6 Timing of Collection
	7.3.7 Indexing
	7.3.8 D.C. Spatial Applicability

	7.4 Other D.C. By-law Provisions
	7.4.1 Categories of Services for Reserve Fund and Credit Purposes
	7.4.2 Categories for Class of Service for Reserve Fund and Credit Purposes
	7.4.3 By-law In-force Date
	7.4.4 Minimum Interest Rate Paid on Refunds and Charged for Inter-Reserve Fund Borrowing

	7.5 Other Recommendations

	8. By-law Implementation
	8.1  Public Consultation Process
	8.1.1 Introduction
	8.1.2 Public Meeting of Council
	8.1.3 Other Consultation Activity
	8.1.4 Anticipated Impact of the Charge on Development

	8.2 Implementation Requirements
	8.2.1 Introduction
	8.2.2 Notice of Passage
	8.2.3 By-law Pamphlet
	8.2.4 Appeals
	8.2.5 Complaints
	8.2.6 Credits
	8.2.7 Front-Ending Agreements
	8.2.8 Severance and Subdivision Agreement Conditions


	Appendix A  Background Information on Residential and Non-Residential Growth Forecast
	Appendix B  Level of Service
	Appendix C  Long-Term Capital and Operating Cost Examination
	Appendix D  D.C. Reserve Fund Policy
	Appendix E  Local Service Policy
	Appendix F  Asset Management Plan
	Appendix G Proposed D.C. By-law

	GB 16.3.3 ~ Tabled Motion from April 18, 2024 Council Meeting – Dissolving the Horning’s Mills Park Board and the Corbetton Park Board to Establish a Melancthon Park Board



